
From: Liu, Xin (DPH)
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH); Dellamaria, Katie (DPH); Clayton, Anna (DPH); Silva, Elenita (DPH)
Cc: Louie, Janice (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: RE: Coronavirus Questions in ECE community
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:55:54 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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Hi Curtis,
 
Thanks for sharing the information. Yes, the situation is changing quickly and questions arise daily
from ECE providers. I appreciate that you send us official guideline and recommendations so that we
could  share with all of my sites.  Thank you again!
 
Regards,
 
Xin (Katie) Liu, RN   I   Public Health Nurse Consultant    I   Child Care Health Program   I   San
Francisco Department of Public Health   I   30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 210,  San Francisco, CA 94102  
I   Phone: 415-575-5733   I   xin.liu@sfdph.org
 
Confidentiality Notice: This email message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may
contain confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, use or distribution of
this message and any attachments is prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the
sender by reply e-mail and immediately and permanently delete this message and any attachments.

 
 

From: Chan, Curtis (DPH) 
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:47 PM
To: Dellamaria, Katie (DPH) <katie.dellamaria@sfdph.org>; Liu, Xin (DPH) <xin.liu@sfdph.org>;
Clayton, Anna (DPH) <anna.clayton@sfdph.org>; Silva, Elenita (DPH) <elenita.silva@sfdph.org>
Cc: Louie, Janice (DPH) <janice.louie@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: Coronavirus Questions in ECE community
 
Hi Katie and leaders from CCHP team:
 
The 3 email blasts from the SFDPH Child Care Health Program and questions from 7 childcare
agencies (to one PHN) illustrate the important role of public health staff in gathering key
information and providing valuable guidance.
 
As attached to this email, the K-12 Guidance from CDPH was just released Friday night.    I
imagine that the child care community will be starting to read it soon, and have lots of
excellent questions about how it should be applied to child care.  
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I'm available this afternoon after 2:30pm to meet/ hear more of your comments.
 
Yours,
curtis
 

From: Dellamaria, Katie (DPH) <katie.dellamaria@sfdph.org>
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 10:32 AM
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>; Liu, Xin (DPH) <xin.liu@sfdph.org>
Cc: Clayton, Anna (DPH) <anna.clayton@sfdph.org>
Subject: Fw: Coronavirus Questions in ECE community
 
Dear Curtis,
 
Last week I asked CCHP PHNs to begin tracking coronavirus-related questions coming from
CCHP-ECE sites.  I want to share Katie Liu's initial response below.  I will keep Katie Liu on this
email chain in the event you have any feedback.  Katie L. has done a wonderful job serving
many sites, including those serving the Chinese/Chinese-American community.  (Thank you,
Katie L.!)
 
I am looping in Anna Clayton here, as moving forward she is available to assist in coordinating
the CCHP response to the ECE community.  (Thank you, Anna!)
 
I am also looping Elenita Silva here, as she is volunteering at the call center and is part of the
MCAH PHN team response.  (Thank you, Ellen!)  My hope is to keep all lines of communication
open across the CCHP team!
 
Sincerely, Katie
 
Katie DellaMaria, MSN, PHN, RN
Nurse Manager
Child Care Health Program
San Francisco Department of Public Health
Maternal, Child, and Adolescent Health Section
30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 210, SF, CA 94102
Direct: (415) 581-2375
 

                                   

From: Liu, Xin (DPH) <xin.liu@sfdph.org>
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 7:56 AM
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To: Dellamaria, Katie (DPH) <katie.dellamaria@sfdph.org>
Subject: RE: Coronavirus Questions in ECE community
 
Hello Katie,
 
I had a couple sites I served in the past contacted me. I’ve been sharing advice from the SFDPH and
CDC. There has been some changes to their recommendation for quarantine (e.g 14 day quarantine
was only recommended for people coming from Wuhan, people who had contact with people from
Wuhan, or people coming back from China with s/sx of illness in Jan, but now it is everyone coming
from China). I have been sending email blasts to all my sites about the changes and sharing flyers.
Please see the following time line. If you would like more details, I can share during our meeting
tomorrow J
 
1/15/20  - Anna (Director) from Little Footprint

·         Question about families and teachers coming from China/quarantine?
·         Route of contact for Coronavirus
·         Incubation time and if the virus can be transmitted during incubation time.

 
1/27/20 – Gloria Tang (executive director)from Gum Moon (AWRC)

·         Question about families and teachers coming from China/quarantine needed?
 
1/27/20 – Nakita Chow (Operational Manager) from CCFC

·         Question about if children and teachers coming back from China can come back to the
center right away.
 

1/28/20 – Helen (Site manager) from Little Footprint
·         Question about families and teachers coming from China/quarantine?
·         Route of contact for Coronavirus
·         Incubation time and if the virus can be transmitted during incubation time.

 

1/31/20 – Sandra Davis (Director)from 1st Place 2 Start
·         Concern about second confirmed case in Santa Clara and if there is special preventative

measures that the school needed to take.
 
2/3/20 – Marianne Reyneker (Director) from Story Book Preschool

·         Concerns about families and children returning from China, if they can return to school.
 
2/5/20 – April Bacsafra (FCCHN Manager, used to be FACCESF Hayes Valley manager) from FACESSF

·         Concerns about families and children returning from China, if they can return to school.
 
 
The following email blast was sent on 1/28/20:
Hello all,
 
Some of you had inquired about the Novel Coronavirus outbreak and steps for prevention. Here are

mailto:katie.dellamaria@sfdph.org


two useful websites to get the most up-to-date information about the situation:
https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
 
Currently, there is no recommendation from DPH to restrict clients coming from China to visit public
places unless the person has recently traveled to Wuhan and having symptoms of illness (e.g cough,
malaise, shortness of breath etc). San Francisco currently has no confirmed cases yet, but DPH is
monitoring the outbreak closely. I will share information as soon as we receive any updates on the
situation.
 
At this time, It’s important to practice preventative measures such as sharing basic information to
the public, encouraging the staff and families to practice frequent handwashing, staying home when
sick, covering coughs, and frequent disinfecting of surfaces. The attached flyers have great info
about FAQs. Please post out the attached flyers at your centers.
 
For suspected clients, it’s important to instruct them to contact their primary physician and not to
come to the public.
 
Please let me know if you have further questions.
 
The following email blast was sent on 1/31/20:
Hello all,
 
Please see the following update of the Coronavirus. There has been one confirmed case in Santa
Clara County.
 
If you know anyone who is travelling from China within the last 2 weeks AND is having symptom
(fever, cough, fatigue, diarrhea, etc), please advise them to stay home (do not go out public before
consulting with medical provider)  and contact the Communicable Disease Unit. Please see the
phone number below for reporting.
 
Report suspected cases of novel or variant influenza immediately to Communicable Disease Control
at (415) 554-2830. After hours, weekends and holidays, please follow the instructions to page the
on-call physician.
 
Please continue to practice preventative measures and disinfect surfaces as appropriate. I will be
happy to answer any question you may have.
 
The following email blast was sent on 2/3/20:
Hello all,
 
There are 2 confirmed cases of coronavirus in Santa Clara County, but none at San Francisco at this
time. The risk of outbreak in S.F remains to be low and using face mask is not recommended at this
time. Please review the attached flyers and post out at your center. I will provide more info if there is
more updates. Thank you. 

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

 
 
 

From: Dellamaria, Katie (DPH) 
Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2020 9:48 AM
To: King, Jaleila (DPH) <jaleila.king@sfdph.org>; Linzer, Karyna (DPH) <karyna.linzer@sfdph.org>; Liu,
Xin (DPH) <xin.liu@sfdph.org>; Quant, Ivania (DPH) <ivania.quant@sfdph.org>; Silva, Elenita (DPH)
<elenita.silva@sfdph.org>
Subject: Coronavirus Questions in ECE community
 
Hello Public Health Nurses,
 
As you know, we are currently experiencing a very large public health response related to the novel
Coronavirus.  Since families and children at ECE sites could potentially be affected or at minimum
could have many questions, it is prudent that we organize the questions being asked and begin to
clarify answers.
 
Starting today and until further notice, I will begin compiling the types of questions you are being
asked by the ECE community, FRCs, families, etc.  When you are asked a question, or requests are
made related to the coronavirus, please email me with the following information:
 

1.       Who made the request or asked the question
2.       Date of question
3.       Gist of the question asked
4.       Your current response (it’s okay if the answer is “I don’t know” as information is rapidly

changing)
 
I will be happy to compile this information in a spreadsheet.  If I learn that we need to collect
additional information, I will let you know as soon as possible!  Thanks for your efforts, and feel free
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to let me know if you have questions!
 
Best, Katie
 
Katie DellaMaria, MSN, PHN, RN
Nurse Manager
Child Care Health Program
San Francisco Department of Public Health
Maternal, Child, and Adolescent Health Section
30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 210, SF, CA 94102
Desk: (415) 581-2375
 
 
 



From: Chan, Curtis (DPH)
To: Dellamaria, Katie (DPH); Liu, Xin (DPH); Clayton, Anna (DPH); Silva, Elenita (DPH)
Cc: Louie, Janice (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Re: Coronavirus Questions in ECE community
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:47:25 PM
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
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California Department of Public Health – February 7, 2020 
 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for  


Schools and School Districts 
 
 


  Page 1 of 2 
 


 
THE 2019 NOVEL CORONAVIRUS 
  


The 2019 novel coronavirus is a virus that was recently identified in Wuhan, Hubei Province, China, and is now 
being spread widely in other parts of mainland China. More cases are being detected worldwide, and while new 
cases were initially linked to Hubei Province, China, at this time public health considers being anywhere in China in 
the past 14 days a risk factor for novel coronavirus infection. 
 
The virus causes respiratory illness.  For up-to-date information regarding the novel coronavirus, see: 
 
• the California Department of Public Health website at 


https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCOV2019.aspx; or  
• Centers for Disease Control (CDC) website at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html  


 
At this time, the health risk to the general public in California from novel coronavirus remains low, but schools 
can take common-sense precautions to prevent the spread of all infectious diseases.  These precautions will be 
helpful to also prevent the spread of other common illnesses such as influenza and gastroenteritis.   
 
 
GUIDANCE FOR SCHOOLS AND SCHOOL DISTRICTS 
 
The risk of exposure to this new coronavirus in China is increasing over time.  Consistent with CDC guidance on 
returning travelers from China, local health departments are communicating with travelers returning from 
mainland China to provide guidance about limiting public interactions for 14 days.   
 
Travelers from mainland China arriving in the United States since February 3, 2020 should be excluded from 
school for 14 days, beginning the day after they left China. 
 
CDC guidance on returning travelers is available here:  https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/risk-
assessment.html.  
 
Please note that there have been reports of students and others being stigmatized. We urge schools to ensure 
students’ and staffs’ privacy to help prevent discrimination.   
 
In the unusual event that a student or staff member is identified who:  


• has symptoms of respiratory illness, such as fever and cough, AND 
• traveled from mainland China in the prior 14 days, 


 
Please take the following steps: 


• separate the individual from others as much as possible and make arrangements for the individual to go 
home, and  


• contact your local health department immediately. 
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Encourage all students, parents, and staff to take everyday preventive actions:  
• Stay home when sick.  


o Remain at home until fever has been gone for at least 24 hours without the use of fever-reducing 
medicines.  


o Seek immediate medical care if symptoms become more severe, e.g., high fever or difficulty 
breathing.  


 
• Use “respiratory etiquette”.  


o Cover cough with a tissue or sleeve. See CDC’s Cover Your Cough page 
(https://www.cdc.gov/flu/prevent/actions-prevent-flu.htm) for multilingual posters and flyers, 
posted at the bottom of webpage. 


o Provide adequate supplies within easy reach, including tissues and no-touch trash cans. 
 
• Wash hands frequently. 


o Encourage hand washing by students and staff through education, scheduled time for 
handwashing, and the provision of adequate supplies.  


 
• Routinely clean frequently touched surfaces. 
 
• Separate sick students and staff from others until they can go home. When feasible, identify a “sick room” 


through which others do not regularly pass. 
 
• Encourage flu vaccine for those who haven’t had it this season to reduce illnesses and absences on 


campus (but won’t prevent coronavirus illnesses). 
 


A note about face masks: face masks are most useful for preventing disease spread when they are worn by 
people who have symptoms. This is why people are asked to wear a mask at doctors’ offices and hospitals if 
they are coughing or sneezing. 


 
Develop policies to respond to outbreaks and communicable diseases: 


• Establish relationships with your local public health department for ongoing communication.  
 
• Update emergency plans to ensure they are in place before an outbreak occurs. 


 


At this time, Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan do not have widespread transmission of the novel coronavirus and 
are not considered part of mainland China for this guidance.  The California Department of Public Health will 
update this guidance if the outbreak spreads to other countries or regions.   


 







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
 

mailto:xin.liu@sfdph.org


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
 
 
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) Operations
To: Avchen, Rachel (CDC/DDPHSIS/CPR/DSLR); Hamilton, Janet (CDC cste.org); Peart, Jordan (CDC cste.org); Shah,

Dhara (CDC cste.org); Butler, Jay C. (CDC/DDID/OD); Dreyzehner, John (CDC/DDPHSIS/CPR/OD); Williams, Ian
(CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DFWED); Berger, Sherri (CDC/OCOO/OD); Bowman, Thomas (OS/ASPR/EMMO); Weir,
Charles (OS/ASPR/IO); Maples, David L. (CDC/DDPHSIS/CPR/DEO); CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force
(SCTF) Policy & Comm; CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) Lead; EOC Report (CDC); Angell, Sonia
Y@CDPH; Morrow, Scott (CDC smcgov.org); Ferrer, Barbara@LACounty; Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Hellerstedt, John
(CDC dshs.texas.gov); Phillip.huang@dallascounty.org; vtaneja@TarrantCounty.com;
Gary.Anthone@nebraska.gov; Wiesman, John (CDC doh.wa.gov); patty.hayes@kingcounty.gov;
kathleen.toomey@dph.ga.gov; Zucker, Howard (CDC health.ny.gov); Layton, Marci (CDC health.nyc.gov);
Judith.Persichilli@doh.nj.gov; Ngozi.Ezike@illinois.gov; Arwady, Allison AA (CDC cityofchicago.org);
bruce.s.anderson@doh.hawaii.gov; norm.oliver@vdh.virginia.gov; KhaldunJ@michigan.gov; Watt, James (CDC
cdph.ca.gov); CSallenave@smcgov.org; Balter, Sharon (CDC ph.lacounty.gov); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Gaul, Linda
(CDC dshs.state.tx.us); Wendy.Chung@dallascounty.org; Jones, Russ (CDC tarrantcounty.com); Safranek,
Thomas <NE> (CDC nebraska.gov); Lindquist, Scott SL (CDC doh.wa.gov); Duchin, Jeff (CDC kingcounty.gov);
Drenzek, Cherie (CDC dph.ga.gov); Blog, Debra (CDC health.ny.gov); Tan, Christina CT (CDC doh.nj.gov);
Layden, Jennifer (CDC illinois.gov); sarah.murray@cityofchicago.org; sarah.park@doh.hawaii.gov;
lilian.peake@vdh.virginia.gov; Lyoncallos@michigan.gov; Hawkins, Eric (CDC isdh.in.gov); McCormick, Dave
(CDC isdh.in.gov); Susan Fanelli; tricia.Blocher@cdph.ca.gov; Stella Fogleman; jeff.hoogheem@dshs.state.tx.us;
Michelle.Petriatis@dshs.texas.gov; eric.sergeant@nebraska.gov; Halvorson, Clark (CDC doh.wa.gov); Minarcine,
Scott; Primeau, Michael J (HEALTH); phillip.hurst@troopers.ny.gov; bmaldin@health.nyc.gov;
Dana.johnson@doh.nj.gov; Keturah.Tracy@illinois.gov; Winfred.Rawls@illinois.gov; Christopher Shields;
judy.kern@doh.hawaii.gov; tsantos@honolulu.gov; bob.mauskapf@vdh.virginia.gov; macqueenm@michigan.gov;
Scott, Linda (DHHS); mlytle@isdh.in.gov; dutyofficer@cdph.ca.gov; asambol@unmc.edu;
brian.hiatt@doh.wa.gov; Harjinder.Ghuman@dph.ga.gov; kirsten.st.george@health.ny.gov; Rakeman, Jennifer
JR (CDC health.nyc.gov); thomas.kirn@doh.nj.gov; matt.charles@illinois.gov; Pacilli, Massimo (CDC
cityofchicago.org); remedios.gose@doh.hawaii.gov; latoya.griffin-thomas@dgs.virginia.gov;
shahs@michigan.gov; mglazier@isdh.in.gov; Hutton, Brad J (HEALTH); kbox@isdh.in.gov; Cohen, Nicole (Nicky)
(CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DGMQ); Weber, Angela (CDC/NIOSH/OD); CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF)
Prog Services Unit; CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) TF Coordinations TM; CDC IMS State
Coordination Task Force (SCTF) MCCM LNO

Cc: Pillai, Satish K. (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DPEI); Patel, Anita (CDC/DDID/NCIRD/OD); CDC IMS Worker Safety Health
NIOSH; CDC IMS 2019 NCOV Response PPE Requirements; Montero, Jose (CDC/DDPHSIS/CSTLTS/OD);
Reynolds, Steven L. (CDC/DDPHSIS/CSTLTS/OD); Lansang Tran, Rhea Lanee (CDC/DDPHSIS/CSTLTS/OD)

Subject: Re: CDC Returning Traveler Discussion for F11 Jurisdictions
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:02:31 PM

 
CDC Internal staff ONLY, please come to the plans team room (3302). Thank you! 

 
Division of State and Local Readiness (DSLR 
CDC State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) - Operations
eocsctfops@cdc.gov

 
 

From: CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) Operations
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 9:20 AM
To: Avchen, Rachel (CDC/DDPHSIS/CPR/DSLR) <rja5@cdc.gov>; Hamilton, Janet (CDC cste.org)
<jhamilton@cste.org>; Peart, Jordan (CDC cste.org) <jpeart@cste.org>; Shah, Dhara (CDC cste.org)
<dshah@cste.org>; Butler, Jay C. (CDC/DDID/OD) <jcb3@cdc.gov>; Dreyzehner, John
(CDC/DDPHSIS/CPR/OD) <PWN3@cdc.gov>; Williams, Ian (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DFWED)
<iaw3@cdc.gov>; Berger, Sherri (CDC/OCOO/OD) <sob8@cdc.gov>; Bowman, Thomas
(OS/ASPR/EMMO) <Thomas.Bowman@hhs.gov>; Weir, Charles (OS/ASPR/IO)
<Charles.Weir@hhs.gov>; Maples, David L. (CDC/DDPHSIS/CPR/DEO) <idr0@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS
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State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) Policy & Comm <eocsctfpolcomm@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS State
Coordination Task Force (SCTF) Lead <eocsctflead@cdc.gov>; EOC Report (CDC)
<eocreport@cdc.gov>; Angell, Sonia Y@CDPH <Sonia.Angell@cdph.ca.gov>; Morrow, Scott (CDC
smcgov.org) <smorrow@smcgov.org>; Ferrer, Barbara@LACounty <BFerrer@ph.lacounty.gov>;
Aragon, Tomas MD, DrPH (CDC sfdph.org) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Hellerstedt, John (CDC
dshs.texas.gov) <John.Hellerstedt@dshs.texas.gov>; Phillip.huang@dallascounty.org
<Phillip.huang@dallascounty.org>; vtaneja@TarrantCounty.com <vtaneja@TarrantCounty.com>;
Gary.Anthone@nebraska.gov <Gary.Anthone@nebraska.gov>; Wiesman, John (CDC doh.wa.gov)
<jmwiesman@doh.wa.gov>; patty.hayes@kingcounty.gov <patty.hayes@kingcounty.gov>;
kathleen.toomey@dph.ga.gov <kathleen.toomey@dph.ga.gov>; Zucker, Howard (CDC health.ny.gov)
<howard.zucker@health.ny.gov>; Layton, Marci (CDC health.nyc.gov) <mlayton@health.nyc.gov>;
Judith.Persichilli@doh.nj.gov <Judith.Persichilli@doh.nj.gov>; Ngozi.Ezike@illinois.gov
<Ngozi.Ezike@illinois.gov>; Arwady, Allison AA (CDC cityofchicago.org)
<allison.arwady@cityofchicago.org>; bruce.s.anderson@doh.hawaii.gov
<bruce.s.anderson@doh.hawaii.gov>; norm.oliver@vdh.virginia.gov
<norm.oliver@vdh.virginia.gov>; KhaldunJ@michigan.gov <KhaldunJ@michigan.gov>; Watt, James
(CDC cdph.ca.gov) <James.Watt@cdph.ca.gov>; CSallenave@smcgov.org
<CSallenave@smcgov.org>; Balter, Sharon (CDC ph.lacounty.gov) <sbalter@ph.lacounty.gov>;
juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Gaul, Linda (CDC dshs.state.tx.us)
<linda.gaul@dshs.state.tx.us>; Wendy.Chung@dallascounty.org <Wendy.Chung@dallascounty.org>;
Jones, Russ (CDC tarrantcounty.com) <rwjones@tarrantcounty.com>; Safranek, Thomas <NE> (CDC
nebraska.gov) <tom.safranek@nebraska.gov>; Lindquist, Scott SL (CDC doh.wa.gov)
<scott.lindquist@doh.wa.gov>; Duchin, Jeff (CDC kingcounty.gov) <jeff.duchin@kingcounty.gov>;
Drenzek, Cherie (CDC dph.ga.gov) <cherie.drenzek@dph.ga.gov>; Blog, Debra (CDC health.ny.gov)
<debra.blog@health.ny.gov>; Tan, Christina CT (CDC doh.nj.gov) <christina.tan@doh.nj.gov>;
Layden, Jennifer (CDC illinois.gov) <jennifer.layden@illinois.gov>; sarah.murray@cityofchicago.org
<sarah.murray@cityofchicago.org>; sarah.park@doh.hawaii.gov <sarah.park@doh.hawaii.gov>;
lilian.peake@vdh.virginia.gov <lilian.peake@vdh.virginia.gov>; Lyoncallos@michigan.gov
<Lyoncallos@michigan.gov>; Hawkins, Eric (CDC isdh.in.gov) <ehawkins@isdh.in.gov>; McCormick,
Dave (CDC isdh.in.gov) <DMcCormick@isdh.IN.gov>; Susan Fanelli <susan.fanelli@cdph.ca.gov>;
tricia.Blocher@cdph.ca.gov <tricia.Blocher@cdph.ca.gov>; Stella Fogleman
<sfogleman@ph.lacounty.gov>; jeff.hoogheem@dshs.state.tx.us <jeff.hoogheem@dshs.state.tx.us>;
Michelle.Petriatis@dshs.texas.gov <Michelle.Petriatis@dshs.texas.gov>;
eric.sergeant@nebraska.gov <eric.sergeant@nebraska.gov>; Halvorson, Clark (CDC doh.wa.gov)
<Clark.Halvorson@DOH.WA.GOV>; Minarcine, Scott <Scott.Minarcine@dph.ga.gov>; Primeau,
Michael J (HEALTH) <michael.primeau@health.ny.gov>; phillip.hurst@troopers.ny.gov
<phillip.hurst@troopers.ny.gov>; bmaldin@health.nyc.gov <bmaldin@health.nyc.gov>;
Dana.johnson@doh.nj.gov <Dana.johnson@doh.nj.gov>; Keturah.Tracy@illinois.gov
<Keturah.Tracy@illinois.gov>; Winfred.Rawls@illinois.gov <Winfred.Rawls@illinois.gov>; Christopher
Shields <Christopher.Shields@cityofchicago.org>; judy.kern@doh.hawaii.gov
<judy.kern@doh.hawaii.gov>; tsantos@honolulu.gov <tsantos@honolulu.gov>;
bob.mauskapf@vdh.virginia.gov <bob.mauskapf@vdh.virginia.gov>; macqueenm@michigan.gov
<macqueenm@michigan.gov>; Scott, Linda (DHHS) <ScottL12@michigan.gov>; mlytle@isdh.in.gov
<mlytle@isdh.in.gov>; dutyofficer@cdph.ca.gov <dutyofficer@cdph.ca.gov>; asambol@unmc.edu
<asambol@unmc.edu>; brian.hiatt@doh.wa.gov <brian.hiatt@doh.wa.gov>;



Harjinder.Ghuman@dph.ga.gov <Harjinder.Ghuman@dph.ga.gov>; kirsten.st.george@health.ny.gov
<kirsten.st.george@health.ny.gov>; Rakeman, Jennifer JR (CDC health.nyc.gov)
<jrakeman@health.nyc.gov>; thomas.kirn@doh.nj.gov <thomas.kirn@doh.nj.gov>;
matt.charles@illinois.gov <matt.charles@illinois.gov>; Pacilli, Massimo (CDC cityofchicago.org)
<massimo.pacilli@cityofchicago.org>; remedios.gose@doh.hawaii.gov
<remedios.gose@doh.hawaii.gov>; latoya.griffin-thomas@dgs.virginia.gov <latoya.griffin-
thomas@dgs.virginia.gov>; shahs@michigan.gov <shahs@michigan.gov>; mglazier@isdh.in.gov
<mglazier@isdh.in.gov>; Hutton, Brad J (HEALTH) <brad.hutton@health.ny.gov>; kbox@isdh.in.gov
<kbox@isdh.in.gov>; Cohen, Nicole (Nicky) (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DGMQ) <hei1@cdc.gov>; Weber,
Angela (CDC/NIOSH/OD) <amw1@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) Prog
Services Unit <eocsctfpsu@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) TF
Coordinations TM <eocsctftfcoord@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS State Coordination Task Force (SCTF) MCCM
LNO <eocsctfmccmlno@cdc.gov>
Cc: Pillai, Satish K. (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DPEI) <vig8@cdc.gov>; Patel, Anita (CDC/DDID/NCIRD/OD)
<bop1@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS Worker Safety Health NIOSH <eocwsh@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS 2019 NCOV
Response PPE Requirements <eocevent338@cdc.gov>; Montero, Jose (CDC/DDPHSIS/CSTLTS/OD)
<znn3@cdc.gov>; Reynolds, Steven L. (CDC/DDPHSIS/CSTLTS/OD) <slr6@cdc.gov>; Lansang Tran,
Rhea Lanee (CDC/DDPHSIS/CSTLTS/OD) <ngl1@cdc.gov>
Subject: CDC Returning Traveler Discussion for F11 Jurisdictions
When: Monday, February 10, 2020 3:00 PM-4:00 PM.
Where: Bridgeline: 1(888)455-7719 Passcode: 5108469 or Bldg. 21 3rd Floor 3025B
 
CDC Returning Traveler Discussion for F11 Jurisdictions
CDC's 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) response team will host a call from 3
p.m. to 4 p.m. EST for the duration of this week, to discuss plans for returning
travelers within the eleven funneling jurisdictions, status reports and concerns. Feel
free to include your state epidemiologist, preparedness director, state/city emergency
management official, and other core team members.

Bridgeline: 1(888)455-7719
Passcode: 5108469

Attached, please see attached CDC guidance which was developed for the public health
departments serving the F11 locations. We request you keep this guidance CLOSE HOLD, as
the following documents are not posted on CDC's nCoV response webpage. At this time,
we are only sharing these documents with F11. ​Lastly, please be mindful this is interim
guidance and as the response continues and we learn more guidance will be adjusted
accordingly.

1. “Interim Cleaning Recommendations Related to People with Exposures to 2019 Novel
Coronavirus Under Observation while Quarantined in Non-Home Residential Settings
- This guidance is intended to address recommended cleaning and disinfection practices
for non-home residential quarantine locations, as well as associated worker protection
practices according to expected job tasks.



 
2. “Interim Guidance Related to the Airport Ground Transport of People Subject to

Mandatory Quarantine for 2019 Novel Coronavirus Exposure” - is intended to address
recommended worker protection practices for drivers of ground transport passenger
vehicles and those workers who perform routine cleaning of the vehicles.

 
State Coordination Task Force (SCTF)
Center for Preparedness and Response (CPR)
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
1600 Clifton Road, NE, MS H21-5, Atlanta, GA 30349-4027

 

http://www.cdc.gov/


From: Leonoudakis, Kristina (DPH)
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Paule, Gretchen (DPH)
Cc: Leonoudakis, Kristina (DPH); DPH, Phepr (DPH)
Subject: DRAFT SFDPH DOC nCoV Situation Status report (02/10/20)-for review!
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 11:56:11 AM

SFDPH DOC nCoV Situation Status report #15 (02/10/20)

Status: Yellow
Outlook: Worsening
Need: None
 
 
# of Cases/Deaths
Worldwide: 40,645  cases / 910 Deaths (John Hopkins CSSE, link below)
US: 12 Cases / 0 Deaths
CA:  6 Cases / 0 Deaths
SF: 0 Cases
                                                                                                                            
Updates and Response:

SFDPH
Summary of actions

DPH collaborated with other Bay Area counties to finalize a policy in regards to SF residents who
returned from travel to China before 02/03/20 (before Federal Quarantine Orders were issued).
https://www.sfcdcp.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Interim-Guidance-on-Monitoring-and-Movement-
for-San-Franciscans-and-Travel-Before-Feb-3rd-SFDPH-FINAL-02.07.2020.pdf
A comprehensive and extensive plan has been developed with multiple DPH and CCSF inter-agency
partners to provide guidance, consultation, and instruction to healthcare
providers, hospitals, outpatient healthcare facilities, and field teams to prepare them for potential
nCoV patients, as DPH starts follow up with returned travelers from mainland China. 
DPH OSH developed guidance for clinics regarding environmental and infection control requirements
and requirements to wear N95 respirators. Available soon. 
DPH working to expand staffing of the DOC, requiring collaboration and coordination across CCSF
 agencies.
DPH Public Health Labs received the 2019-nCoV test reagents from the CDC on Friday 02/07/20 and
have been working throughout the weekend to make testing possible within SF.
Approximately 15 SF clinic staff members have been trained to perform respirator fit tests, resulting
in approximately 50 staff members being fitted.
DPH Supply Unit/OSH developing plans to bring alternate N95 respirators into our supply chain. 

         https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/
 

CDC

CDC data on nCoV-2019 testing- 12 positive test results, 318 negative test results, and 68 pending
test results. 3.6 % of PUIs have come back positive. PUIs in 37 U.S. States and Territories.

On 02/08/20 the CDC reported the first U.S. citizen death in Wuhan, China.

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html

WHO (World Health Organization)-
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WHO reported- On 02/09/20 a Japanese cruise ship was harboured in Yokohama, Japan for a 14-day
quarantine period following confirmation of a case of 2019-nCoV.  64 individuals on board were
found to have been infected with 2019-nCoV. All individuals testing positive were disembarked and
admitted for medical care in infectious disease hospitals in the Yokohama area. Close contacts of the
infected passengers are asked to remain in quarantine for 14 days from last contact with a confirmed
case. Thus, the quarantine period will be extended beyond the 19 February as appropriate only for
close contacts of newly confirmed cases. Epidemiological and environmental investigations are
ongoing.

WHO developed and delivered 2 online trainings to support the response to the 2019-nCoV outbreak
that are available on the open learning
platform, OpenWHO.org. https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019

 

CDPH (California Department of Public Health)-

CDPH released their guidance for
CA Schools: http://www.publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/StateGuidanceForSchools.pdf

CDPH site- https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCOV2019.aspx

Johns Hopkins Data Dashboard (real time updates, data sources- WHO, CDC, NHC, and DXY.)
International data:

40,645 confirmed cases globally; 40,196 cases in mainland China; 908 deaths in mainland China
449 confirmed cases outside of China across 27 countries/regions (total includes 135 cases on
a Japanese cruise ship).

National (U.S.) data:
12 total confirmed cases in the U.S. No new confirmed cases reported.
https://gisanddata.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/bda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6

NOTE: Information may vary as events and reporting are rapidly evolving.

---
Public Health Emergency Preparedness & Response (PHEPR) Branch
San Francisco Department of Public Health
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Hanson, Jake@CDPH
To: CDPH CCLHO DL; CDPH CHEAC DL; Arakawa, G; Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Cheung, Michele (Orange # 2); Cole,

Thomas; Dean Sidelinger; DeBurgh, Kat@calhealthofficers.org; Ennis, Josh (Humboldt); Furst, Karen@San
Joaquin County; Goldstein, David (Contra Costa); Gunzenhauser, Jeffrey; Han, George@Santa Clara County;
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FYI
 

From: California Health Alert Network <noreply@everbridge.net> 
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 11:30 AM
To: Hanson, Jake@CDPH <Jake.Hanson@cdph.ca.gov>
Subject: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC Interim Guidance for 2019-nCoV: EMS Systems, 911
PSAPs, Cleaning Recommendations Related to People While Quarantined in Non-Home Residential
Settings, and Airport Ground Transport of People Subject to Mandatory Quarantine
 

The Centers for Disease Control has released four guidance documents regarding
the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV):  

Interim Guidance for Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Systems: Care and
transport by EMS presents unique challenges because of the nature of the setting,
enclosed space during transport, frequent need for rapid medical decision-making,
interventions with limited information, and a varying range of patient acuity and
jurisdictional healthcare resources. Please see the attached assessment flowchart.

911 Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) for 2019-nCoV in the United
States: Municipalities and local EMS authorities should coordinate with state and
local public health, PSAPs, and other emergency call centers to determine need for
modified caller queries about 2019-nCoV. The full interim guidance can be found
here:  https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-for-ems.html

Interim Cleaning Recommendations Related to People with Exposures to 2019
Novel Coronavirus Under Observation While Quarantined in Non-Home
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[bookmark: _Hlk31782215][bookmark: _Hlk31786654][bookmark: _Hlk31787975]Interim Guidance Related to the Airport Ground Transport of People Subject to Mandatory Quarantine for 2019 Novel Coronavirus Exposure



Background

[bookmark: _Hlk31782261]

Current knowledge about how 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) spreads is based partly on what is known about similar coronaviruses such as SARS and MERS and limited information about 2019-nCoV. Most often, person-to-person spread happens among close contacts (within about 6 feet). Person-to-person spread is thought to occur via respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs or sneezes, similar to how other respiratory viruses spread. These airborne droplets can cause infection if they are inhaled or land in the eyes, mouths or noses of people who are nearby. Currently, it is not known if a person can get 2019-nCoV by touching a surface or object that has the virus on it and then touching their own mouth, nose, or eyes. 



People with certain types of exposure to 2019-nCoV may be housed and quarantined for observation until 14 days after their exposure. The purpose of the observation period is to ensure they don’t infect others should they develop symptoms. Quarantine means people exposed to an infectious disease are separated from others during the observation period to prevent possible spread of infection. Some of these people who need observation are travelers who arrive at a US airport and will be housed at a location near the airport while they are in quarantine. Ground transportation (e.g., buses, etc.) is being used to transport the travelers and their luggage to the quarantine location. 



Purpose

This guidance is intended to address recommended worker protection practices for drivers of ground transport passenger vehicles and those workers who perform routine cleaning of the vehicles. The guidance may be updated as additional information becomes available.  



General Recommendations

Workers are providing transport for asymptomatic people from one location to another, such as from an airport terminal to a housing location. This guidance does not cover the cleaning of vehicles carrying symptomatic people who need medical evaluation for 2019-nCoV infection or people with laboratory-confirmed 2019-nCoV infection; these people will be transported by Emergency Medical Services. All exposed people will be screened for signs and symptoms of 2019-nCoV by public health officials before they are transported. 



· Employers should educate transportation workers to recognize the signs and symptoms of 2019-nCoV and provide instructions on what to do if workers develop signs and symptoms. 

· Workers should observe their health status daily beginning with the first time they transport a traveler who will be quarantined until 14 days after the last time they transported a quarantined traveler. Each worker should be instructed that the following symptoms need to be reported to a physician and the supervisor:  fever of (100.4◦F or higher), cough, difficulty breathing, or shortness of breath. 

· Hand hygiene  should be performed upon removal of disposable gloves by washing hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or using an alcohol-based hand sanitizer that contains 60 to 95% alcohol.  Drivers should have a supply of hand sanitizer for personal use on the bus since hand washing facilities may not be accessible.

· Workers should notify their team lead or safety officer if they have signs or symptoms of 2019-nCoV.



Traveler Loading and Transport Recommendations



· The driver should get off the vehicle and maintain a distance of at least 6 feet from quarantined passengers while they board the vehicle. The driver is not required to wear PPE while the passengers are boarding, as long as a distance of at least 6 feet is maintained. 

· Passengers board the vehicle and leave the front 2-4 rows vacant in order to maintain a distance of at least 6 feet from the driver’s seat. Prior to boarding, access to these rows should be blocked (e.g., taped off) so it is clear to the passengers while boarding that they are not to sit in these seats. Maintaining a distance of 6 feet is important as requiring PPE, an alternative control, can interfere with visibility for the driver. 

· No PPE is required for the driver if the driver maintains a distance of 6 feet or greater from quarantined passengers. This distance must be enforced at all times. 

· Upon arrival at the quarantine location, the passengers should remain seated until the driver gets off the bus. The driver should maintain a distance of at least 6 feet while passengers disembark. 

· Driver should refrain from touching handrails while boarding/disembarking bus. 



Recommendations for PPE



· Drivers should perform hand hygiene before putting on and after removing disposable gloves.

· Drivers will not transport quarantined passengers if a distance of 6 feet or greater cannot be maintained at all times. This is because additional PPE, specifically eye protection, could interfere with visibility of the driver.

· The driver should wear disposable gloves if there is the potential of touching surfaces the travelers may have touched while boarding and exiting the vehicle (e.g., a handrail). 

· The driver should remove potentially contaminated gloves and perform hand hygiene before sitting in the driver seat and operating the vehicle. 

· [bookmark: _GoBack]Upon completion of the transport mission, the driver should remove disposable gloves and any additional PPE in a manner as to avoid cross-contamination.  

· No special procedures are necessary to discard of disposable gloves (i.e., it can be thrown away in the regular trash).



Recommendations for Cleaning



Routine cleaning methods should be employed throughout the bus with special attention in certain areas as specified below:



· Wear non-sterile, impermeable, disposable gloves while cleaning the seating area. Dispose of gloves if they become damaged or soiled and when cleaning is done, as described below; never wash or reuse them.

· Frequently touched surfaces in the driver’s area and passenger compartment should be cleaned first with detergent and water and disinfected using an EPA-registered disinfectant in accordance with manufacturer’s recommendations.  Ensure that the surface is kept wet with the disinfectant for the full contact time recommended by the manufacturer.

· Surfaces should include the following:

· Armrests

· Seatbacks (the plastic and/or metal part)

· Tray tables

· Light and air controls

· Adjacent walls and windows

· Grab bars and poles

· No special procedures are necessary to discard of disposable gloves (i.e., it can be thrown away in the regular trash).












[bookmark: _Hlk31782215][bookmark: _Hlk31786654][bookmark: _Hlk31787975]Interim Cleaning Recommendations Related to People with Exposures to 2019 Novel Coronavirus Under Observation while Quarantined in Non-Home Residential Settings 



Background



Current knowledge about how 2019-nCoV spreads is based on what is known about early cases of 2019-nCoV infection and what is known about similar coronaviruses such as SARS and MERS. Most often, spread from person-to-person happens among close contacts (within about 6 feet). People with certain types of exposure to 2019-nCoV may be housed and quarantined for observation until 14 days after their exposure. The purpose of the observation period is to ensure they don’t develop symptoms and potentially infect others during this time. Quarantine means people exposed to an infectious disease are separated from others during the observation period to prevent possible spread of infection. Some people stay at home for the observation period, but others may be housed either separately or in groups in other residential settings.  This guidance addresses those individuals housed in designated, non-home residential settings.



Purpose



[bookmark: _Hlk31782357][bookmark: _Hlk31782437]This guidance is intended to address recommended cleaning and disinfection practices for non-home residential quarantine locations, as well as associated worker protection practices according to expected job tasks. 





General Recommendations for Non-home Residential Settings Housing People Exposed to 2019-nCoV 



· Employers should educate workers performing cleaning, laundry, and trash pick-up activities to recognize the signs and symptoms of 2019-nCoV and provide instructions on what to do if they develop signs and symptoms. 

· Workers should observe their health (fever or symptoms of respiratory illness) for 14 days beginning after the last time they had possible exposure to 2019-nCoV. Workers should be instructed that if they develop a fever (100.4◦F or higher), cough, or have difficulty breathing, symptoms should be reported to their supervisor and the local health department. The health department will provide guidance on what actions need to be taken.

· Employers should develop policies for worker protection and provide training to all workers on site prior to providing cleaning tasks. Training should include an understanding of when to use personal protective equipment (PPE), what PPE is necessary, how to properly don (put on), use, and doff (take off) PPE, and how to properly dispose of PPE. 

· Hand hygiene  should be performed often including upon removal of disposable gloves by washing hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or using an alcohol-based hand sanitizer that contains 60 to 95% alcohol. 

· Workers should report breaches in PPE (e.g., tear in gloves) or any potential exposures to their supervisor. 

· Employers must comply with OSHA’s standards on Bloodborne Pathogens (29 CFR 1910.1030), PPE (29 CFR 1910.132), and other requirements, including those established by state plans, whenever such requirements apply

· For cleaning and disinfection chemicals, always follow the manufacturer’s instructions (e.g., concentration, application method and contact time, PPE use) being used.



[bookmark: _Hlk31973952]Activities During the 14-Day Observation Period



Cleaning staff should be aware that people under observation during the 14-day observation period after exposure to 2019-nCoV may be infectious. For example, after they have been medically evaluated, symptomatic people who are not sick enough to stay in the hospital might go back to their quarantine location (e.g., hotel) to wait for laboratory results. 



Because cleaning staff will not by themselves know which of the people under observation may be infectious and which are not, cleaning of rooms in non-home residential settings, once rooms are vacated, should proceed only after consultation with public health officials. Before the rooms are cleaned, local public health departments should determine if rooms were occupied by potentially infectious people and advise if enhanced cleaning is therefore recommended. 





· Individuals being observed under quarantine should remain in their rooms. 

· Access to rooms where quarantined individuals are housed should be restricted to authorized public health officials. 

· Cleaning staff should not enter the rooms of individuals who are quarantined.

· Consider placing two carts, or something similar, outside the occupant’s room; one to set “clean” materials on and one to set “used” materials on. Carts should be labeled. Used materials for disposal and laundry should be set on the cart labeled as “dirty” materials. Meals, clean sheets/towels and toiletries should be set on the cart labeled as “clean.”

· Occupants of the rooms should place used towels and bedding that need to be laundered in a sturdy, leak-proof (e.g., plastic) bag that is tied shut and not re-opened while being transported to the laundry facility.  

· Bagged laundry should be transported to the laundry facility on a cart or something similar and contents carefully unloaded into machine with minimal agitation. The used bag carrying the laundry should be discarded as regular solid waste (e.g., municipal trash) as it is not considered biohazardous or regulated medical waste. 

· Disposable meal containers, cups, and utensils should be used, and discarded as trash.

· If a room occupant wishes to clean their room, regular cleaning products should be supplied for them.



Cleaning After the Room is Vacated if Person Remained Asymptomatic



Cleaning staff should follow normal preventive actions while at work and at home to help prevent the spread of respiratory viruses (such as seasonal flu), including recommended hand hygiene and avoiding touching eyes, nose, or mouth with unwashed hands. These recommendations will be updated if additional information becomes available. 



· [bookmark: _Hlk31894433][bookmark: _Hlk31792339]Clean all “high-touch” surfaces (e.g., counters, tabletops, doorknobs, light switches, bathroom fixtures, toilets, phones, keyboards, tablets, and bedside tables) according to routine cleaning practices using regular cleaning products. 

· No additional PPE (beyond what is normally worn by housekeeping staff) is necessary for handling luggage and cargo.

· No additional PPE is required beyond what is normally worn for regular housekeeping activities. 

· Management of laundry and waste should be handled in accordance with routine procedures.





Cleaning After the Room Is Vacated if a Symptomatic Person Was Present in the Room (Enhanced Cleaning)

Standard practice for pathogens spread by the airborne route (e.g., measles, tuberculosis) is to restrict unprotected (e.g., no respiratory protection) individuals from entering a vacated room until sufficient time has elapsed for enough air changes to remove potentially infectious particles (more information on clearance rates under differing ventilation conditions is available). We do not yet know how long 2019-nCoV remains infectious in the air. In the interim, it is reasonable to apply a similar time period before entering the sick person’s room without respiratory protection as that used for other pathogens spread by the airborne route (e.g., measles). 



Cleaning recommendations are based on existing CDC infection control guidance for preventing 2019-nCoV from spreading to others in homes and residential communities. This guidance contains information on how to clean surfaces in the community setting where a person confirmed to have, or being evaluated for, 2019-nCoV infection has been present. 



[bookmark: _GoBack]Disinfectant products with EPA-approved emerging viral pathogens claims are recommended for use against 2019-nCoV. This claim or a similar claim, will be made only through the following communications outlets: technical literature distributed exclusively to health care facilities, physicians, nurses and public health officials, “1-800” consumer information services, social media sites and company websites (non-label related). These products can be identified by the following claim:



· [Product name] has demonstrated effectiveness against viruses similar to 2019-nCoV on hard non-porous surfaces. Therefore, this product can be used against 2019-nCoV when used in accordance with the directions for use against [name of supporting virus] on hard, non-porous surfaces.” 

· Specific claims for “2019-nCoV” will not appear on the product or master label.

· Additional information about EPA-approved emerging viral pathogens claims can be found here:  https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/emerging-viral-pathogen-guidance-antimicrobial-pesticides 

· If there are no available EPA-registered products that have an approved emerging viral pathogen claim for 2019-nCoV, products with label claims against human coronaviruses should be used according to label instructions.



· In addition to disposable gloves used during routine cleaning, disposable gowns should be worn when cleaning quarantine locations after identification of someone as symptomatic during the 14-day observation period. PPE should be compatible with the disinfectant products being used; additional PPE might be required based on the cleaning/disinfection products being used and whether or not there is a risk for splash. Gloves and gowns should be removed carefully to avoid cross-contamination of themselves and the surrounding area. 

· Hand hygiene  should be performed upon removal and disposal of gloves by washing hands often with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or using an alcohol-based hand sanitizer that contains 60 to 95% alcohol. 



Clean and disinfect all “high-touch” surfaces in quarantine locations (e.g., counters, tabletops, doorknobs, light switches, bathroom fixtures, toilets, phones, keyboards, tablets, and bedside tables) 

according to instructions described for the EPA-registered product above. 



[bookmark: _Hlk31792630]If visible contamination (e.g., a body substance such as blood or body fluids) is present, the basic principles for blood or body substance spill management are outlined in the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Bloodborne Pathogen Standard. CDC guidelines recommend removal of bulk spill matter, cleaning the site, and then disinfecting the site with the above EPA-registered disinfectant. For soft (porous) surfaces such as carpeted floor, rugs, and drapes, remove visible contamination if present, and launder in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. Clean and disinfect unremovable materials with products mentioned above and allow to air dry.



When cleaning is completed, collect soiled material and PPE in a sturdy, leak-proof (e.g., plastic) bag that is tied shut and not reopened. This waste can go to the regular solid waste stream (e.g., municipal trash) as it is not biohazardous or regulated medical waste. Porous materials that will be laundered can be transported to the laundry facility in the same manner. Immediately clean hands with soap and water or an alcohol-based hand sanitizer and avoid touching the face with gloved or unwashed hands.



No additional cleaning is needed for supply and return ventilation registers or filtration systems for the building.



[bookmark: _Hlk31788292]No additional treatment of wastewater is needed before discharge to sanitary sewer.












Flowchart to Identify and Assess 2019 Novel Coronavirus
For the evaluation of patients who may be ill with or who may have been 
exposed to 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) 


U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services 
Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention 


* �Documentation of laboratory-confirmation of 2019-nCoV may not be possible for travelers or persons caring for patients in other countries. For more 
clarification on the definition for close contact see CDC’s Interim Guidance for Healthcare Professionals: www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/hcp/
clinical-criteria.html 


A.
Identify


if in the past 14 days since first onset of symptoms a history of either


Travel to China OR Close contact with
a person known to have 


2019-nCoV illness*


B.
AND the person has


Fever or symptoms of lower respiratory illness 
(e.g., cough or shortness of breath)


if both exposure and illness are present 



1.


Isolate
� Place facemask on patient
� Isolate the patient in a private room or a separate area
� Wear appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE)


2.
Assess clinical status


EXAM
Is fever present?


�� Subjective?
�� Measured? _____°C/F


Is respiratory illness present? 
�� Cough?
�� Shortness of breath?


3.
Inform


� Contact health department to report at-risk patients and their clinical status
� Assess need to collect specimens to test for 2019-nCoV
� Decide disposition


If discharged to home 



Instruct patient


As needed depending on severity of illness and health department consultation


� Home care guidance
� Home isolation guidance


Advise patient
If the patient develops new or worsening fever or respiratory illness


� Call clinic to determine if reevaluation is needed
� If reevaluation is needed call ahead and wear facemask



https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/hcp/clinical-criteria.html

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/hcp/clinical-criteria.html









Residential Settings: This guidance is intended to address recommended cleaning
and disinfection practices for non-home residential quarantine locations, as well as
associated worker protection practices according to expected job tasks. Please see
attached interim recommendations.

Interim Guidance Related to the Airport Ground Transport of People Subject to
Mandatory Quarantine for 2019 Novel Coronavirus Exposure: is intended to
address recommended worker protection practices for drivers of ground transport
passenger vehicles and those workers who perform routine cleaning of the vehicles.
Please see attached interim guidance attached.

 

 



From: California Health Alert Network
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC Interim Guidance for 2019-nCoV: EMS Systems, 911 PSAPs, Cleaning

Recommendations Related to People While Quarantined in Non-Home Residential Settings, and Airport Ground
Transport of People Subject to Mandatory Quarantine

Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 11:31:10 AM
Attachments: 20200208InterimGuidanceforAirport+GroundTransport_Final.docx

20200208EnviroCleaningRecs_Final.docx
2-09-20+2019-nCoV-identify-assess-flowchart-508.pdf

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

mailto:cahaninfo@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-for-ems.html

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











From: CCSF Department of Emergency Management
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: DEM 24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report - 02-10-2020
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 10:47:04 AM

Report Date: 02-10-2020

24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report
_________

Priority Information / Current Notable Local Incidents:

-NOAA tide predictions indicate tides exceeding 7 feet through Monday, February 10. The Port of San Francisco is prepared for any potential impacts.
Tide information can be found here: https://tidesandcurrents.noaa.gov/noaatidepredictions.html?
id=9414317&units=standard&bdate=20200201&edate=20200229&timezone=LST/LDT&clock=12hour&datum=MLLW&interval=hilo&action=monthlychart

- The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has confirmed 6 cases of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus in California:

2 – Santa Clara County
2 – San Benito County
1 – Los Angeles County
1 – Orange County

The Department of Homeland Security issued supplemental instructions for inbound flights with individuals who have been in China. For more
information, see: https://www.dhs.gov/news/2020/02/02/dhs-issues-supplemental-instructions-inbound-flights-individuals-who-have-been-china

-US Health and Human Services has declared a public health emergency. For more information, see:
https://www.hhs.gov/about/news/2020/01/31/secretary-azar-declares-public-health-emergency-us-2019-novel-coronavirus.html

• Additional coronavirus information: https://.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html or by calling 800-CDC- INFO | (800-232-4636) | TTY: (888) 232-
6348 

• CDC information for healthcare providers: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/guidance-hcp.html 

• Information for San Francisco residents: 
https://www.sf72.org/
https://www.sfdph.org/dph/

__________

DEM Contact Information:

Watch Center Operations
Mon-Sun, 0600-2230 Hours 
- Primary (415) 260-2591
- Desk (415) 558-2738
- Email: demdutyofficer@sfgov.org

Duty Officer (After Hours)
Mon-Sun, 2230-0600 Hours 
- Current Duty Officer: Tom Chin / 415-260-2591

Manager On Call (MOC): Francis Zamora - 415-558-3830 - francis.zamora@sfgov.org
Public Information Officer: Victor Lim - 415-748-0028 - victor.lim@sfgov.org / 415-558-2712

Current EOC Status: Level 3
EOC Activation Levels:

Level   EOC Status  Description   Time 

 DO / MOC   EOC Standby   Duty Officer / Manager On-Call   After-hours & Weekends 

3 EOC Open Watch Center
(Monitoring) 

0600-2230; daily 
(excluding holidays)

2 EOC Open Partial w/ 1st Response 
Elements & Support As Needed

1 EOC Open Full Activation 
(All Sections and Positions)   As Needed

mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org


___________

Weather Summary and Forecast:

Today – Sunny, with a high near 66. North wind 6 to 10 mph.

Tonight – Clear, with a low around 48. Light and variable wind becoming north around 6 mph.

Tomorrow – Sunny, with a high near 66. North northeast wind 5 to 8 mph becoming northwest in the afternoon.

Air Quality Index (AQI):
Current: 26
Forecast: 46
www.airnow.gov

___________

Happening Today - Special Events for 02-10-2020:

Monday (2/10/2020)
- Warriors vs Heat, from 7:30pm to 11:00pm @ Chase Center
___________

Happening This Week - Special Events from 02-11-2020 to 02-17-2020:

Tuesday (2/11/2020)
-No large events scheduled

Wednesday (2/12/2020)
-Film shoot on Fulton Street between Hyde and Larkin

Thursday (2/13/2020)
-Film shoot on Fulton Street between Hyde and Larkin and on Ellis Street between Leavenworth and Jones

Friday (2/14/2020)
-Film shoot on Fulton Street between Hyde and Larkin

Saturday (2/15/2020)
-Film shoot on Fulton Street between Hyde and Larkin

Sunday (2/16/2020)
-Film shoot on Fulton Street between Hyde and Larkin

Monday (2/17/2020)
-Film shoot on Fulton Street between Hyde and Larkin
___________

Critical Branch Updates:

CCSF Transportation Branch:
- SFMTA Muni Alert messages: https://www.sfmta.com

CCSF Infrastructure Branch:
- Nothing significant to report.

CCSF Public Safety Branch:
- Nothing significant to report.

CCSF Health and Human Services Branch:
- The San Francisco Department of Public Health continues to coordinate with partner agencies to monitor the Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV)
situation.

CCSF Community Branch:
- Nothing significant to report.
__________

Domestic and International News:

http://www.airnow.gov/


Despite coronavirus concerns, thousands turn out for SF Chinese New Year parade

Despite some concern this week that the coronavirus scare would keep people away, thousands still showed up to the Chinese Lunar New Year
Parade. It's an event bursting with sound, color, and energy. San Francisco's parade is the largest of its kind outside of Asia, attracting a diverse crowd
of more than a hundred thousand each year. "I love all the excitement and the energy and I love celebrating our culture," said Gloria Lee. There were
concerns some people wouldn't show up this year, due to fear of the coronavirus. But with nearly 2,400 bleacher seat tickets sold -- similar to last year -
- organizers say they've seen no negative effect on attendance. "If there is, you could have fooled me because everyone out here it looks like they're
enjoying themselves, ready for a good time, and yeah, there doesn't seem to be any kind of impact at all," said William Gee, parade organizer.
Something new this year, nearly one hundred young dancers wearing gowns representing the different provinces in China. They were part of the 1.3
mile  procession, meant to be a form of visual and auditory education. "It's the atmosphere that we want to try to invite everyone to learn more about
Chinese culture and we're happy to share it with everyone," said Gee. That goal seemed to be fulfilled with a woman who drove from Sacramento to be
part of the celebration. "I love embracing, learning, experiencing like new cultures and experiences, so it's absolutely amazing, and I'm learning so
much," said Chevelle. Whether watching from the sidelines or the vantage point of one of the 4,200 participants, it's an energy filled night of excitement.
"It feels great, amazing, all the adrenaline, amazing," said parade participant Jeslyn Chun. This year Organizers had to work extra hard leading up to
the parade to dispel fears about the coronavirus. It appears that work paid off.  Miss the 2020 Southwest Airlines Chinese New Year Parade? Watch
the entire event here.

https://www.ktvu.com/news/despite-coronavirus-concerns-thousands-turn-out-for-sf-chinese-new-year-parade

__________

65 More Coronavirus Cases On Diamond Princess Cruise Ship Stuck In Japan

There are 65 new coronavirus cases aboard the Diamond Princess cruise ship that's been under a quarantine since last week, Japan's health ministry
announced Monday. With the latest cases, a total of 135 people from the ship have been confirmed to have the respiratory virus. Those newly
diagnosed include 45 Japanese and 11 Americans, as well as smaller numbers of people from Australia, Canada, England, the Philippines and
Ukraine, according to Princess Cruises. Even before the latest cases were confirmed, the cruise ship already represented the largest cluster of Wuhan
coronavirus cases outside mainland China. The virus, identified as 2019-nCoV, has killed more than 900 people in China, where more than 40,000
people have been infected since it emerged in the city of Wuhan, in Hubei province. There are 65 new coronavirus cases aboard the Diamond Princess
cruise ship that's been under a quarantine since last week, Japan's health ministry announced Monday. With the latest cases, a total of 135 people
from the ship have been confirmed to have the respiratory virus. Those newly diagnosed include 45 Japanese and 11 Americans, as well as smaller
numbers of people from Australia, Canada, England, the Philippines and Ukraine, according to Princess Cruises. Even before the latest cases were
confirmed, the cruise ship already represented the largest cluster of Wuhan coronavirus cases outside mainland China. The virus, identified as 2019-
nCoV, has killed more than 900 people in China, where more than 40,000 people have been infected since it emerged in the city of Wuhan, in Hubei
province.

https://www.npr.org/sections/goatsandsoda/2020/02/10/804440928/diamond-princess-cruise-ship-has-65-more-coronavirus-cases-in-japan

__________

Sydney's heaviest rain in 30 years put out bush fires that have been burning for months

Heavy rainfall in Australia's New South Wales has forced the evacuation of several towns and the closure of more than 50 schools, but also
extinguished some of the persistent bush fires that have devastated the state. The country's Bureau of Meteorology said the region has seen more than
200 millimeters (7.9 inches) of rainfall in the past 24 hours. In Sydney, preliminary information from the bureau showed that 391.6 millimeters (15.4
inches) of rain fell over the past four days -- the city's heaviest rainfall since 1990. According to New South Wales Rural Fire Service media officer
James Morris, the torrential rain helped put out the Currowan fire on Saturday. That particular fire burned 499,621 hectares of land over 74 days. Morris
said the ongoing rain was expected to put out the five remaining uncontrolled fires in the state.

https://www.cnn.com/2020/02/10/asia/sydney-rain-fires-australia-intl/index.html

___________

The City & County of San Francisco (CCSF) Department of Emergency Management’s Duty Officer Program compiles and disseminates this product in order to maintain situational
awareness among public safety partners.

CCSF Alert is owned and operated by the City and County of San Francisco. To change the way you receive CCSF Alerts, contact your Department's Disaster Preparedness Coordinator.

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
NIOSH; CDC IMS 2019 NCOV Response PPE Requirements

Subject: CDC Returning Traveler Discussion for F11 Jurisdictions
Attachments: 20200208 Enviro Cleaning Recs_Final.docx

20200208 Interim Guidance for Airport Ground Transport_Final.docx

   This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

 

CDC Returning Traveler Discussion for F11 Jurisdictions

CDC's 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) response team will host a call from 3 p.m. to 4 p.m. EST for the duration of this week, to discuss plans
for returning travelers within the eleven funneling jurisdictions, status reports and concerns. Feel free to include your state epidemiologist,
preparedness director, state/city emergency management official, and other core team members.

Bridgeline: 1(888)455-7719

Passcode: 5108469

Attached, please see attached CDC guidance which was developed for the public health departments serving the F11 locations. We request you keep
this guidance CLOSE HOLD, as the following documents are not posted on CDC's nCoV response webpage. At this time, we are only sharing these
documents with F11. ​Lastly, please be mindful this is interim guidance and as the response continues and we learn more guidance will be adjusted
accordingly.

 
1. “Interim Cleaning Recommendations Related to People with Exposures to 2019 Novel Coronavirus Under Observation while Quarantined in Non-
Home Residential Settings - This guidance is intended to address recommended cleaning and disinfection practices for non-home residential quarantine
locations, as well as associated worker protection practices according to expected job tasks.

 

 
2. “Interim Guidance Related to the Airport Ground Transport of People Subject to Mandatory Quarantine for 2019 Novel Coronavirus Exposure” - is
intended to address recommended worker protection practices for drivers of ground transport passenger vehicles and those workers who perform
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







routine cleaning of the vehicles.
 

 

State Coordination Task Force (SCTF)

Center for Preparedness and Response (CPR)

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC <http://www.cdc.gov/> )
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
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:45:35 AM
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Great.   I can be available now and at these times today:

Now until 9am
10:30-11a
Noon-1pm
After 2pm

My biggest questions are:

Meeting with SFUSD: Your availability to meet with SFUSD Monday-Wed?  Where would
you like to meet at SFDPH, SFUSD on Quinatara (School  Health), SFUSD on Franklin
(walking distance in Civic Center)?  Who else should we include  (Janice, David Stier, )
/activate?
Adjustments to SFUSD Announcement   https://www.sfusd.edu/announcements/2020-
01-27-update-cold-flu-and-coronavirus .   
Any further clarifications for SFUSD regarding students who returned before February
3rd? 

The San Francisco Department of Public Health recommends that
travelers who returned from China BEFORE February 3,monitor
themselves for 14 days after their last day in China. If symptoms (fever,
cough, or shortness of breath) occur during that time, please contact
your health provider, inform them of your travel history and self-
isolate at home pending their advice. Do not go to work, school or
social events if you have these symptoms. 
  https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-
novel-coronavirus/    (As 1/27 was 14 days ago, this would mean for
travelers who returned the week of 1/27 - 2/2) 
If symptoms occur at school, follow CDPH guidance:

Separate the individual from others as much as possible and 
Make arrangements for the individual to go home, and
Contact your local health department immediately
.
(The issues to consider include:)

How to include language on face mask?  It makes sense to
add that language to me.   However, considerations for

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=F99A63DAA440401389225BCC93DEC198-CURTIS CHAN
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
https://www.sfusd.edu/announcements/2020-01-27-update-cold-flu-and-coronavirus
https://www.sfusd.edu/announcements/2020-01-27-update-cold-flu-and-coronavirus
https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/
https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/

| have or | had fever!,
cough, or shortness of
breath within 14 days of
leaving China

Call your medical provider
and let them know your
travel history and that you
have been self-
monitoring.

Stay at home and do not go to
school or work. Avoid contact
with others and public activities
by practicing social distancing#

(SEE BELOW) until you no longer
have these symptoms for 24

Do not fly on commercial
flights or take local public
transportation (e.g., bus,
subway, taxi, ride share
like Lyft and Uber) until
you no longer have

hours®

symptoms for 24 hours®
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Summary

To prevent widespread illness in your child’s school, we recommend that your child stay home from school if experiencing flu or cold symptoms.

Audience

 

Families

Announcement Description

Last updated Feb. 5, 2020

To prevent widespread illness in your child’s school, we recommend that your child stay home from school if experiencing flu or cold symptoms. 

You may have heard of the “coronavirus outbreak” in Asia and that there have been some cases in the U.S. 

SFUSD officials work closely with the Department of Public Health and we are monitoring the situation and will provide updates as needed. 

The coronavirus is in the family of viruses that cause the common cold, so symptoms and prevention measures are similar. To decide whether or not to send your child to school and whether or not to seek medical help, please consider the following:

Consider keeping your child at home if he or she has any of the following symptoms:

· Very stuffy or runny nose and/or cough

· Mild sore throat

· Headache

· Stomachache

Definitely keep your child at home for treatment and observation if he or she has any of these symptoms, or is under self-quarantine due to recent travel from China:

· Fever greater than 100.4 degrees (your child may return to school only after his or her temperature has been below 100 degrees for 24 hours without medication)

· Vomiting (even once) or diarrhea

· General feelings of fatigue, discomfort, weakness or muscle aches, chills

· Frequent wet or croupy cough

When to contact your healthcare provider: If your child continues to have symptoms beyond 10 days, has severe or unusual symptoms, or is in a high risk category (history of asthma or other respiratory condition, diabetes, heart disease, or being immunocompromised younger than 5 years of age), seek medical advice. 

· If someone has fever, cough or difficulty breathing, and has recently traveled from China or had been in close contact with someone who is under investigation for or confirmed to be infected with Coronavirus, stay home, wear a mask and call your healthcare provider. 

To help prevent cold, flu, and coronavirus:

· Wash hands frequently

· Do not touch eyes, nose or mouth

· Cover mouth and nose when sneezing or coughing, using a  tissue, sleeve or facemask

· Avoid close contact with people who are sick

· Get a flu shot (recommended for everyone 6 months of age and older)

If your child has cold and flu symptoms, please observe your child at home before deciding whether or not to send them to school. Your child should be physically able to participate in all school activities upon return to school.  Keeping a sick child at home will minimize the spread of such viral infections in the classroom. Thank you for helping prevent the spread of illness at school!

Update for Students and Families Related to Coronavirus

​​​Due to the federal public health emergency issued February 2, 2020, SFUSD has updated our guidelines for SFUSD families:

Students who returned from travel to China within the last 14 days and arrived in the US before 2 pm, February 2, 2020:

· Students who have been symptom-free for 24 hours or have medical clearance can return to school.

· If, during the 14 days of return from travel to China, the student develops symptoms such as cough, fever, or difficulty breathing, the student should stay home and contact their health care provider. The student can return to school AFTER they have been symptom-free for 24 hours or have medical clearance.

Students who returned from travel to China after 2 pm on February 2, 2020:

· Students are required to comply with the 14-day self-quarantine. Students cannot return to school prior to the end of the 14-day self-quarantine, even if a student does not have symptoms. If a student has symptoms such as cough, fever, or difficulty breathing within the 14 days, students should contact their health care provider and should not return to school until after the 14-day quarantine and they have been symptom-free for 24 hours, or they have medical clearance.
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Summary 


To prevent widespread illness in your child’s school, we recommend that your child stay home from school if 
experiencing flu or cold symptoms. 


Audience 


  
Families 


Announcement Description 


Last updated Feb. 5, 2020 


To prevent widespread illness in your child’s school, we recommend that your child stay home from 
school if experiencing flu or cold symptoms.  


You may have heard of the “coronavirus outbreak” in Asia and that there have been some cases in 
the U.S.  


SFUSD officials work closely with the Department of Public Health and we are monitoring the 
situation and will provide updates as needed.  


The coronavirus is in the family of viruses that cause the common cold, so symptoms and prevention 
measures are similar. To decide whether or not to send your child to school and whether or not to 
seek medical help, please consider the following: 


Consider keeping your child at home if he or she has any of the following symptoms: 


 Very stuffy or runny nose and/or cough 


 Mild sore throat 


 Headache 


 Stomachache 


Definitely keep your child at home for treatment and observation if he or she has any of these 
symptoms, or is under self-quarantine due to recent travel from China: 


 Fever greater than 100.4 degrees (your child may return to school only after his or her temperature has 
been below 100 degrees for 24 hours without medication) 


 Vomiting (even once) or diarrhea 


 General feelings of fatigue, discomfort, weakness or muscle aches, chills 


 Frequent wet or croupy cough 


When to contact your healthcare provider: If your child continues to have symptoms beyond 10 
days, has severe or unusual symptoms, or is in a high risk category (history of asthma or other 
respiratory condition, diabetes, heart disease, or being immunocompromised younger than 5 years of 
age), seek medical advice.  
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 If someone has fever, cough or difficulty breathing, and has recently traveled from China or had been in 
close contact with someone who is under investigation for or confirmed to be infected with Coronavirus, 
stay home, wear a mask and call your healthcare provider.  


To help prevent cold, flu, and coronavirus: 


 Wash hands frequently 


 Do not touch eyes, nose or mouth 


 Cover mouth and nose when sneezing or coughing, using a  tissue, sleeve or facemask 


 Avoid close contact with people who are sick 


 Get a flu shot (recommended for everyone 6 months of age and older) 


If your child has cold and flu symptoms, please observe your child at home before deciding 
whether or not to send them to school. Your child should be physically able to participate in all school 
activities upon return to school.  Keeping a sick child at home will minimize the spread of such viral 
infections in the classroom. Thank you for helping prevent the spread of illness at school! 


Update for Students and Families Related to Coronavirus 


Due to the federal public health emergency issued February 2, 2020, SFUSD has updated our 
guidelines for SFUSD families: 
 
Students who returned from travel to China within the last 14 days and arrived in the US before 2 pm, 
February 2, 2020: 


 Students who have been symptom-free for 24 hours or have medical clearance can return to school. 


 If, during the 14 days of return from travel to China, the student develops symptoms such as cough, 
fever, or difficulty breathing, the student should stay home and contact their health care provider. The 
student can return to school AFTER they have been symptom-free for 24 hours or have medical 
clearance. 


Students who returned from travel to China after 2 pm on February 2, 2020: 


 Students are required to comply with the 14-day self-quarantine. Students cannot return to school prior 
to the end of the 14-day self-quarantine, even if a student does not have symptoms. If a student has 
symptoms such as cough, fever, or difficulty breathing within the 14 days, students should contact their 
health care provider and should not return to school until after the 14-day quarantine and they have 
been symptom-free for 24 hours, or they have medical clearance. 
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


 







written recommendations include: availability, type of
facemask, severity of symptoms, stigma)
Notify doctor (CDC and SFDPH) and/or notify health
department

I think that both should be done
School principals notify SFUSD Health, SFUSD notifies SFDPH.

SFDPH should be prepared to:
Interview patient/school about exposures
Definitions of contacts to inform
Communications to contacts/school

Thanks Tomas!

 

Curtis Chan, MD, MPH
Deputy Health Officer
Medical Director of Maternal, Child & Adolescent Health
San Francisco Department of Public Health
30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 260b, SF, CA 94102
Main Line: (415)575-5670.  Direct Line: (415)575-5672
www.sfdph.org/mch    Curtis.Chan@sfdph.org 
Pronouns: he/him/his

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:59 PM
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
We need to connect Mon, esp since you will be out soon. 

Tomas
p.s. plz excuse typos 
------
NOTICE: This message and attachments may contain confidential or privileged information. If
you are not the intended recipient, disclosure, copying, use, or distribution of the information
is prohibited. Notify the sender immediately and delete all information.

http://www.sfdph.org/mch
mailto:Curtis.Chan@sfdph.org


From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:50 PM
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
We need to meet with them to discuss how to proceed.

It's challenging to this by email.

Tomas
p.s. plz excuse typos 

--
Tomás J. Aragón, MD, DrPH
415-515-5734 (cell); 415-554-2898 (office)
Health Officer, City & County of San Francisco
Director, Population Health Division (PHD)
San Francisco Department of Public Health
101 Grove St., Rm 308, SF CA 94102
----
"Radical transformational leadership is leading change from the universal values of dignity,
equity, compassion and humility to transform self, people, systems and cultures towards equity
and sustainable results." (learn more http://bit.ly/phd-lead)  
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

From: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:37 PM
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
Tomas:

Thanks for replying to Mary and your thoughtful leadership.  Are those steps written
anywhere?

Are those 5 points you listed referenced elsewhere in documents?

http://bit.ly/phd-lead


put face mask on them,
separate them from others,
call parents to take them home,
they should notify their doctor, and 
contact the health department (415-554-2830)

There seem to be the steps for travelers who returned before February 3rd:
https://www.sfcdcp.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Interim-Guidance-on-Monitoring-and-
Movement-for-San-Franciscans-and-Travel-Before-Feb-3rd-SFDPH-FINAL-02.07.2020.pdfThere
are several additional steps

I think the "placing face mask" and "isolating symptomatic students" is reasonable, but how
would you like this in writing to schools  (e.g., to school nurses or to families)?   Is this for
cough and fever, or "any symptoms".   Are we asking anyone who returned before and after
February 3rd to call 554-2830 if they have any symptoms?  Or, are they supposed to contact
their medical provider.  PUIs would be then be reported to health department.

This is a complex situation that requires discussion with the school district.    How soon do you
want your listed 5 points to be implemented?

Thank you Tomas.

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

https://www.sfcdcp.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Interim-Guidance-on-Monitoring-and-Movement-for-San-Franciscans-and-Travel-Before-Feb-3rd-SFDPH-FINAL-02.07.2020.pdf
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
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 8:28 PM
To: Jue, Mary <juem@sfusd.edu>; Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Cc: Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu) <coatesk@sfusd.edu>; Sop, Anna (DEM)
<anna.sop@sfgov.org>; Mele Lau-Smith <LauSmithM@sfusd.edu>; Louie, Janice (DPH)
<janice.louie@sfdph.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH)
<susan.philip@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
Hi Mary, see my responses in green.

1. The statement "The risk of exposure to this new coronavirus in China is increasing over
time" is alarming and may need to be qualified. In my mind, it seems to conflict with the
statement about the risk in the US being low. Is this statement actually true in the US, given
the new containment measures? 

The first sentence applies to China, not US.

2. The position on facemasks is confusing because thought it's stated "face masks are most
useful for preventing disease spread when they are worn by people who have symptoms," face
masks is not mentioned in the recommendations for schools when a student who recently
traveled from China comes down with symptoms.

Let's discuss to clarify. Here is summary: If a students develops symptoms *and* was in
mainland China within the past 14 days (these would be those that arrived before 2/3), then

put face mask on them,
separate them from others,
call parents to take them home,
they should notify their doctor, and 
contact the health department (415-554-2830)

3. It's mentioned to contact "your health department" but probably best if a specific
department or phone number is provided.

See above.

4. Could there be more specific guidance for how emergency plans should be updated for this
situation?

There will be many more questions, so we need to set up regular meeting. I will have our
Plans staff work on this.

Tomas
p.s. plz excuse typos 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments
from untrusted sources.

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

From: Jue, Mary <juem@sfusd.edu>
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 7:30 PM
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Cc: Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu) <coatesk@sfusd.edu>; Sop, Anna (DEM)
<anna.sop@sfgov.org>; Mele Lau-Smith <LauSmithM@sfusd.edu>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
<tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 

 
Curtis and Tomas - A couple of comments/questions on the new guidance
documents.

1. The statement "The risk of exposure to this new coronavirus in China is
increasing over time" is alarming and may need to be qualified. In my mind, it
seems to conflict with the statement about the risk in the US being low. Is this
statement actually true in the US, given the new containment measures? 
2. The position on facemasks is confusing because thought it's stated "face masks
are most useful for preventing disease spread when they are worn by people who
have symptoms," face masks is not mentioned in the recommendations for schools
when a student who recently traveled from China comes down with symptoms.
3. It's mentioned to contact "your health department" but probably best if a specific
department or phone number is provided.

http://bit.ly/phd-lead


4. Could there be more specific guidance for how emergency plans should be
updated for this situation?

Thank you!

Mary Jue, MSN, RN, Credentialed School Nurse
Director

School Health Programs
Student, Family & Community Support Department, SFUSD
1515 Quintara Street, SF, CA 94116
415-242-2615
fax 415-242-2618

juem@sfusd.edu
www.healthiersf.org

Please "Reply All" only if everyone on the email needs to know. Otherwise, please only reply
to me! Thank you!

On Sun, Feb 9, 2020 at 6:47 PM Mary Jue <juem@sfusd.edu> wrote:
Thank you, Curtis! I will review the new guidelines and discuss any needed updates or
actions with the SFUSD team!

Mary

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 7, 2020, at 8:35 PM, Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
wrote:

﻿
Dear SFUSD Health Team:

Thank you very much for your great work in communicating with your school
district's students and families; and your ongoing communications with the San
Francisco Department of Public Health.   We appreciate all of your excellent
questions and thoughtful approaches to some complex cases.   

Today, Dr. Aragon and I discussed the excellent response of SFUSD, the letter
that SFUSD sent to families (last updated February 5th).   As you can compare
with other letters sent from school districts/ health departments, the SFUSD
letter was comprehensive and very clear.  
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As I was relating the draft CDPH guidance with you earlier, local health
departments have been planning with each other and with CDPH to respond to
this emerging threat of an epidemic.   The Chinese and U.S. governments 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov have issued an unprecedented
scale of quarantine orders, so public health experts are still determining how
such orders and guidelines should be recommended.   The California
Department of Public Health guideline that planned for release on Wednesday-
Thursday was finally released this evening.   I am forwarding it to you now.

As you can read, the new CDPH guidance is very much aligned with the SFUSD
(2/5/2020) and SFDPH www.sfcdcp.org  guidance.  The new CDPH guidance
emphasizes some actionable steps that schools may need to prepare for or
consider include:

Separate sick students and staff from others until they can go home.
When feasible, identify a “sick room” through which others do not
regularly pass.
A note about face masks: face masks are most useful for preventing
disease spread when they are worn by people who have symptoms. This
is why people are asked to wear a mask at doctors’ offices and hospitals if
they are coughing or sneezing.
Update emergency plans to ensure they are in place before an outbreak
occurs.
Please note that there have been reports of students and others being
stigmatized. We urge schools to ensure students’ and staffs’ privacy to
help prevent discrimination.

Whereas you've helped lead an excellent response for our many public school
students and their families in San Francisco in this first-week of responding to
the federal quarantine guidelines, I think that school  "emergency plans"  (e.g.,
for infectious diseases and pandemics) will be very useful to consider soon.   
With people continuing to return from China and more capacity for laboratories
to test 2019 Novel Coronavirus, there is an increasing possibility of cases in San
Francisco and even the virus circulating.   Plans for student/staff safety and the
continuity of education would need to be implemented.  These are issues that
all schools will need to grapple with in California, so I look forward to discussing
with you and supporting best-practices with you.    

I'm hopeful that issues are stable at the school district over the weekend, but
feel free to call me anytime on my personal cell 650-580-2335.

Thank you so much for protecting the health and safety of students in San

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov
http://www.sfcdcp.org/


Francisco.

In health,
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
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 7:36 PM
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Subject: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance
for Schools and School Districts
 

The California Department of Public Health is releasing guidance for K-12
schools and school districts regarding the 2019 Novel Coronavirus. 

Please see attached PDF for guidance.

<Coronavirus+K-12+Schools+Guidance+2_7_20+FINAL.pdf>
<School_nCoV_CDPHdraft_SFUSD_Ala_SCC_Marin_ContraCosta.pdf>
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From: Jue, Mary
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Chan, Curtis (DPH); Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu); Sop, Anna (DEM); Mele Lau-Smith; Louie, Janice

(DPH); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH)
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:29:11 AM

Definitely! Curtis and I have a meeting scheduled tomorrow for our annual
discussion of our clinical protocols, and plan to touch on coronavirus guidelines, but
I can also make myself available to meet another time for a fuller conversation.  Just
let me know what dates and times are best for you all.

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

On Sun, Feb 9, 2020 at 9:54 PM Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org> wrote:
Mary, Let's meet to discuss what works for SFUSD. My response was based on applying core
principles. What you implement might be different but achieve the same goal.

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
equity, compassion and humility to transform self, people, systems and cultures towards
equity and sustainable results." (learn more http://bit.ly/phd-lead)  
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------
NOTICE: This message and attachments may contain confidential or privileged information.
If you are not the intended recipient, disclosure, copying, use, or distribution of the
information is prohibited. Notify the sender immediately and delete all information.

From: Jue, Mary <juem@sfusd.edu>
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:03 PM
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Cc: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>; Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu)
<coatesk@sfusd.edu>; Sop, Anna (DEM) <anna.sop@sfgov.org>; Mele Lau-Smith
<LauSmithM@sfusd.edu>; Louie, Janice (DPH) <janice.louie@sfdph.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH)
<juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
Thanks for your reply, Tomas! 
1. My mistake. My first read was that the risk of exposure was increasing all over,
not just in China.
2. I agree with the recommendations and we have been putting them into practice.
But the document does not list among the actions to take with recent arrivals
(before 2/3/20) the use of facemasks or calling their health care provider so maybe
those steps should be added. 
3. Thanks for the specific DPH # to call. 
4. I look forward to speaking further with Curtis about this.  I have a scheduled
meeting with him on Tuesday!

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

On Sun, Feb 9, 2020 at 8:29 PM Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org> wrote:
Hi Mary, see my responses in green.
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1. The statement "The risk of exposure to this new coronavirus in China is increasing over
time" is alarming and may need to be qualified. In my mind, it seems to conflict with the
statement about the risk in the US being low. Is this statement actually true in the US,
given the new containment measures? 

The first sentence applies to China, not US.

2. The position on facemasks is confusing because thought it's stated "face masks are most
useful for preventing disease spread when they are worn by people who have symptoms,"
face masks is not mentioned in the recommendations for schools when a student who
recently traveled from China comes down with symptoms.

Let's discuss to clarify. Here is summary: If a students develops symptoms *and* was in
mainland China within the past 14 days (these would be those that arrived before 2/3),
then

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

4. Could there be more specific guidance for how emergency plans should be updated for
this situation?

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
NOTICE: This message and attachments may contain confidential or privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, disclosure, copying, use, or distribution
of the information is prohibited. Notify the sender immediately and delete all information.

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
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for
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
2. The position on facemasks is confusing because thought it's stated "face
masks are most useful for preventing disease spread when they are worn
by people who have symptoms," face masks is not mentioned in the
recommendations for schools when a student who recently traveled from China
comes down with symptoms.
3. It's mentioned to contact "your health department" but probably best if a
specific department or phone number is provided.
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

Please "Reply All" only if everyone on the email needs to know. Otherwise, please only
reply to me! Thank you!

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

Thank you very much for your great work in communicating with your
school district's students and families; and your ongoing communications
with the San Francisco Department of Public Health.   We appreciate all of
your excellent questions and thoughtful approaches to some complex
cases.   

Today, Dr. Aragon and I discussed the excellent response of SFUSD, the
letter that SFUSD sent to families (last updated February 5th).   As you can
compare with other letters sent from school districts/ health departments,
the SFUSD letter was comprehensive and very clear.  

As I was relating the draft CDPH guidance with you earlier, local health
departments have been planning with each other and with CDPH to
respond to this emerging threat of an epidemic.   The Chinese and U.S.
governments  https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov have issued an
unprecedented scale of quarantine orders, so public health experts are still
determining how such orders and guidelines should be recommended.   The
California Department of Public Health guideline that planned for release
on Wednesday-Thursday was finally released this evening.   I am forwarding
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it to you now.

As you can read, the new CDPH guidance is very much aligned with the
SFUSD (2/5/2020) and SFDPH www.sfcdcp.org  guidance.  The new CDPH
guidance emphasizes some actionable steps that schools may need to
prepare for or consider include:

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
disease spread when they are worn by people who have symptoms.
This is why people are asked to wear a mask at doctors’ offices and
hospitals if they are coughing or sneezing.
Update emergency plans to ensure they are in place before an
outbreak occurs.
Please note that there have been reports of students and others
being stigmatized. We urge schools to ensure students’ and staffs’
privacy to help prevent discrimination.

Whereas you've helped lead an excellent response for our many public
school students and their families in San Francisco in this first-week of
responding to the federal quarantine guidelines, I think that school 
"emergency plans"  (e.g., for infectious diseases and pandemics) will be very
useful to consider soon.    With people continuing to return from China and
more capacity for laboratories to test 2019 Novel Coronavirus, there is an
increasing possibility of cases in San Francisco and even the virus
circulating.   Plans for student/staff safety and the continuity of education
would need to be implemented.  These are issues that all schools will need
to grapple with in California, so I look forward to discussing with you and
supporting best-practices with you.    

I'm hopeful that issues are stable at the school district over the weekend,
but feel free to call me anytime on my personal cell 650-580-2335.

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
Subject: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus
Guidance for Schools and School Districts
 

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
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From: Brown, John (DPH)
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: RE: [Event 2019-nCoV] Guidance for EMS Systems and 911 Dispatch for 2019-nCoV in the US
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:21:48 AM

Thanks, Tomas. I will check in with the EMS working group on nCoV at 0830 on this. I will be going to
a trauma meeting in Alameda County at 1030 so can’t make today’s 0930 huddle but will be a the
1300 DPH DOC Ops branch meeting. Nice to be back. Regards, John
John F Brown MD
Preferred pronouns: He, His, Him
Medical Health Operations Area Coordinator
City and County of San Francisco, Department of Public Health
John.brown@sfdph.org
415 487 5034
 
 
 

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org> 
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 1:40 PM
To: Duren, James (DPH) <james.duren@sfdph.org>; Brown, John (DPH) <john.brown@sfdph.org>;
Tong, Sandra (FIR) <sandra.tong@sfgov.org>; Tangherlini, Niels (FIR)
<Niels.Tangherlini@SFGOV1.onmicrosoft.com>; Holcomb, Andrew (DPH)
<andrew.holcomb@sfdph.org>
Subject: [Event 2019-nCoV] Guidance for EMS Systems and 911 Dispatch for 2019-nCoV in the US
 
I believe you all have already reviewed these. I am just catching up
 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-for-ems.html

Interim Guidance for Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
Systems and 911 Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) for
2019-nCoV in the United States - cdc.gov
Emergency medical services (EMS) play a vital role in responding to requests for assistance,
triaging patients, and providing emergency medical treatment and transport for ill persons.
However, unlike patient care in the controlled environment of a healthcare facility, care and
transports by EMS ...

www.cdc.gov

Thanks,
 
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
To: CDPH CCLHO DL
Subject: FW: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 6:45:49 AM
Attachments: Coronavirus+K-12+Schools+Guidance+2_7_20+FINAL.pdf

 

FYI
 

From: California Health Alert Network <noreply@everbridge.net> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 7:36 PM
To: Hanson, Jake@CDPH <Jake.Hanson@cdph.ca.gov>
Subject: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and
School Districts
 

The California Department of Public Health is releasing guidance for K-12 schools
and school districts regarding the 2019 Novel Coronavirus. 

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
 
 
 



https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCOV2019.aspx
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California Department of Public Health – February 7, 2020 
 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for  


Schools and School Districts 
 
 


  Page 2 of 2 
 


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


 



https://www.cdc.gov/flu/prevent/actions-prevent-flu.htm
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**[EXTERNAL MESSAGE]** FROM: noreply@everbridge.net
Only open links and attachments from known senders. Do not provide your username or

password. To report suspicious emails, click “Report Phish” button.

 
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
Hernandez, Liz@County of San Diego; Kagoda, Mercy ; Kinnison, Michael@SutterCounty; DPH - sarah.lewis;
Limbos, Mary Ann (Yolo); McMillan, Craig (Mendocino); McNitt, Louise@Countra Costa County; Michele Violich
(michele.violich@co.santa-cruz.ca.us); Morrow, Gib ; Newel, Gail; Northrop, Leah@SutterCo; Pan, Erica
(Alameda); Papasozomenos, Thea; DPH-daniel.peddycord; Perti, Tara (Santa Clara); Nichole Quick;
Radhakrishna, Rohan (Contra Costa); Rice, Homer@co.yuba.ca.us; Rosen, Frederick; Sallenave, Catherine (San
Mateo); Santora, Lisa@marincounty.org; Smith, Denise@Kern County; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Taylor,
Melody@Sacramento County; Tzvieli, Ori (Contra Costa); Warne, Thomas (Contra Costa); Wu, Christine; Zahn,
Matt@Orange County

Subject: FW: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC Releases New 2019-nCoV Interim Guidance for Healthcare Professionals
Date: Monday, February 10, 2020 6:45:08 AM

 

FYI
 

From: California Health Alert Network <noreply@everbridge.net> 
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 1:24 PM
To: Hanson, Jake@CDPH <Jake.Hanson@cdph.ca.gov>
Subject: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC Releases New 2019-nCoV Interim Guidance for
Healthcare Professionals
 

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has released Interim U.S.
Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public Health Management of Healthcare
Personnel with Potential Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients with 2019
Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV).
The entire guidance can be accessed at the following link:
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-risk-assesment-hcp.html
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From: Chan, Curtis (DPH)
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:37:08 PM
Attachments: image.png

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

mailto:juem@sfusd.edu
http://www.healthiersf.org/
mailto:juem@sfusd.edu
mailto:curtis.chan@sfdph.org


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
mailto:noreply@everbridge.net
mailto:curtis.chan@sfdph.org


From: Jue, Mary
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH)
Cc: Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu); Sop, Anna (DEM); Mele Lau-Smith; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:16:16 PM

These are great resources, Curtis! I will review and be prepared to discuss at our
meeting on Tuesday. Let me know if others will be joining us so I can ensure we
have a large enough space to meet in.

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

On Sun, Feb 9, 2020 at 8:33 PM Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org> wrote:
Hi Mary,

Thanks for your email.    My email to you is personal correspondence with you, similar to our
conversations by phone, text, and emails.   We should discuss by phone or in-person.

We can support you and continue to review information that SFUSD sends to schools,
teachers, and parents.    In general, much is still unknown about the epidemic as it has
spread from Wuhan.  I would suggest using language directly from CDC and CDPH as a
starting point.   The risk of exposure isn't that different between major cities across
California and the US.   
Also, school districts aren't just preparing for the disease, but the quarantine orders that are
mostly directed federally.  

Regarding language of the epidemiology and the comments about masks, I agree with and
appreciate your questions and concern.  The content of my email to help you contextualize
the document from CDPH and personal phone number isn't for public dissemination. The
CDPH guidance has been sent to local health jurisdictions throughout the State, so that
language will likely be used widely.   I'm interested in hearing your perspective more
Monday-Tuesday.   Regarding facemasks, many people are wearing facemasks in public to
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protect themselves from the disease -- which isn't likely to be be helpful.   The information
that you disseminate to the principals and the general public should be carefully
considered.  

I'm eager to help you because I am personally concerned that the risk of the virus will
increase.   We should reassure people that the risk of exposure today (last week or two-
weeks ago) is low, but thinking through how the public, parents, students and public health
authorities would react if risk increases or if a disease is detected (e.g., with US citizens
arriving form China and more lab testing available) could be important for any school
district.  

What do you think the CDC/CDPH would recommend next?   The quarantine orders were
astonishing and unprecedented, but understandable.   Has federal/state Department of
Education issued guidance?     Some of my thinking is derived from PanFlu preparedness and
responding to H1N1.   Here are some documents:
When do we plan and implement some of the measures listed here?
https://www.cdc.gov/flu/pandemic-resources/archived/schools-child-care-planning.html
https://www.cdc.gov/flu/pandemic-resources/pdf/schoolchecklist.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/nonpharmaceutical-interventions/pdf/pan-flu-checklist-k-12-school-
administrators-item2.pdf

Tomorrow, I'm available to chat by phone(desk 415-575-5672; cell 650-580-2335) at these
times:  7:30-9am, 10:30-11a, Noon-1pm,  2:30-4pm.    I also have 1:30 - 3:30pm set aside on
Tuesday to meet in-person  with you Mary Jue and team on School Nursing protocols.   We
can use that time to focus on coronavirus.   If that time still works for you, I can ask if any of
my communicable disease colleagues can join.  

Thanks Mary!

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
district's students and families; and your ongoing communications with the
San Francisco Department of Public Health.   We appreciate all of your
excellent questions and thoughtful approaches to some complex cases.   

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
departments have been planning with each other and with CDPH to respond
to this emerging threat of an epidemic.   The Chinese and U.S. governments 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov have issued an unprecedented
scale of quarantine orders, so public health experts are still determining how
such orders and guidelines should be recommended.   The California
Department of Public Health guideline that planned for release on
Wednesday-Thursday was finally released this evening.   I am forwarding it to
you now.

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
the federal quarantine guidelines, I think that school  "emergency plans" 
(e.g., for infectious diseases and pandemics) will be very useful to consider
soon.    With people continuing to return from China and more capacity for
laboratories to test 2019 Novel Coronavirus, there is an increasing possibility
of cases in San Francisco and even the virus circulating.   Plans for
student/staff safety and the continuity of education would need to be
implemented.  These are issues that all schools will need to grapple with in
California, so I look forward to discussing with you and supporting best-
practices with you.    

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
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:04:26 PM

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
But the document does not list among the actions to take with recent arrivals (before
2/3/20) the use of facemasks or calling their health care provider so maybe those
steps should be added. 
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

mailto:tomas.aragon@sfdph.org
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
To: Jue, Mary
Cc: Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu); Sop, Anna (DEM); Mele Lau-Smith; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 8:33:15 PM

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
teachers, and parents.    In general, much is still unknown about the epidemic as it has spread
from Wuhan.  I would suggest using language directly from CDC and CDPH as a starting point. 
 The risk of exposure isn't that different between major cities across California and the US.   
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
language will likely be used widely.   I'm interested in hearing your perspective more Monday-
Tuesday.   Regarding facemasks, many people are wearing facemasks in public to protect
themselves from the disease -- which isn't likely to be be helpful.   The information that you
disseminate to the principals and the general public should be carefully considered.  

I'm eager to help you because I am personally concerned that the risk of the virus will
increase.   We should reassure people that the risk of exposure today (last week or two-weeks
ago) is low, but thinking through how the public, parents, students and public health
authorities would react if risk increases or if a disease is detected (e.g., with US citizens
arriving form China and more lab testing available) could be important for any school district.  

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
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 7:31:15 PM

 

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

From: Mary Jue
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH)
Cc: Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu); Sop, Anna (DEM); Mele Lau-Smith; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 6:48:05 PM

 

Thank you, Curtis! I will review the new guidelines and discuss any needed updates or actions
with the SFUSD team!

Mary

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 7, 2020, at 8:35 PM, Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org> wrote:

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

Today, Dr. Aragon and I discussed the excellent response of SFUSD, the letter that
SFUSD sent to families (last updated February 5th).   As you can compare with
other letters sent from school districts/ health departments, the SFUSD letter was
comprehensive and very clear.  

As I was relating the draft CDPH guidance with you earlier, local health
departments have been planning with each other and with CDPH to respond to
this emerging threat of an epidemic.   The Chinese and U.S. governments 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov have issued an unprecedented scale
of quarantine orders, so public health experts are still determining how such
orders and guidelines should be recommended.   The California Department of
Public Health guideline that planned for release on Wednesday-Thursday was
finally released this evening.   I am forwarding it to you now.

As you can read, the new CDPH guidance is very much aligned with the SFUSD
(2/5/2020) and SFDPH www.sfcdcp.org  guidance.  The new CDPH guidance

mailto:juem@sfusd.edu
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f99a63daa440401389225bcc93dec198-Curtis Chan
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mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=cac938a9e3b94f088a7dd5e3ef023e4a-anna.sop@sfgov.org
mailto:LauSmithM@sfusd.edu
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
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emphasizes some actionable steps that schools may need to prepare for or
consider include:

Separate sick students and staff from others until they can go home. When
feasible, identify a “sick room” through which others do not regularly pass.
A note about face masks: face masks are most useful for preventing disease
spread when they are worn by people who have symptoms. This is why
people are asked to wear a mask at doctors’ offices and hospitals if they are
coughing or sneezing.
Update emergency plans to ensure they are in place before an outbreak
occurs.
Please note that there have been reports of students and others being
stigmatized. We urge schools to ensure students’ and staffs’ privacy to help
prevent discrimination.

Whereas you've helped lead an excellent response for our many public school
students and their families in San Francisco in this first-week of responding to the
federal quarantine guidelines, I think that school  "emergency plans"  (e.g., for
infectious diseases and pandemics) will be very useful to consider soon.    With
people continuing to return from China and more capacity for laboratories to test
2019 Novel Coronavirus, there is an increasing possibility of cases in San Francisco
and even the virus circulating.   Plans for student/staff safety and the continuity of
education would need to be implemented.  These are issues that all schools will
need to grapple with in California, so I look forward to discussing with you and
supporting best-practices with you.    

I'm hopeful that issues are stable at the school district over the weekend, but feel
free to call me anytime on my personal cell 650-580-2335.

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
Subject: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for
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
Subject: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC Releases New 2019-nCoV Interim Guidance for Healthcare Professionals
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 1:24:44 PM

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
Subject: DEM 24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report - 02-09-2020
Date: Sunday, February 9, 2020 9:58:40 AM

Report Date: 02-09-2020

24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report
_________

Priority Information / Current Notable Local Incidents:

-The National Weather Service issued a Wind Advisory in effect now until February 10, 7:00am. Winds 15 to 25 mph with gusts up to 45 mph. Gusty
winds could blow around unsecured objects. Tree limbs could be blown down and a few power outages may result.

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

Today – Sunny, with a high near 60. Breezy, with a north wind around 25 mph, with gusts as high as 33 mph.

Tonight – Clear, with a low around 47. North wind around 16 mph, with gusts as high as 22 mph.

Tomorrow – Sunny, with a high near 64. North wind 6 to 11 mph becoming light in the afternoon.

Air Quality Index (AQI):
Current: 34
Forecast: 35
www.airnow.gov

___________

Happening Today - Special Events for 02-09-2020:

Sunday (2/9/2020)
-No large events scheduled
___________

Happening This Week - Special Events from 02-10-2020 to 02-16-2020:

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
- No large events scheduled
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

Coronavirus: Lessons from past epidemics guide US response to crisis

The U.S. public health response is both more aggressive and less chaotic this time than it was with SARS, infectious disease experts say. At airports,
for example, federal authorities quickly introduced travel restrictions and screenings this year. And though several government-chartered planes full of
passengers evacuated from China have been quarantined upon landing, so far there have been no emergency scrambles on the tarmac. “I think for
everybody, SARS was a humbling experience. It was a scramble back then,” said Dr. Tomás Aragón, health officer with the San Francisco Department
of Public Health, who led the Center for Infectious Diseases and Emergency Readiness at UC Berkeley during SARS. “Now there’s a whole generation
of people like myself with really deep experience in these things.” Ebola also provided some valuable lessons in disease response, in particular in terms
of identifying people traveling to the United States from affected countries — sometimes by very circuitous routes — and connecting them with public
health authorities. The CDC had to figure out how to find these passengers, then rebook them on flights that would funnel them to specific airports for
screening. From there, passengers would be isolated if symptomatic or told to look for symptoms and stay away from public spaces for a period of time.
That process has been replicated in the current coronavirus outbreak, with travelers coming from China now sent to one of 11 airports, including San
Francisco International, where CDC screening clinics are already in place. “All of our efforts right now are based on two things: Active surveillance,
which means putting the systems in place to identify a high percentage of cases. And then finding their contacts and making sure they don’t become
new cases,” said Dr. Sara Cody, health officer in Santa Clara County, which has reported two coronavirus cases. “You’re trying to do everything you
can to prevent transmission from a case to someone else, and stop it right there at one,” she said. “Right now I think we can do that. Maybe that’s
where this will all stop.”

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/Coronavirus-Lessons-from-past-epidemics-guide-US-15039917.php

__________

He spoke out about the Wuhan virus. Now his family and friends fear he's been silenced

As people across China mourned the death of a whistleblower doctor in an almost unprecedented outpouring of grief and anger on Thursday, little did
they know that another truth-teller of the coronavirus outbreak was being silenced, according to friends and family. Chen Qiushi, a citizen journalist who
had been doing critical reporting from Wuhan, the central Chinese city at the epicenter of the outbreak, went missing on Thursday evening, just as
hundreds of thousands of people in China began demanding freedom of speech online. Chen arrived in Wuhan on January 24, a day after the city was
placed under a state-imposed lockdown, designed to stop citizens from leaving to stem the spread of the virus. He visited overflowing hospitals, funeral
parlors and makeshift isolation wards and uploaded videos of what he saw online, offering the world a glimpse into the often grim reality at the heart of
the crisis. Friends said they had been checking in with Chen multiple times a day, fearing he could be taken by the authorities at any time for his
reporting. When he stopped answering calls early Thursday evening, they grew increasingly concerned. In the small hours of Friday, Chen's friend
posted a video message of Chen's mother on his Twitter page saying her son had disappeared. His close friends say Chen had left them his login
details to the platform, in case he was taken by the authorities. "I'm here to beg everyone online, especially friends in Wuhan to help find Qiushi, find
out what's going on with him," she said. Later that evening in a live broadcast on YouTube, Xu Xiaodong, an outspoken mixed martial artist and friend
of Chen, played a message from the journalist's mother saying he had been forcibly quarantined. "In the last few hours the Qingdao public security
officers and state security officers ... notified Qiushi's parents that Qiushi has already been detained in the name of quarantine. Qiushi's mother
immediately asked them where and when he was taken away, they declined to say," said Xu. Xu stressed that, based on his interactions with Chen and
the testimony of those on the ground, Chen had been in good health prior to his disappearance.

https://www.cnn.com/2020/02/09/asia/wuhan-citizen-journalist-intl-hnk/index.html

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
To: Louie, Janice (DPH); Nguyen, Rita (DPH); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH)
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Saturday, February 8, 2020 3:49:00 PM

Hi Janice,

Thanks so much.  My email is to the 4 people at SFUSD and not to the general public.  I totally
agree about being careful and having consistency for public information on epidemiology,
such as " there is an increasing possibility of cases in San Francisco and even the virus
circulating."  I'll delete the word "increasing".  I'm eager to learn/hear what you think should
be the best-language about the epidemiology now; and why prepare for the "possible
worsening of the epidemic", and descriptions of how the epidemic would worsen.  

In working closely with School Health over the years; we're consistently on the same page of
what information is for internal discussion; and what information is for the general public. 
Though, based upon your thoughtful guidance, I'll provide additional clarification on Monday.  

I am more concerned that schools aren't preparing for the next phase of the epidemic.  What
do you think will be the next phase and what epidemiological event/incident would cause
the next federal/state proclamation of additional public health measures.   What should be
the measures?   Are school districts, schools, families prepared?    

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
http://www.cidrap.umn.edu/news-perspective/2009/08/cdc-advises-against-closing-schools-
during-h1n1-outbreaks

These are questions we should be discussing at Operations meetings.  No need to comment
over the weekend, but I'm available to hear more from the team Monday-Wednesday. 
Fortunately, we don't have any known cases of coronavirus circulating in SF, so this continues
to be an excellent opportunity to strengthen public health practice!

cheers,
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

From: Louie, Janice (DPH) <janice.louie@sfdph.org>
Sent: Saturday, February 8, 2020 3:01 PM
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>; Nguyen, Rita (DPH) <rita.nguyen@sfdph.org>;
Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
Hi Curtis
Thank you for sharing this.  I dont know if this has been distributed yet (the copy I have states
draft), but if there is still time, I would suggest taking out the following sentence:

"The risk of exposure to this new coronavirus is increasing over time".  

I am not sure this is factually true (it is possible this virus has been in wide circulation for
awhile but the testing was not available yet), and I also think the idea of worsening risk over
time may generate undue concern or could be misinterpreted.  It is hard to get this messaging
right when we know so little, but as a parent I might be even more worried after seeing that
statement.

Janice

Janice K. Louie, MD, MPH

Please note if I am e-mailing you about 2019 n-Coronavirus, it is because I am on temporary assignment to assist with
the SFDPH 2019 nCoV Activation

Medical Director
Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program
San Francisco Department of Public Health 
Clinic: (628) 206-8524
Fax: (628) 206-4565
Janice.louie@sfdph.org

From: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 8:42 PM

http://www.sfdph.org/mch
mailto:Curtis.Chan@sfdph.org


To: Nguyen, Rita (DPH) <rita.nguyen@sfdph.org>; Louie, Janice (DPH) <janice.louie@sfdph.org>;
Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Subject: Fw: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
FYI:  Tomas wrote to these SFUSD "health and student support services" leaders that SFDPH
would help SFUSD develop a "Novel Coronavirus Prevention Strategy".    I agree with Tomas
that school districts need to prepare for "scenarios  where transmission is possible".    Many of
these preparedness plans are outlined in "panflu preparedness" plans that school districts
have completed, but may not have considered recently.   Fortunately, our SFUSD School
District Health Program is extremely competent with great leadership.  There are a lot of
variables to prepare community mitigation strategies for.

As always, I welcome your suggestions and questions.  

thanks,
curtis

From: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 8:34 PM
To: Jue, Mary <juem@sfusd.edu>; Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu) <coatesk@sfusd.edu>;
Sop, Anna (DEM) <anna.sop@sfgov.org>; Mele Lau-Smith <LauSmithM@sfusd.edu>
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Subject: Fw: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools
and School Districts
 
Dear SFUSD Health Team:

Thank you very much for your great work in communicating with your school district's
students and families; and your ongoing communications with the San Francisco Department
of Public Health.   We appreciate all of your excellent questions and thoughtful approaches to
some complex cases.   

Today, Dr. Aragon and I discussed the excellent response of SFUSD, the letter that SFUSD sent
to families (last updated February 5th).   As you can compare with other letters sent from
school districts/ health departments, the SFUSD letter was comprehensive and very clear.  

As I was relating the draft CDPH guidance with you earlier, local health departments have
been planning with each other and with CDPH to respond to this emerging threat of an
epidemic.   The Chinese and U.S. governments  https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov have issued an unprecedented scale of quarantine orders, so public health experts are

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov


still determining how such orders and guidelines should be recommended.   The California
Department of Public Health guideline that planned for release on Wednesday-Thursday was
finally released this evening.   I am forwarding it to you now.

As you can read, the new CDPH guidance is very much aligned with the SFUSD (2/5/2020) and
SFDPH www.sfcdcp.org  guidance.  The new CDPH guidance emphasizes some actionable
steps that schools may need to prepare for or consider include:

Separate sick students and staff from others until they can go home. When feasible,
identify a “sick room” through which others do not regularly pass.
A note about face masks: face masks are most useful for preventing disease spread
when they are worn by people who have symptoms. This is why people are asked to
wear a mask at doctors’ offices and hospitals if they are coughing or sneezing.
Update emergency plans to ensure they are in place before an outbreak occurs.
Please note that there have been reports of students and others being stigmatized. We
urge schools to ensure students’ and staffs’ privacy to help prevent discrimination.

Whereas you've helped lead an excellent response for our many public school students and
their families in San Francisco in this first-week of responding to the federal quarantine
guidelines, I think that school  "emergency plans"  (e.g., for infectious diseases and pandemics)
will be very useful to consider soon.    With people continuing to return from China and more
capacity for laboratories to test 2019 Novel Coronavirus, there is an increasing possibility of
cases in San Francisco and even the virus circulating.   Plans for student/staff safety and the
continuity of education would need to be implemented.  These are issues that all schools will
need to grapple with in California, so I look forward to discussing with you and supporting
best-practices with you.    

I'm hopeful that issues are stable at the school district over the weekend, but feel free to call
me anytime on my personal cell 650-580-2335.

Thank you so much for protecting the health and safety of students in San Francisco.

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
 

The California Department of Public Health is releasing guidance for K-12 schools and school
districts regarding the 2019 Novel Coronavirus. 

Please see attached PDF for guidance.



From: Louie, Janice (DPH)
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH); Nguyen, Rita (DPH); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH)
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Re: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Saturday, February 8, 2020 3:01:55 PM

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

mailto:janice.louie@sfdph.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f99a63daa440401389225bcc93dec198-Curtis Chan
mailto:rita.nguyen@sfdph.org
mailto:juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org
mailto:susan.philip@sfdph.org
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



From: DPH, Phepr (DPH)
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: DRAFT for review: DPH DOC nCoV Situation Status Report (02/08/20)
Date: Saturday, February 8, 2020 12:55:52 PM

DPH DOC nCoV Situation Status Report #13 (02/08/20)

Status: Yellow
Outlook: Worsening
Need: None

# of Cases/Deaths
Worldwide: 34,963 cases / 725 Deaths (John Hopkins CSSE, link below)
US: 12 Cases / 0 Deaths
CA:  7 Cases / 0 Deaths
SF: 0 Cases
                                                                                                                            
Updates and Response:

SFDPH
Summary of actions

SFDPH Representatives will be attending the Chinese Lunar New Year Parade tonight. 

CCSF Department of Human Resources (DHR) sent out guidance for employees returning from travel to mainland
China. SFDPH is prepared to receive an increase in calls and inquiries from staff and employers.

DPH is working with SF schools to implement CDC guidance and develop communication plans.

A robust outreach plan has been developed by a multi-disciplinary team to provide follow up on return travelers
from mainland China. Outreach will begin on or around 02/10/20.

There has been a significant reduction in misinformation posted on social media platforms, and an increase in well
reported safety information and guidance in the media. 

https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/

 

CDC  

CDC report on U.S. nCoV-2019 testing data: 12 results tested positive, 225 results tested negative, and 100 result
are pending. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html

WHO (World Health Organization)

WHO stated there have been no new countries reporting confirmed nCoV-2019 cases within the last 24
hours. https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019

 
CDPH (California Department of Public Health)

CDPH report on CA nCoV-2019 testing data: 6 results tested positive, 69 results tested negative, and 27 results
are pending. https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCOV2019.aspx

Johns Hopkins Data Dashboard (real time updates, data sources- WHO, CDC, NHC, and DXY.)

International data:

34,963 confirmed cases; 34,620 cases in mainland China; 723 deaths in China, 2 outside of mainland
China. https://gisanddata.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/bda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6

NOTE: Information may vary as events and reporting are rapidly evolving.

---

mailto:phepr.dph@sfdph.org
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
Subject: DEM 24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report - 02-08-2020
Date: Saturday, February 8, 2020 9:44:19 AM

Report Date: 02-08-2020

24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report
_________

Priority Information / Current Notable Local Incidents:

-NOAA tide predictions indicate tides exceeding 7 feet for the next 3 days. The Port of San Francisco is prepared for any potential impacts. Tide
information can be found here: https://tidesandcurrents.noaa.gov/noaatidepredictions.html?
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

• SFO travel information: https://www.flysfo.com/passengers-arriving-wuhan-china-are-being-screened-novel-coronavirus

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

2 EOC Open Partial w/ 1st Response  As Needed

mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org


Elements & Support

1 EOC Open Full Activation 
(All Sections and Positions)   As Needed

___________

Weather Summary and Forecast:

Today – Sunny, high near 59. Winds 3 to 6 mph.

Tonight – Clear, low of 46. Winds 8 to 13 mph with gusts up to 21 mph.

Tomorrow – Sunny, high of 62. Winds 21 to 25 mph with gusts of 34 mph.

-A high wind watch is in effect from Sunday morning through early Monday morning. Wind gusts may reach 45mph in some areas, especially along the
coast and in the North and East bay regions.

Air Quality Index (AQI):
Current: 30
Forecast: 55
www.airnow.gov

___________

Happening Today - Special Events for 02-08-2020:

Saturday (2/8/2020)
-SF Giants FanFest, beginning at 10:00am @ Oracle Park
- KTVU Broadcast of CNY Parade, from 3:00pm to 11:00pm, at Geary Between Stockton and Powell Streets. 
- Chinese New Year Parade, from 5:00pm to 9:00pm. Begins at 2nd St and Market, continues around Union Square, ends at Kearny St and Columbus
Ave
- Armin Van Buuren Concert, from 5:00pm to midnight @ Bill Graham
- Warriors vs Lakers, from 5:30pm to 9:00pm @ Chase Center
___________

Happening This Week - Special Events from 02-09-2020 to 02-15-2020:

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

Friday (02/14/2020)
-Film shoot on Fulton Street between Hyde and Larkin

Saturday (02/15/2020)
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

5 quarantined at Travis AFB show symptoms of coronavirus, CDC says

FAIRFIELD, Calif. — Five of the people evacuated from Wuhan, China who were being quarantined at Travis Air Force Base show symptoms of
coronavirus, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. The group has not been diagnosed with coronavirus, but they display
symptoms of the virus, officials said. Officials said all five had fevers. They have been taken to nearby hospitals for treatment, officials said. Hundreds
of American evacuees from Wuhan were flown to Travis AFB on two flights earlier in the week. One person from the first flight and four from the second
flight were hospitalized as a precautionary measure, officials said. The coronavirus is a viral respiratory illness that was first identified in Wuhan. Similar
to other viral infections, coronavirus is spread through when an infected person coughs or sneezes. There have been 12 confirmed cases of
coronavirus in the United States.

https://www.sfgate.com/news/article/5-quarantined-at-Travis-AFB-show-symptoms-of-15039626.php

__________

Expect more blackouts in California, PG&E says. But utility predicts smaller, shorter shutoffs

Make no mistake: PG&E Corp. will plunge Californians into darkness again this year if it thinks that will prevent another major wildfire. But the utility
said Friday it’s investing millions in personnel and technology to lessen the impact of its “public safety power shutoffs” and believes the 2020 blackouts
won’t darken nearly as many homes as last year. PG&E, which has 16 million customers around the state, filed an updated wildfire safety blueprint with
the Public Utilities Commission, outlining plans for “hardening” its electric grid, improving its weather forecasting and trimming back more tree limbs that
could spark fires. Above all, PG&E expects it can make its deliberate blackouts — engineered when windstorms kick up and wildfire risk is high — less
burdensome than last October, when outages affected millions of Northern Californians, infuriated Gov. Gavin Newsom, and still failed to prevent a
major wildfire in Sonoma County. This year’s blackouts should be “smarter, smaller and shorter,” said Matt Pender, a director of the utility’s wildfire
safety program. “There’s been a lot of learning at PG&E from the last wildfire season.” Pender said the footprint of this year’s blackouts should be about
one-third smaller than last year’s for a windstorm of similar size, thanks to “sectionalizing” switches that will allow PG&E “to cut up the grid.” PG&E will
double the number of switches it had last year.

https://www.sacbee.com/news/california/article240084858.html

__________

Thailand shooting: Soldier kills 20 in gun rampage

A soldier has killed 20 people and injured many more in a gun rampage in the Thai city of Nakhon Ratchasima. Jakraphanth Thomma, a junior officer,
killed his commanding officer before stealing weapons from a military camp, a defence spokesman told BBC Thai. The suspect then drove to the city
centre and entered a shopping complex, where he is believed to be holed up. The suspect, whose motives remain unclear, posted images of his attack
on social media sites. Authorities have sealed off the Terminal 21 shopping centre in Nakhon Ratchasima, also known as Korat, as they try to track
down the suspect. Troops and police have entered the building and there have been reports of more gunshots. Defence ministry spokesman Lt Gen
Kongcheep Tantravanich said hundreds of people had been brought out of the complex safely, but there could be dozens still in the building. A tweet
from security forces said the ground floor had now been cleared. The Bangkok Post reported earlier that the suspect, who it said was 32 years old, had
taken hostages, but this has not been officially confirmed.

https://www.bbc.com/news/world-asia-51427301

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

From: EPIXUpdate@cdc.gov
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Epi-X Today: Saturday, February 8, 2020
Date: Saturday, February 8, 2020 2:26:33 AM

 

Epi-X reports posted in your areas of interest in the past 24 hours. To view a specific report, click on its
URL.

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
CDC Daily Key Points: 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) -- February 7, 2020
This report includes CDC Daily Key Points for 2019 Novel Coronavirus. This document is cleared to share
with your staff and partners.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=73669

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
~*~ Global Immunization News Report, February 7, 2020 ~*~
Today's Global Immunization News report includes polio, measles, Ebola, mumps, Yellow fever, cholera,
policy and funding, vaccine demand and safety, nCoV, and other news for Friday, February 7, 2020.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=73423

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
MMWR Early Release: Persons Evaluated for 2019 Novel Coronavirus — United States, January
2020
CDC, multiple federal agencies, state and local health departments, and other partners are implementing
aggressive measures to substantially slow U.S. transmission of 2019-nCoV, including identification of
U.S. cases, contacts and managing travelers arriving from mainland China to the United States. Access
the report at https://tinyurl.com/uctal62
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=73422

~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~
~*~ Special Epi-X Media Tracking Report - Novel Coronavirus, February 7, 2020 ~*~
This report provides special media coverage of the 2019 novel coronavirus outbreak (2019-nCoV). For
the latest CDC updates and guidance, please go to https://tinyurl.com/wz7ojes.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=73668

~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~
~*~ Media Tracking Report, February 7, 2020 ~*~
Media stories include pertussis in Arkansas and Canada; hepatitis A in California; mumps in Colorado;
typhoid fever in Kentucky; norovirus in Louisiana; tuberculosis in New York; influenza in North Carolina
and Tennessee; novel coronavirus in multiple countries; measles in Australia and Canada; dengue in
Jamaica; and other media coverage.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=72849

----------------------------- 
ABOUT THIS E-MAIL 
You have received this message because you are an authorized Epi-X user.
Information in this message must be used only in accordance with the Epi-X User Agreement.

HOW TO CONTACT Epi-X

mailto:EPIXUpdate@cdc.gov
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


For technical issues, contact the Help Desk:
EpiXHelp@cdc.gov
(877) 438-3749

For help with preparing or posting a report, contact the Editor on Call:
(877) 862-2392 (toll free within the United States)
+1-770-488-7100 (If you cannot use the toll free number above, please call the CDC Emergency
Operations Center and ask to speak to the Epi-X editor on call.)

IMPORTANT REMINDERS
Update your contact information: https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Profile.aspx
Learn about Epi-X training opportunities: https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/help/Training_Opportunities.htm
Receive this message in Text format: https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Preferences.aspx#Email

mailto:EpiXHelp@cdc.gov


From: Chan, Curtis (DPH)
To: Nguyen, Rita (DPH); Louie, Janice (DPH); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH)
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Fw: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 8:42:38 PM
Attachments: Coronavirus+K-12+Schools+Guidance+2_7_20+FINAL.pdf

School_nCoV_CDPHdraft_SFUSD_Ala_SCC_Marin_ContraCosta.pdf

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
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2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) is a virus that was recently identified in Wuhan, China. The virus causes 
respiratory illness.  For up-to-date information regarding 2019-nCoV, see the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) 
website at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html 
 
Local health departments are communicating with travelers returning from China to provide guidance about 
limiting public interactions for 14 days.  Returning travelers from China should be excluded from school for 14 
days after they left China.   
   
Please note that the risk of exposure to this new coronavirus in China is increasing over time.  The 
recommendation to exclude students from school is effective Monday, February 3, 2020.  Persons who have 
arrived from China prior to February 3, 2020 are at lower risk and do not need to be excluded.   
 
In the unusual event that a child or staff member is identified who  


 recently traveled from an area of the world experiencing an outbreak of 2019-nCoV, AND  


 has symptoms of respiratory illness, such as fever and cough  
that person should be sent home and the school should immediately contact the local health department.   
 
At this time, there is low risk to residents of California from 2019-nCoV, but schools can take common-sense 
precautions to prevent the spread of all infectious diseases.  These precautions will be also helpful to prevent the 
spread of other common illness such as influenza and gastroenteritis.   


 
Encourage all students, parents, and staff to take everyday preventive actions:  


 Stay home when sick.  
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


 
 Use “respiratory etiquette”.  


o Cover cough with a tissue or sleeve. See CDC’s Cover Your Cough page 
(https://www.cdc.gov/flu/prevent/actions-prevent-flu.htm) for multilingual posters and flyers.  
(Scroll down for materials.)   


o Provide adequate supplies within easy reach, including tissues and no-touch trash cans. 
 
 Wash hands frequently. 


o Encourage hand washing by students and staff through education, scheduled time for 
handwashing, and the provision of adequate supplies.  


 
 Routinely clean frequently touched surfaces. 
 
 Separate sick students and staff from others until they can go home. When feasible, identify a “sick room” 


through which others do not regularly pass. 


 


 Encourage flu vaccine for those who haven’t had it this season to reduce illnesses and absences on 


campus (but won’t prevent coronavirus illnesses) 


 
Develop policies to respond to outbreaks and communicable diseases: 
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 Establish relationships with your local public health department for ongoing communication.  
 
 Update emergency plans so that they are in place before an outbreak occurs. 







 
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


 







  
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
Erica Pan, MD, MPH    
Interim County Health Officer   
Alameda County Public Health Department   
Alameda County Health Care Services Agency                        
(510) 267-8000  
www.acphd.org  
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February 4, 2020 
 
Dear Administrators, Teachers, Staff, and Parents: 
 
The CDC and state and local public health departments are closely monitoring developments 
regarding an outbreak caused by a novel (new) coronavirus first identified in Wuhan, Hubei 
Province, China. There are 11 confirmed cases in the United States. Public health departments 
are working diligently to identify anyone who might be infected to prevent further spread of the 
outbreak. To date, there are 4 confirmed cases in Northern California and no confirmed cases in 
Alameda County. These individuals and their households have been isolated and are being 
monitored by their respective counties’ public health departments. The risk to the general public 
remains low. 
 
The best way to address anxiety and stress is to stay informed. We acknowledge the impact that 
this outbreak is having on our community, and on those who have friends or relatives who are 
affected. We are thinking of you. 
 
What you need to know  
People who have travelled from anywhere in mainland China within the past two weeks should 
stay at home and avoid public settings, work, school, or large gatherings. Please call the 
Alameda County Public Health Department at 510-267-3250 for additional guidance. 
 
If individuals who have returned from mainland China in the last two weeks are feeling ill with a 
fever and/or cough or difficulty breathing, they are advised to call their health care provider 
before going into the clinic or hospital and notify the Alameda County Public Health 
Department at 510-267-3250.  
 
The general Alameda County public should continue to engage in their regular activities and 
people should not be excluded from activities based on their race or country of origin.  
 
Since this is the height of cold and flu season, we encourage all students, parents, and 
staff to take common-sense precautions to prevent the spread of all infectious diseases. 


• Encourage students and staff to stay home when they are sick. 
o Those who have a fever at school should go home and stay home until at least 24 


hours after they no longer have a fever without the use of fever-reducing 
medicine. 


o Separate sick students and staff from others, ideally in a separate place, until they 
can be picked up to go home. 







  
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
Erica Pan, MD, MPH    
Interim County Health Officer   
Alameda County Public Health Department   
Alameda County Health Care Services Agency                        
(510) 267-8000  
www.acphd.org  


 


 
L. Karen Monroe 


Superintendent of Schools 
Alameda County Office of Education 


 (510) 887-0152 
https://www.acoe.org/alameda 


• Promote hand hygiene among students and staff through education, scheduled time for 
handwashing, and availability of soap and water or hand sanitizer. 


• Avoid touching your face, particularly your eyes, nose, and mouth. 
• Teach and encourage proper cough etiquette—cough or sneeze into a tissue, sleeve, or 


arm (do not use hands). 
• Perform routine surface cleaning. 
• Be vigilant when attending large gatherings, as this is where respiratory viruses often 


spread. If you are not feeling well or are experiencing cold, flu, or other symptoms, stay 
home to avoid spreading germs. 


For more information on the novel Coronavirus, please visit the Alameda County Public Health 
Department website www.acphd.org; we will keep the website updated with any local 
information or resources as we know more. We will monitor the developing situation and inform 
you of any additional public health recommendations. 
 
Sincerely, 


  L. Karen Monroe 
Interim County Health Officer     Superintendent of Schools 
Alameda County Public Health Department    Alameda County Office of Education 







  
 


 
 
 
 
 
February 4, 2020 
 
Dear Administrators, Teachers, Staff, and Parents: 
 
This letter is to provide an update on the novel coronavirus outbreak currently 
centered in China, and local measures to protect our community. Marin 
County Public Health continues to work closely with the U.S. Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) to limit risk to local residents. There 
are now six confirmed cases in California, and no persons under investigation 
for possible coronavirus illness in Marin County.  


The CDC and Marin County Public Health recommend that any adult or 
child traveling from mainland China should be excluded from school for 
14 days after they left China.  Persons who have arrived from China 
prior to February 3, 2020 are at lower risk and do not need to be 
excluded.   
 


Travelers returning from China are being advised to avoid public activities and 
gatherings, and self-monitor at home by remaining alert for fever, cough, or 
difficulty breathing. If someone develops these symptoms, they should 
contact their healthcare provider immediately by phone, prior to traveling to a 
healthcare facility. Public Health will be assisting in home monitoring 
individuals who are at risk for coronavirus. 


Schools are advised to work with students who are under home monitoring to 
arrange supports, to help keep them up to date with their lessons.  
 
The risk of spread of coronavirus locally remains very low. Importantly, 
influenza continues to circulate in Marin. Students, parents, staff and visitors 
should take every-day precautions to prevent the spread of infections 
including the common cold and flu.  


• Encourage students and staff to stay home when they are sick. 
o Those who have a fever at school should go home and stay 


home until fever-free for at least 24 hours. 
o Separate sick students and staff from others until they can be 


picked up to go home. 
• Promote hand hygiene among students and staff through education, 


scheduled time for handwashing, and availability of soap and water 
and/or hand sanitizer. 


• Avoid touching your face, particularly your eyes, nose, and mouth. 
• Teach and encourage proper cough etiquette—cough or sneeze into a 


tissue, sleeve, or arm (do not use hands). 







 


 


PG. 2 OF 2 • Perform routine surface cleaning. 
For up-to-date information regarding 2019-nCoV, see the Centers for Disease 
Control (CDC) website at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/index.html and at https://www.marinhhs.org/phupdate/ph-advisory-
novel-coronavirus-2019-ncov. 
 
We understand that this is a rapidly evolving situation that can cause worry 
and concern.  We will continue monitor the situation and share information 
with our school community as it becomes available. Please do not hesitate to 
call the Public Health Office with any questions or concerns.  
 


Yours in Health, 


Matt  
 
Matthew Willis, MD MPH  
Public Health Officer 
County of Marin 
3240 Kerner Blvd 
San Rafael, CA 94901 
415- 473- 4163 
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Administrators: 


I am writing to provide an update regarding the novel coronavirus in our county, and to 
share updated guidance for students and staff who have recently traveled to China. 


The County of Santa Clara Public Health Department has now received confirmation 
from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention of two cases of novel coronavirus, 
one on Friday January 31, and the second on Sunday February 2. Both of these cases 
had traveled to Wuhan, China in the 14 days before they became ill. Both have been 
self-isolating at home. The cases are not related to each other. We are reaching out to 
anyone who may have been in close contact with either case to determine whether they 
were exposed to the novel coronavirus. All exposed close contacts are being 
quarantined at home and monitored for symptoms. 


To date, we do not have any evidence to suggest that that novel coronavirus is 
circulating in Santa Clara County or the Bay Area, and public health departments 
are working hard to keep it that way. As we have all been communicating, the 
situation is evolving rapidly, and we anticipate this pace of change to continue. 


One change is that a recent published report has documented asymptomatic 
transmission of the virus.  


Asymptomatic transmission is when a person who does not yet have symptoms 
nevertheless spreads infections to others. How often this occurs is not known, but if 
asymptomatic transmission does occur, it would likely occur in the day or two before the 
infected individual starts showing symptoms. 


This evidence of asymptomatic transmission is in part why the federal government has 
made the decision to formally quarantine all travelers returning to the US from Hubei 
province (where Wuhan city is located), China, and to ask people returning from other 
parts of China to voluntarily self-quarantine for 14 days since their last day in China. 


Because of the concern of asymptomatic transmission, especially from travelers who 
returned from Hubei province, we are now asking schools to do the following: 


1. If you have students or staff who have been in Hubei province within the last 14 
days, please ask them to immediately return home and call the public health 
department during regular business hours (408-885-3980, M-F 8-5) so that we 
can provide guidance on monitoring themselves carefully for symptoms for the 14 
days since their last day in China. 


o Family members of travelers who visited Hubei province within the last 14 
days do not need to quarantine at home, but they should also monitor for 
symptoms and avoid attending large gatherings. 







2. Students or staff who have been to other areas of mainland China (this excludes 
Hong Kong) within the last 14 days should also not come to school.** They 
should monitor themselves for symptoms for the 14 days since their last day in 
China. Per federal guidance being released today, they should also call the 
public health department during regular business hours (408-885-3980, M-F 8-5) 
for further guidance. 


In either case, if they become symptomatic within 14 days since their last day in China 
with fever (including chills or night sweats), cough, or shortness of breath, they should 
call a healthcare provider and let them know their travel history and symptoms. 


Please do not require a physician’s clearance to return to work or school for students, 
employees, and other staff who have returned from traveling and are not sick. We are 
receiving communications that this is happening, which is impacting the medical system 
and preventing doctors from seeing patients who are ill. 


We encourage all students and staff to take common-sense precautions to 
prevent the spread of all infectious diseases, including common illnesses like 
colds and flu: 


 Encourage all students and staff to stay home when they are sick. 
 Those who have a fever at school should go home immediately and stay there 


for at least 24 hours after they no longer have a fever without the use of fever-
reducing medicine. 


 Separate sick students and staff from others in a separate place, until they can 
be picked up to go home. 


 Promote hand hygiene through education and availability of soap, hand 
sanitizers, and tissues. 


 Avoid touching your face, particularly your eyes, nose, and mouth. 
 Encourage proper cough etiquette—cough or sneeze into a tissue, sleeve, or 


arm. Do not use your hands. 
 Perform routine surface cleaning, particularly for high-touch surfaces. 
 Consider not attending or hosting large gatherings. This is where cold, flu, and 


other respiratory viruses are often spread. 


The Public Health Department has a webpage dedicated to novel coronavirus in 
English, Chinese, Spanish, and Vietnamese at sccphd.org/coronavirus. We will keep 
the webpage updated as we know more. We will monitor the developing situation and 
inform you of any additional public health recommendations. We deeply appreciate your 
partnership in communicating this information to students and families. We also greatly 
appreciate everyone’s efforts in staying informed, calm, and thoughtful as we all do our 
part to help keep our communities safe. 


All the best, 



http://sccphd.org/coronavirus





Sara H. Cody, MD, Health Officer and Director 
County of Santa Clara Public Health Department 


**Update on February 4: As a clarification, the section that instructs students and staff 
returning from mainland China to remain home for 14 days only applies to students and 
staff who returned on February 2 or later. For students and staff who came back to the 
U.S. before February 2, they may wish to consider staying home for 14 days after they 
left mainland China, but it is not mandatory, and they should continue monitoring 
themselves for symptoms until the end of the 14 days. Please note that mainland China 
does not include Hong Kong. 
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
To: Jue, Mary; Kimberly S. Coates (coatesk@sfusd.edu); Sop, Anna (DEM); Mele Lau-Smith
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Fw: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 8:35:00 PM
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
mailto:coatesk@sfusd.edu
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



https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/index.html

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
Subject: CAHAN Disease Guidance Notification – 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Schools and School Districts
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 7:36:53 PM
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

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/risk-assessment.html
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
Subject: Important: CDC Daily Key Points: 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) -- February 7, 2020
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 5:27:01 PM

 

Check Epi-X for an Important Report

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
EpiXEditor@cdc.gov
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
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From: CCSF Alert
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: CCSF Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#6)
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 5:14:41 PM
Importance: High

Please click here to acknowledge receipt of this message

Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#6)
Department of Emergency Management
Division of Emergency Services

02-07-2020 - 17:13:16

Situation Update:

International data:
31,530 confirmed cases; 31,213 cases in mainland China; 636 deaths in China
317 confirmed cases outside of China across 27 countries/regions.

National (U.S.) data:
12 total confirmed cases in the USA.
There are no confirmed cases in San Francisco.
The risk of novel coronavirus in California remains low.

There are no recommendations to cancel events.

https://gisanddata.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/bda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6

NOTE: Information may vary as events and reporting are rapidly evolving.

We are in flu season.  The San Francisco Department of Public Health (DPH) recommends that
persons with symptoms stay home from work, school, and social gatherings.  Practice hand-
washing precautions.  It’s never too late to get the flu vaccine.

 

SFDPH Activities:

DPH continues to coordinate with federal, state, regional, City agencies and community partners on nCoV
response efforts.  Areas of focus include: working with key stakeholders to implement federal quarantine
orders; conducting evaluation of travelers who returned before federal quarantine orders went into effect
(Jan 19th – Feb 2nd); identifying Persons Under Investigation (PUI) housing options; providing public
information that is accurate and accessible; providing guidance to clinicians; and coordinating with local
healthcare facilities and assessing hospital readiness.
DPH developing protocols for operationalizing traveler quarantine orders in SF, to promote safety and in
anticipation of growing needs for travelers returning from China and in need of evaluation, including
travelers returning from China pre-Federal Quarantine orders (before 02/03/20).
SF and regional partners identified the need for ongoing Federal support in execution of quarantine orders,
as collaboration and coordination across larger regions may be required.

mailto:conf-5e3e0b666781422ebdee1906-5e3e0b6234b110453cd59235@smtpic-ne.prd1.everbridge.net
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City & County of San Francisco (CCSF) Laboratories ordered nCoV-2019 testing supplies and instruction
kits to enable 7-day a week testing on site. Turn-around time for test results will drastically reduce to same
day or (maximum) 2 days wait time. Lab is fully staffed, available off hours, and have equipment and
supplies to run multiple tests, multiple times a day.
DPH revisiting protocols for field responders around Coronaviruses vs. Novel Coronaviruses and providing
education and support where needed.
The physical location of the DPH-Department Operations Center at 25 Van Ness, Room 610 is set-up and
operational. DOC meetings will now be held at 25 Van Ness beginning 02/06/2020. 
The 2 San Benito County cases were transferred to a SF hospital on 2/3/2020 for care.
DEM and DPH are working together to streamline communications and notifications, by identifying a
“Health Liaison” to work with the EOC.
SFDPH DOC held call with Dr. Erica Pan, Health Officer, Alameda County, to discuss aligning local
guidelines to CDC guidance regarding returning travelers.

 

Public Information:

The Joint Information Center (JIC) will be represented in the Lunar New Year Parade Incident Command
Post.
Joint statement between the San Francisco Department of Public Health (DPH), San Francisco
Department of Emergency Management (DEM), and Office of Racial Equity of the City and County of San
Francisco was released to the media: https://www.sf72.org/blog/san-francisco-rejects-xenophobia-and-
discrimination.
911 dispatchers and 311 call takers have been provided with updated FAQs. 311 has received 298
inquiries since 1/27/2020.
City Departments including but not limited to the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing,
Recreation and Park, Public Library and the Department of Children Youth and Families have distributed
fact sheets on the novel coronavirus.
The Department of Public Health and the Department of Emergency Management have updated the Novel
Coronavirus Factsheets and have provided talking points to San Francisco Leaders.
The Department of Human Resources and Department of Public Health have coordinated on developing
new guidance for city employees with travel history to China. DPOs will also receive further guidance.
Fact sheets are available in English, Chinese, Filipino, and Spanish, which may be distributed to both
employees and community members. Updated fact sheets are available on www.sfdph.org, www.sf72.org,
and www.sf.gov.
The San Francisco Unified School District has issued guidance consistent with federal guidelines to
parents on students who have had travel to China. The guidance can be found here:
https://www.sfusd.edu/announcements/2020-01-27-update-cold-flu-and-coronavirus
CCSF is not recommending the need for Chinese community or cultural events to be cancelled as SF
remains at low risk for nCoV-2019 transmission in the community.

CDC Response (updated 2020-02-05)

The federal government is working closely with state, local, tribal, and territorial partners as well as public
health partners to respond to this public health threat.
The public health response is multi-layered, with the goal of detecting and minimizing introductions of this
virus in the United States so as to reduce the spread and the impact of this virus.
U.S. Centers for Disease Control (CDC) established a 2019-nCoV Incident Management Structure on

https://www.sf72.org/blog/san-francisco-rejects-xenophobia-and-discrimination
https://www.sf72.org/blog/san-francisco-rejects-xenophobia-and-discrimination
http://www.sfdph.org/
http://www.sf72.org/
http://www.sf.gov/
https://www.sfusd.edu/announcements/2020-01-27-update-cold-flu-and-coronavirus


January 7, 2020. On January 21, 2020, CDC activated its Emergency Operations Center to better provide
ongoing support to the 2019-nCoV response.
On January 27, 2020, CDC issued updated travel guidance for China, recommending that travelers avoid
all nonessential travel to all of the country (Level 3 Travel Health Notice).
The U.S. government has taken unprecedented steps with respect to travel in response to the growing
public health threat posed by this new coronavirus:

Effective February 2, 2020 at 5pm, the U.S. government suspended entry of foreign nationals who
have been in China within the past 14 days.
US citizens who arrive on or after February 3, 2020, and were in Hubei Province, China in the past
14 days will undergo mandatory quarantine (at Travis AF Base) for 14 days. 
US citizens who arrive on or after February 3, 2020, and were in mainland China (not Hubei
Province) in the past 14 days will undergo self-quarantine and active monitoring for 14 days at home.
The local health department will monitor them.
US citizens who arrive before February 3, 2020, and were in mainland China (including Hubei
Province), should monitor their health for 14 days, and contact their health provider is they develop
symptoms (fever, cough, or difficulty breathing).
See more at: “Proclamation on Suspension of Entry as Immigrants and Nonimmigrants of Persons
who Pose a Risk of Transmitting 2019 Novel Coronavirus”.

CDC issued an interim Health Alert Network (HAN) Update to inform state and local health departments
and healthcare professionals about this outbreak on February 1, 2020.
On January 30, 2020, CDC published guidance for healthcare professionals on the clinical care of 2019-
nCoV patients.
On February 3, 2020, CDC posted guidance for assessing the potential risk for various exposures to 2019-
nCoV and managing those people appropriately.
CDC has deployed multidisciplinary teams to Washington, Illinois, California, and Arizona to assist health
departments with clinical management, contact tracing, and communications.
CDC has developed a real time Reverse Transcription-Polymerase Chain Reaction (rRT-PCR) test that
can diagnose 2019-nCoV in respiratory and serum samples from clinical specimens. On January 24, 2020,
CDC publicly posted the assay protocol for this test. Currently, testing for this virus must take place at
CDC.
CDC submitted an Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) package to the U.S. Food and Drugs
Administration (FDA) on February 3, 2020.
FDA approved the EUA, on February 4, 2020. On February 5, 2020, CDC test kits were available for
ordering by domestic and international partners through the agency’s International Reagent Resource.

 

Resources:

Department of Public Health (SFDPH): https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-
2019-novel-coronavirus/
Department of Emergency Management (DEM): https://SF72.org 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC): https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
World Health Organization (WHO): https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019
For operational coordination and information sharing, visit WebEOC (https://sfvem.org) under Incident
Name: 2020-01-21 2019 nCoV. Note - WebEOC is password protected.

 

Situation Summary:

https://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/destinations/traveler/none/china#travel-notices
https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/proclamation-suspension-entry-immigrants-nonimmigrants-persons-pose-risk-transmitting-2019-novel-coronavirus/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/proclamation-suspension-entry-immigrants-nonimmigrants-persons-pose-risk-transmitting-2019-novel-coronavirus/
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/han00427.asp
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/clinical-guidance-management-patients.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/clinical-guidance-management-patients.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/risk-assessment.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/lab/index.html
https://www.internationalreagentresource.org/
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https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfcdcp.org%2Finfectious-diseases-a-to-z%2Fcoronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7Cf151896d416d46bd7ca508d7ab837936%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C1%7C637166453470870504&sdata=ilZ8buUSUMBeuIzi96N1hY1A8YPFglkEq1Wr1aB81Uc%3D&reserved=0
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CDC is closely monitoring an outbreak of respiratory illness caused by a novel (new) coronavirus (named
“2019-nCoV”) that was first detected in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China and which continues to
expand.
Chinese health officials have reported thousands of infections with 2019-nCoV in China, with the virus
reportedly spreading from person-to-person in many parts of that country.
Infections with 2019-nCoV, most of them associated with travel from Wuhan, also are being reported in a
growing number of international locations, including the United States.

DEM Contact Information:
Duty Officer (415) 260-2591
Watch Center Operations (415) 558-2738; operational Mon-Sun, 0600-2200 Hours
Email: demdutyofficer@sfgov.org

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED AND MAY
CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED OR CONFIDENTIAL, THE RECIPIENT OF THIS REPORT SHOULD BE AWARE
THAT THIS REPORT MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS NOT VERIFIED.

CCSF Alert is owned and operated by the City and County of San Francisco. To change the way you receive CCSF Alerts, contact your
Department's Disaster Preparedness Coordinator.

mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org


From: DutyOfficer, DEM (DEM)
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: RE: DRFAT: CCSF Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#6)
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 4:35:50 PM

Thank you!
 

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 4:19 PM
To: DutyOfficer, DEM (DEM) <demdutyofficer@sfgov.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>
Cc: Zamora, Francis (DEM) <francis.zamora@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: DRFAT: CCSF Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#6)
 
After "Practice hand-washing precautions." add "It's never too late to get the flu vaccine."
 
Change:
"U.S. citizens, residents and their immediate family members who have been in Hubei province and other parts of mainland
China are allowed to enter the United States, but they are subject to health monitoring and possible quarantine for up to 14
days" to
 
US citizens who arrive on or after February 3, 2020, and were in Hubei Province, China in the past 14 days will undergo
mandatory quarantine (at Travis AF Base) for 14 days.  
 
US citizens who arrive on or after February 3, 2020, and were in mainland China (not Hubei Province) in the past 14
days will undergo self-quarantine and active monitoring for 14 days at home. The local health department will monitor
them.
 
US citizens who arrive before February 3, 2020, and were in mainland China (including Hubei Province), should monitor
their health for 14 days, and contact their health provider is they develop symptoms (fever, cough, or difficulty
breathing). 
 
Thanks!
 
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
"Radical transformational leadership is leading change from the universal values of dignity, equity, compassion and humility
to transform self, people, systems and cultures towards equity and sustainable results." (learn more http://bit.ly/phd-lead)  
------
NOTICE: This message and attachments may contain confidential or privileged information. If you are not the intended
recipient, disclosure, copying, use, or distribution of the information is prohibited. Notify the sender immediately and
delete all information.
 

From: DutyOfficer, DEM (DEM) <demdutyofficer@sfgov.org>
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 3:51 PM
To: Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Cc: Zamora, Francis (DEM) <francis.zamora@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org>
Subject: DRFAT: CCSF Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#6)
 
07-February 2020
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Hello-
 
DRAFT: For your review.  Thanks.
 
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
We are in flu season. The San Francisco Department of Public Health (DPH) recommends that
persons with symptoms stay home from work, school, and social gatherings. Practice hand-
washing precautions.

 
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
(Jan 19th – Feb 2nd); identifying PUI housing options; providing public information that is accurate and
accessible; providing guidance to clinicians; and coordinating with local healthcare facilities and assessing
hospital readiness.
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
Post and is prepared to develop bilingual messaging in the event of an incident.
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
Coronavirus Factsheets and are providing talking points to San Francisco Leaders.
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
SFDPH Page: https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/
SFDPH DOC held call with Dr. Erica Pan, Health Officer, Alameda County, to discuss aligning local
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
U.S. citizens, residents and their immediate family members who have been in Hubei province and
other parts of mainland China are allowed to enter the United States, but they are subject to health
monitoring and possible quarantine for up to 14 days.
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
To: Zamora, Francis (DEM); Lim, Victor (DEM)
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH)
Subject: RE: DRAFT: CCSF Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#6)
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 4:35:38 PM

07-February 2020
Hello-
Updated DRAFT with edits from Dr. Aragon added.  Thanks.
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

https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsf72.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7Cf151896d416d46bd7ca508d7ab837936%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C1%7C637166453470870504&sdata=Z9OYo5v8Qf3zxZ0kX5E1MxCbSuU%2B8btYAcbS%2Btq9nmE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Findex.html&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7Cf151896d416d46bd7ca508d7ab837936%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C1%7C637166453470880461&sdata=qlKaKOYfIVv%2F%2Bjl2PYELPZoFuRj8deGs4zzohvlehrY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.who.int%2Femergencies%2Fdiseases%2Fnovel-coronavirus-2019&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7Cf151896d416d46bd7ca508d7ab837936%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637166453470880461&sdata=ZbgnbDCCaD7Uq3TYu3VIY1HkDnuobcLwJqw9QD1AHaQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsfvem.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7Cf151896d416d46bd7ca508d7ab837936%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637166453470890420&sdata=udntB4N6nxgp3uz%2FqOBAcqiFxeMNnJbxq1ouz7u%2BSdw%3D&reserved=0
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

https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2Fphd-lead&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7C43614e9f77b847adc41208d7ac2c782f%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637167179298154202&sdata=suy4EBFy7RtIk8PI1WqKD%2Br5C2dVSKmAZ%2F8ae7ZhnZw%3D&reserved=0
mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org
mailto:susan.philip@sfdph.org
mailto:tomas.aragon@sfdph.org
mailto:francis.zamora@sfgov.org
mailto:victor.lim@sfgov.org
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgisanddata.maps.arcgis.com%2Fapps%2Fopsdashboard%2Findex.html%23%2Fbda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7C43614e9f77b847adc41208d7ac2c782f%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637167179298154202&sdata=dD7l92TWNxY16nY0%2FsTERJogiHutol8h%2F7LodvXiWuE%3D&reserved=0


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
 

https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfcdcp.org%2Finfectious-diseases-a-to-z%2Fcoronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7C43614e9f77b847adc41208d7ac2c782f%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637167179298214167&sdata=Ur%2FspSPKyCLnm3qNfWOqZ1NN5MII%2B4cHpEyciCzPI1c%3D&reserved=0
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
Subject: Important: ~*~ Special Epi-X Media Tracking Report - Novel Coronavirus, February 7, 2020 ~*~
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 3:55:00 PM

 

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
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mailto:EpiXEditor@cdc.gov


From: DutyOfficer, DEM (DEM)
To: Philip, Susan (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Zamora, Francis (DEM); Lim, Victor (DEM)
Subject: DRFAT: CCSF Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#6)
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 3:51:53 PM

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
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https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgisanddata.maps.arcgis.com%2Fapps%2Fopsdashboard%2Findex.html%23%2Fbda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7Cf151896d416d46bd7ca508d7ab837936%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C1%7C637166453470840634&sdata=PH7DEa2QqKfiDVw2ELtojHVfQSf1%2F2%2BJB3otMlXzHLA%3D&reserved=0
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
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From: Nguyen, Rita (DPH)
To: Chan, Curtis (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Louie, Janice (DPH)
Subject: RE: School Information.
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 2:48:08 PM
Attachments: Interim Guidance on Monitoring and Movement for San Franciscans and travel before Feb 3 2-7-20 FINAL.docx

Attached is the info that’s on sfcdcp website for returning travelers:
https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/
or sfcdcp.org/novelcoronavirus
 
What should I know and do if I recently traveled to China?
 
Given the increasing spread of novel coronavirus in China, the CDC issued new guidance and is
closely monitoring returning travelers from China beginning February 3, 2020 in partnership
with the San Francisco Department of Public Health.
By federal order, as of February 3, 2020:

Foreign nationals returning from China will not be allowed entry into the U.S. unless
they are immediate family of U.S. citizens or permanent residents.

All U.S. citizens returning from Hubei Province, China will be subject to a mandatory 14-
day quarantine by the federal government.

U.S. citizens returning from other parts of mainland China who have fever, cough, or
shortness of breath will undergo mandatory quarantine. This does not include travel to
Hong Kong. If this applies to you, please call SFDPH at 415-554-2830.

U.S. citizens returning from other parts of mainland China who DO NOT have fever,
cough, or shortness of breath will undergo self-quarantine at home with monitoring by
their local health department. Do not go to school, work, or social gatherings. This does
not include travel to Hong Kong. If this applies to you, please call SFDPH at 415-554-
2830.

 
The San Francisco Department of Public Health recommends that travelers who returned from
China BEFORE February 3 monitor themselves for 14 days after their last day in China. If
symptoms (fever, cough, or shortness of breath) occur during that time, please contact your
health provider, inform them of your travel history and self-isolate at home pending their
advice. Do not go to work, school or social events if you have these symptoms.
 
For more information about what to do for recent travelers who returned from China before
February 3rd, review the SFDPH Interim Guidance for Returning Travelers from China
 
The blue link above goes to the word docs attached here
 
 
 
****************************************
Rita Nguyen, MD
Assistant Health Officer
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Interim Guidance on Monitoring and Restrictions for San Francisco Residents 

Who are NOT Healthcare Workers and Traveled in China Before February 3, 2020



Given the increasing spread of novel coronavirus in China, the CDC issued new guidance and is closely monitoring returning travelers from China beginning February 3, 2020 in partnership with the San Francisco Department of Public Health. The CDC is providing instructions to travelers from China at airports.  

For San Francisco residents who traveled to China before February 3, 2020 and who are NOT healthcare workers, please see the information below about monitoring for symptoms and what to do if you develop symptoms. Healthcare workers should see separate guidance below.



		I was in China before 2/3/20 and…

		Monitoring

		Restrictions on Public Activities*

		Travel*



		I do NOT have fever1, cough, or shortness of breath

		Self-observation† (SEE BELOW) for 14 days after you left China

		No restriction2 as long as you do not have fever, cough, shortness of breath

		No restriction2 as long as you do not have fever, cough, or shortness of breath



		

		If you develop fever1, cough, or shortness of breath within 14 days of leaving China, proceed to the row below.



		I have or I had fever1, cough, or shortness of breath within 14 days of leaving China

		Call your medical provider and let them know your travel history and that you have been self-monitoring. 

		Stay at home and do not go to school or work. Avoid contact with others and public activities by practicing social distancing‡ (SEE BELOW) until you no longer have these symptoms for 24 hours3

		Do not fly on commercial flights or take local public transportation (e.g., bus, subway, taxi, ride share like Lyft and Uber) until you no longer have symptoms for 24 hours3







*Please note these are measures we would generally advise even in the absence of concern for novel coronavirus. These are precautions people should practice to minimize spread of infection from any respiratory illness, including cold and flu.

1 Fever can be either subjective (“I feel like I’m having a fever”) or a measured temperature >38oC or >100.4oF

2Please note individual employers, schools, and other institutions may choose to implement more rigorous policies regarding exclusion from work, school, etc. Individuals without symptoms may also choose to practice social distancing for the 14 day period after they return from China. SFDPH highly encourages all employers, schools, and other institutions to work closely with individuals to minimize financial, logistical, and other hardships.

3If your symptoms last, seek medical advice.



†Self-observation: Remain alert for fever, cough, shortness of breath. If you develop these symptoms, see the advice for “I have a fever1, cough, or shortness of breath”

‡Social distancing: Remain out of:

· public places where close contact with others may occur (e.g., shopping centers, movie theaters, stadiums),

· workplaces 

· schools and other classroom settings, and 

· local public transportation (e.g., bus, subway, taxi, ride share like Lyft and Uber)

until you no longer have fever1, cough, or shortness of breath for 24 hours3



If you do not have any symptoms of illness and have questions about novel coronavirus, please visit https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/ or https://www.sfcdcp.org/coronavirus

If you are having symptoms of illness, please call your healthcare provider.

Interim Guidance on Monitoring and Restrictions for  

Healthcare Workers Who Work In San Francisco 

and Traveled in China Before February 3, 2020



[bookmark: _GoBack]Given the increasing spread of novel coronavirus in China, the CDC issued new guidance and is closely monitoring returning travelers from China beginning February 3, 2020 in partnership with the San Francisco Department of Public Health. The CDC is providing instructions to travelers from China at airports.  

For healthcare workers who work in San Francisco and traveled to China before February 3, 2020, please see the guidance below about monitoring for symptoms and what to do if you develop symptoms. This serves as interim guidance and may change as CDC guidance changes.



		I was in China before 2/3/20 and…

		Monitoring

		Restrictions on Public Activities*

		Travel*



		I do NOT have fever1, cough, or shortness of breath

		Self-observation† (SEE BELOW) AND check your temperature twice a day including at the beginning of each shift for 14 days after you left China

		No restriction2 as long as you do not have fever, cough, shortness of breath

		No restriction2 as long as you do not have fever, cough, or shortness of breath



		

		If you develop fever1, cough, or shortness of breath within 14 days of leaving China , notify Occupational Health that you have developed symptoms and proceed to the row below.



		I have or I had fever1, cough, or shortness of breath within 14 days of leaving China

		Call your medical provider and let them know your travel history and that you have been self-monitoring

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

· workplaces , 

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

Version 02.07.20







Chronic Disease Physician Specialist
Population Health Division
San Francisco Department of Public Health
 
25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 500
San Francisco 94102
(415) 437-6244
rita.nguyen@sfdph.org
 
DPH e-mails sent to and from personal email accounts or outside the DPH/UCSF servers are not
secured data transmissions for Protected Health Information (PHI), as defined by the Healthcare
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).  It is the responsibility of all parties involved to take all
reasonable actions to protect this message from non-authorized disclosure.  This e-mail is intended
for the recipient only.  If you receive this e-mail in error, notify the sender and destroy the e-mail
immediately.  Disclosure of the PHI contained herein may subject discloser to civil or criminal
penalties under state and federal privacy laws.
 

From: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 2:29 PM
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Nguyen, Rita (DPH) <rita.nguyen@sfdph.org>
Cc: Louie, Janice (DPH) <janice.louie@sfdph.org>
Subject: School Information.
 
fyi:
Attached are school letters from
CDPH draft 2/3
SFUSD  updated 2/5
Alameda PH2/4
Marin PH2/4
Santa Clara PH  2/4
 
 

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

mailto:Susan.Philip@sfdph.org
http://www.sfdph.org/mch
mailto:Curtis.Chan@sfdph.org


From: DPH, Phepr (DPH)
To: DPH-PHD-Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response; Ochi, Ed (DPH); Vien, Veronica (DPH); Stoltey,

Juliet (DPH); Stier, David (DPH); Duren, James (DPH); Majeski, Nick (ADM); Sanchez, Melissa (DPH); Masinde,
Godfred (DPH); Siador, Christine (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Kwong, Amanda (DPH); DPH-Integration
Steering Committee; aram.bronston@acgov.org; cdphdutyofficer@cdph.ca.gov; DutyOfficer, DEM (DEM);
mhccsitreps&resourcerequests@cdph.ca.gov; chess@ncric.ca.gov; Padilla, Cristina (DPH); Acosta, Linda (DPH);
Naser, Rawan (DPH); Nguyen, Rita (UCSF); Van Etten, Susan (DPH); Aime.dubois@sfdph.org; Zarate, Sheilah
(DPH); Robert, Anna (DPH); OVADIA, AMY (DPH); Saelee, Kenpou (DPH); McDonald, Thomas (ADM); Barbrich,
Krzysztof (ADM); Enanoria, Wayne (DPH); Sanchez, Melissa (UCSF); Ongpin, Melissa (DPH); Do, Jennifer-Xuan
(DPH); Paule, Gretchen (DPH); Sefat, Cimma (DPH); Bunting, Buffy (DPH); Pierce, Karen (DPH); Rodriguez,
Marise (DPH); Ta, Melissa (DPH); Lee, Elaine (DPH); Buckley, Ken (DPH); Aguallo, Daisy (DPH); Obien, Elaine
(DPH); Palma, David (DPH); Gee, Katherine (DPH); Murrell, Drew (DPH); Schmidt, Jeffrey (DPH); Grimes, John
(DPH); Louie, Janice (DPH); Bacon, Oliver (UCSF); Lam, WaiMing (DPH); Maxson, Latonya (DPH); Chan, Curtis
(DPH); Matyjas, Mark (DPH); Holcomb, Andrew (DPH); Duty Officer, EMSA@EMSA; Kirian, Michelle; Strona,
Frank (DPH); Wall, Megan (DPH); Xu, Jason (DPH); Johnson, Kelly (UCSF); Burke, Kenneth (DBI)

Subject: SFDPH DOC nCoV Incident Action Plan 02/07/20
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 2:37:00 PM
Attachments: OP4_nCoV-2019 IAP_2020.02.07.docx

Hello partners and colleagues! 

The SF Department of Public Health continues to work closely with the U.S. Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), the California Department of Public Health, and
CCSF's Department of Emergency Management to monitor the nCoV-2019 outbreak and
preparing a response that protects and informs the public. Attached you will find the most
recent SFDPH Department Operations Center (DOC) Incident Operations Plan containing
more detail re: DOC actions, objectives, and the citywide response. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter!
---
Public Health Emergency Preparedness & Response (PHEPR) Branch
San Francisco Department of Public Health

mailto:phepr.dph@sfdph.org
mailto:DPH-PublicHealthEmergencyPreparednessandResponse@SFGOV1.onmicrosoft.com
mailto:ed.ochi@sfdph.org
mailto:veronica.vien@sfdph.org
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mailto:james.duren@sfdph.org
mailto:nick.majeski@sfgov.org
mailto:melissa.sanchez@sfdph.org
mailto:godfred.masinde@sfdph.org
mailto:godfred.masinde@sfdph.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e094cad44bdb4d55b99cff43b65607d7-Christine Siador
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
mailto:amanda.kwong@sfdph.org
mailto:DPH.ISC@sfdph.org
mailto:DPH.ISC@sfdph.org
mailto:aram.bronston@acgov.org
mailto:cdphdutyofficer@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org
mailto:mhccsitreps&resourcerequests@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:chess@ncric.ca.gov
mailto:cristina.padilla@sfdph.org
mailto:linda.acosta@sfdph.org
mailto:rawan.naser@sfdph.org
mailto:Rita.Nguyen@ucsf.edu
mailto:susan.vanetten@sfdph.org
mailto:Aime.dubois@sfdph.org
mailto:sheilah.zarate@sfdph.org
mailto:sheilah.zarate@sfdph.org
mailto:anna.robert@sfdph.org
mailto:amy.ovadia@sfdph.org
mailto:kenpou.saelee@sfdph.org
mailto:thomas.mcdonald@sfgov.org
mailto:krzysztof.barbrich@sfgov.org
mailto:krzysztof.barbrich@sfgov.org
mailto:Wayne.Enanoria@sfdph.org
mailto:Melissa.Sanchez@ucsf.edu
mailto:melissa.ongpin@sfdph.org
mailto:jennifer-xuan.do@sfdph.org
mailto:jennifer-xuan.do@sfdph.org
mailto:gretchen.paule@sfdph.org
mailto:cimma.sefat@sfdph.org
mailto:buffy.bunting@sfdph.org
mailto:karen.pierce@sfdph.org
mailto:marise.rodriguez@sfdph.org
mailto:marise.rodriguez@sfdph.org
mailto:melissa.ta@sfdph.org
mailto:elaine.lee@sfdph.org
mailto:ken.buckley@sfdph.org
mailto:daisy.m.aguallo@sfdph.org
mailto:elaine.obien@sfdph.org
mailto:elaine.obien@sfdph.org
mailto:david.palma@sfdph.org
mailto:Katherine.Gee@sfdph.org
mailto:drew.murrell@sfdph.org
mailto:jeffrey.schmidt@sfdph.org
mailto:john.grimes@sfdph.org
mailto:john.grimes@sfdph.org
mailto:janice.louie@sfdph.org
mailto:Oliver.Bacon@ucsf.edu
mailto:waiming.lam@sfdph.org
mailto:latonya.maxson@sfdph.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f99a63daa440401389225bcc93dec198-Curtis Chan
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f99a63daa440401389225bcc93dec198-Curtis Chan
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e28e0e43ffcf4d5ca9f0b3ecb3ca6b99-Mark Matyja
mailto:andrew.holcomb@sfgov.org
mailto:EMSADutyOfficer@EMSA.CA.GOV
mailto:Michelle.Kirian@sfdph.org
mailto:frank.strona@sfdph.org
mailto:frank.strona@sfdph.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=681aa91b4b7a4c93941d5679c63cfcf4-Megan Wall
mailto:jason.xu@sfdph.org
mailto:KJohnson@ucsf.edu
mailto:kenneth.burke@sfgov.org
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***FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY***



		DOC OBJECTIVES 





		1. EVENT NAME:



nCoV-2019 Activation

		2. DATE / TIME:



Feb 06, 2020 / 12:00

		3. OPERATIONAL PERIOD (Date/Time):



Feb 10, 2020 – Feb 16, 2020



		4. SITUATIONAL UPDATE FOR DPH DOC RESPONSE: 



Situation Background (updated 2020-02-05)

Sources: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/summary.html

https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/situation-reports/



CDC is closely monitoring an outbreak of respiratory illness caused by a novel (new) coronavirus (named “2019-nCoV”) that was first detected in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China and which continues to expand. Chinese health officials have reported tens of thousands of infections with 2019-nCoV in China, with the virus reportedly spreading from person-to-person in parts of that country. Infections with 2019-nCoV, most of them associated with travel from Wuhan, also are being reported in a growing number of international locations, including the United States. Some person-to-person spread of this virus outside China has been detected. The United States reported the first confirmed instance of person-to-person spread with this virus on January 30, 2020.



On January 30, 2020, the International Health Regulations Emergency Committee of the World Health Organization declared the outbreak a “public health emergency of international concern” (PHEIC). On January 31, 2020, Health and Human Services Secretary Alex M. Azar II declared a public health emergency (PHE) for the United States to aid the nation’s healthcare community in responding to 2019-nCoV. Also on January 31, the President of the United States signed a presidential “Proclamation on Suspension of Entry as Immigrants and Nonimmigrants of Persons who Pose a Risk of Transmitting 2019 Novel Coronavirus“. These measures were announced at a press briefing by members of the President’s Coronavirus Task Force.



Coronaviruses are a large family of viruses that are common in many different species of animals, including camels, cattle, cats, and bats. Rarely, animal coronaviruses can infect people and then spread between people such as with MERS, SARS, and now with 2019-nCoV.



Early on, many of the patients in the outbreak of respiratory illness caused by 2019-nCov in Wuhan, China had some link to a large seafood and live animal market, suggesting animal-to-person spread. Later, a growing number of patients reportedly did not have exposure to animal markets, indicating person-to-person spread. Chinese officials report that sustained person-to-person spread in the community is occurring in China. Person-to-person spread has been reported outside China, including in the United States and other countries. In addition, cases asymptomatic spread of the virus have been reported. Learn what is known about the spread of newly emerged coronaviruses.



There are ongoing investigations to learn more. This is a rapidly evolving situation and information will be updated as it becomes available.













Estimation of total number of cases (updated 2020-02-06 at 06:33 EST)

https://gisanddata.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/bda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6



# of Cases/Deaths

Worldwide: 31,530 Cases/638 Deaths

US: 12 Cases/0 Deaths (Seattle, Chicago - 2, Tempe, California - 6, Boston, Wisconsin)

CA: 6 Cases/0 Deaths (LA County, Orange County, Santa Clara County: 2, San Benito County: 2)

SF: 0 Cases/0 Deaths







Situation Summary in U.S. (updated 2020-02-06)

Imported cases of 2019-nCoV infection in travelers have been detected in the U.S. Person-to-person spread of 2019-nCoV also has been seen among close contacts of returned travelers from Wuhan, but at this time, this virus is NOT currently spreading in the community in the United States.



The U.S. government has taken unprecedented steps related to travel in response to the growing public health threat posed by this new coronavirus, including suspending entry in the United States of foreign nationals who have visited China within the past 14 days. Measures to detect this virus among those who are allowed entry into the United States (U.S. citizens, residents and family) who have been in China within 14 days also are being implemented.





CDC Response (updated 2020-02-05)

· The federal government is working closely with state, local, tribal, and territorial partners as well as public health partners to respond to this public health threat.

· The public health response is multi-layered, with the goal of detecting and minimizing introductions of this virus in the United States so as to reduce the spread and the impact of this virus.

· CDC established a 2019-nCoV Incident Management Structure on January 7, 2020. On January 21, 2020, CDC activated its Emergency Operations Center to better provide ongoing support to the 2019-nCoV response.

· On January 27, 2020, CDC issued updated travel guidance for China, recommending that travelers avoid all nonessential travel to all of the country (Level 3 Travel Health Notice).

· The U.S. government has taken unprecedented steps with respect to travel in response to the growing public health threat posed by this new coronavirus:

· Effective February 2, 2020 at 5pm, the U.S. government suspended entry of foreign nationals who have been in China within the past 14 days.

· U.S. citizens, residents and their immediate family members who have been in Hubei province and other parts of mainland China are allowed to enter the United States, but they are subject to health monitoring and possible quarantine for up to 14 days.

· See more at: “Proclamation on Suspension of Entry as Immigrants and Nonimmigrants of Persons who Pose a Risk of Transmitting 2019 Novel Coronavirus”.

· CDC issued an interim Health Alert Network (HAN) Update to inform state and local health departments and healthcare professionals about this outbreak on February 1, 2020.

· On January 30, 2020, CDC published guidance for healthcare professionals on the clinical care of 2019-nCoV patients.

· On February 3, 2020, CDC posted guidance for assessing the potential risk for various exposures to 2019-nCoV and managing those people appropriately.

· CDC has deployed multidisciplinary teams to Washington, Illinois, California, and Arizona to assist health departments with clinical management, contact tracing, and communications.

· CDC has developed a real time Reverse Transcription-Polymerase Chain Reaction (rRT-PCR) test that can diagnose 2019-nCoV in respiratory and serum samples from clinical specimens. On January 24, 2020, CDC publicly posted the assay protocol for this test. Currently, testing for this virus must take place at CDC.

· CDC submitted an Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) package to the U.S. Food and Drugs Administration on February 3, 2020.

· FDA approved the EUA, on February 4, 2020. On February 5, 2020, CDC test kits were available for ordering by domestic and international partners through the agency’s International Reagent Resource.



Situation Summary in San Francisco (updated 2020-02-06)

There are zero confirmed coronavirus cases at this time in SF. The SF Department of Public Health (DPH) is working closely with the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the California Department of Public Health, monitoring the outbreak and preparing a response that protects the public.



DPH activated the DOC on 1/21/2020.  CCSF activated the EOC on 1/27/2020.  



DPH continues to coordinate with federal, state, regional, City agencies and community partners on nCoV response efforts.  Areas of focus include: working with key stakeholders to implement federal quarantine orders; conducting evaluation of travelers who returned before federal quarantine orders went into effect (Jan 19th – Feb 2nd); identifying PUI housing options; providing public information that is accurate and accessible; providing guidance to clinicians; and coordinating with local healthcare facilities and assessing hospital readiness. 



	

SFDPH DOC Response Activities during previous operational period (updated 2020-02-05)

· Chinese community stakeholder “round table” on 02/04/20 (hosted by the Mayor’s Office, DEM, and DPH) was a great success. CCSF plans to continue robust outreach to the Chinese community to ensure up-to-date public information is accessible.

· CCSF is not recommending the need for Chinese community or cultural events to be cancelled as SF remains at low risk for nCoV-2019 transmission in the community. 

· DEM/DPH/HRC have developed anti-discrimination messaging and are working with the Mayor’s Office to plan for dissemination.

· DPH developing protocols for operationalizing traveler quarantine orders in SF, to promote safety and in anticipation of growing needs for travelers returning from China and in need of evaluation, including travelers returning from China pre-Federal Quarantine orders (before 02/03/20).

· SF and regional partners identified the need for ongoing Federal support in execution of quarantine orders, as collaboration and coordination across larger regions may be required.

· SF and regional acute care hospitals have identified a critical resource gap for accessing N95 and surgical masks. DPH Supply Unit is actively working on this issue and will provide updates. 

· CCSF Laboratories ordered nCoV-2019 testing supplies and instruction kits to enable 7-day a week testing on site. Turn around time for test results will drastically reduce to same day or (maximum) 2 days wait time. Lab is fully staffed, available off hours, and have equipment and supplies to run multiple tests, multiple times a day.

· DPH revisiting protocols for field responders around Coronaviruses vs. Novel Coronaviruses and providing education and support where needed.

· DEM and DPH are working together to streamline communications and notifications, by identifying a “Health Liaison” to work with the EOC.
SFDPH Page: https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/

· SFDPH DOC held call with Dr. Erica Pan, Health Officer, Alameda County, to discuss aligning local guidelines to CDC guidance regarding returning travelers.

· The physical location of the DOC at 25VN, Room 610 is set-up and operational. DOC meetings will now be held at 25VN beginning 02/06/2020.  

· Activated 311 to help field calls and directed 311 to FAQs posted to CDCP website

· The 2 San Benito County cases were transferred to a SF hospital on 2/3/2020 for care





		5. OBJECTIVES/ACTIVITIES FOR OPERATIONAL PERIOD (overarching departmental citywide objectives)



		OBJECTIVE

		ACTIVITIES

		RESPONSIBLE SECTION/UNIT/BRANCH



		1. Protect the public and vulnerable populations



		1.1 Transmission containment

1.2 Develop notification and referral process for SF healthcare facilities

1.3 Review and adapt CDC healthcare and infection control guidelines

1.4 Develop EMS transport plan

1.5 Identify personnel to fill the role of Equity Officer to ensure protection of impacted communities 





		1.1 Containment Branch

1.2 Medical Branch

1.3 Info & Guidance

1.4 Medical Branch/EMS

1.5 Plans/IC



		2. Support the Communicable Disease surveillance and laboratory testing infrastructure.



		2.1 Develop tracking system and line list for PUIs

2.2 Finalize forms to monitor and evaluate returning travelers/PUIs

2.3 Conduct verification test for CDC-provided nCoV test kit, upon receiving the test kit

2.4 Perform nCoV lab tests on PUI samples (contingent on completion of Objective 2.3)

2.5 Expedite resource requests and hiring process for additional staff to support Operations activities

2.6 Establish a back-up shipping account for mailing specimens to CDC on weekends

2.7 Provide guidance to clinicians and conduct patient follow up

2.8 Identify additional nurse staff for field investigation teams to deploy for patient follow-up 

2.9 Coordinate and provide PPE training and fit testing to field teams

2.10 Develop clinician FAQs sheet and talking points to support Clinical Consult Team – Phone Bank

		2.1 Epi & Surveillance

2.2 Epi & Surveillance

2.3 Lab

2.4 Lab

2.5 Logistics

2.6 Logistics/Finance

2.7 Clinical Consult Team

2.8 Info & Guidance/ Logistics/ Medical Branch

2.9 OSH/Medical Branch

2.10 Info & Guidance/ Medical Branch



		3. Maintain situational awareness and provide messaging to the public



		3.1 Establish regular communication with key partners (EMS, DEM, CDPH, Healthcare Facilities)

3.2 Coordinate with ABAHO JIC on regional media messages

3.3 Develop communications plan for Chinese Community

3.4 Update public information on digital sources, as needed

3.5 Develop communications plan to announce a case, if SF has a confirmed case

3.6 Develop and disseminate DPH staff messaging and messaging for City staff via DHR 

3.7 Provide updates to elected officials

3.8 Rumor control – ensure that accurate information is posted on various media outlets

3.9 Identify Health Liaison to EOC



		3.1 EMS - EMS rep;

DEM - PHEPR rep; 

CDPH – PHEPR rep;

Health Facilities – Medical Branch

3.2 PIO

3.3 PIO

3.4 PIO

3.5 PIO

3.6 PIO

3.7 PIO/JIC

3.8 PIO/JIC

3.9 Plans Section



		4.  Maintain situational awareness on medical surge and support healthcare facilities



		4.1 Develop clinical guidelines communication strategy

4.2 Monitor the healthcare system (Hospitals, EMS) for potential surge

4.3 Provide information on hospital readiness to CDPH

4.4. Engage primary care and outpatient clinics to mitigate hospital surge

4.5 Develop messaging and guidance to health care facilities around N95 masks and appropriate screening procedures



		4.1 Info & Guidance

4.2 Medical Branch

4.3 Medical Branch

4.4 Medical Branch

4.5 PIO/ Info & Guidance/ Medical Branch



		5. Develop advance planning strategy 



		5.1 Identify events/or conditions likely to occur for future operational periods and anticipated resource needs

5.2 Identify potential impacts if nCoV establishes itself in San Francisco

5.3 Maintain DPH’s continuity of operations

5.4 Develop policy and criteria for potential special event cancellation



		5.1 Plans Section

5.2 Advance Planning Team

5.3 IC/Command

5.4 IC









		6.  MAJOR DECISIONS/POLICY CHANGES



There is a need to further expand DOC capacity to meet operational objectives.  Additional DOC positions will be activated and DPH staff identified to fill these roles.  The DOC will also begin to schedule shift changes to provide activated staff with rest periods. 



		7. DPH DOC SAFETY MESSAGE

DOC staff – Remember to take breaks, eat, and hydrate, as needed, to avoid fatigue

Field teams – work with the DOC Safety Officer regarding PPE requirements



		8. DPH DOC DOCUMENTS/PRODUCTS DEVELOPED (Include title, name of Branch/Group that developed, and location of document)  All final documents uploaded onto TEAMs site



a. Ambulatory Care Guidelines | Info & Guidance 

b. Travel Posters (English, Spanish, Chinese) | Info & Guidance | accessible to public via DPH website and social media

c. Novel Coronavirus PCR on PH Laboratory Test Menu | Info & Guidance | accessible online on CDCP website

d. Clinical and Laboratory Guidance for Managing Patients Who May Have Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) Infection | Laboratory | accessible online on CDCP website







		9.  MAJOR PROBLEMS OR CONCERNS



DOC Staffing

DPH DOC Operations Section needs significant staff support to address response activities without impacting continuity of regular Communicable Disease functions, especially in anticipation of evaluating returning/returned travelers.  Additional staffing is needed in multiple DOC sections to meet expanding operational objectives and planned shift changes. 



DOC functions in need of additional personnel:

· Clinical Consultation Team – clinical staff for phone bank and field teams to conduct interviews with return travelers 

· Logistics – fill Deputy Logistics Chief and additional Personnel Unit Team Member positions, plus additional staff for shift changes

· Plans Section – additional staff for shift changes



PUI Housing 

PUIs who are symptomatic but not sick enough to be hospitalized will need housing options.  DPH DOC, in collaboration with other City Agencies and partners, need to solidify housing options for SF PUI’s and potentially non-SF residents identified at airport who may need to be housed locally. A minor plan is in place and a follow-up meeting will be scheduled to identify additional options.





N95 Respirator & Surgical Mask Supply

Healthcare staff have been improperly keeping N95 and surgical masks for personal use due to nCoV concerns. PPE guidance to healthcare staff will be developed and disseminated.  





PUI Housing

DPH needs to identify a team to work on how housing will be provided to PUIs who cannot home isolate. Once formed, DPH team will work with HSA and DEM as part of the Care and Shelter Branch to operationalize plan and identify possible locations. An initial workgroup meeting has been set for Tuesday 2/11.



Community Branch

The DPH DOC needs to add a Community Branch to the Operations Section in order to plan and implement community engagement strategies. This includes meetings/town halls with occupational health professionals and healthcare professionals at daycares, preschools, and K-12 schools. 







		10.  Weather Conditions/Forecast/Events







		Prepared By:                                                                Date/Time:  Feb 6, 2020 / 12:00

Gretchen Paule, Plans Situation Status Unit
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COMMUNICATIONS LIST

		EVENT NAME: 

nCoV-2019 Activation

		DATE/TIME PREPARED:

2/6/2020

		OPERATIONAL PERIOD

OP #4: Feb 10-Feb 16, 2020



		DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATIONS INFORMATION



		POSITION

		NAME

		LOCATION

		PHONE #

		EMAIL

		RADIO



		DOC Staff



		[bookmark: _Hlk23258171]Incident Commander

		Tomás Aragón

		

		415-515-5734 mobile

415-554-2898 office

		tomas.aragon@sfdph.org

		



		Deputy/Info Officer

		Susan Philip

		

		628-206-7638

		Susan.philip@sfdph.org

		



		Advance Planning Team

		Naveena Bobba

Lindsay Claire

Kenpou Saelee

Megan Wall

Jason Xu

Michelle Kirian

Wayne Enoria

		

		415- 558-5939 (Naveena)

(Lindsay)

415-558-5947 (Kenpou)

415-252-3988 (Megan)

628-217-6287 (Jason)

415-252-3952 (Michelle)

628-217-6356 (Wayne)

510-918-0102 (Wayne)

		Naveena.bobba@sfdph.org

Lindsay.claire@sfdph.org

Kenpou.saelee@sfdph.org

Megan.wall@sfdph.org

Jason.xu@sfdph.org

Michelle.kirian@sfdph.org

Wayne.enoria@sfdph.org 

		



		PIO

		Veronica Vien

Rachael Kagan

Cristina Padilla



Linda Acosta

		

		415-438-0263 (Veronica)

415-554-2507 (Rachael)

628-206-7174 office (Cristina)

650-267-0925 mobile (Cristina)

415-554-2928 office(Linda)

415-828-6757 mobile (Linda)

		Veronica.vien@sfdph.org

Rachael.kagan@sfdph.org

Cristina.padilla@sfdph.org



Linda.acosta@sfdph.org

		



		Safety Officer

		Ed Ochi 

		

		415-554-2797 office

415-205-3620 mobile

		Ed.ochi@sfdph.org 

		



		Liaison Officer 

		Jan Gurley

		

		415-558-5939

		Jan.gurley@sfdph.org

		



		HR Liaison

		Michael Brown

		

		

		Michael.brown@sfdph.org 

		



		Operations Section Chief

		Juliet Stoltey

		25 Van Ness

		415-437-6343 

		Juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org

		



		Deputy Ops Chief

		Janice Louie

		

		628-206-8524

		Janice.louie@sfdph.org

		



		Ops Section Documentation

		Rawan Naser

		

		415-252-3906

		Rawan.naser@sfdph.org

		



		Info & Guidance Branch

		David Stier

Rita Nguyen

		101 Grove

25 Van Ness

		415-554-2648 (David)

415-437-6244 (Rita)

		David.stier@sfdph.org

Rita.nguyen@sfdph.org

		



		Dissemination Group

		Erin Bacchus (EMS)

Frank Strona

		

		628-206-7652

		erin.bachus@sfdph.org

frank.strona@sfdph.org ; fhs3@cdc.gov

		



		Content Group

		Kelly Johnson

		

		415-221-4810 ext 2129 

		Kjohnson@ucsf.edu 

		



		Clinical Consultation Unit

		Amie DuBois

		25 Van Ness

		628-217-6348

		Amie.dubois@sfdph.org

		



		Containment Branch

		Curtis Chan

		30 Van Ness



		415-575-5672 office

650-580-2335 mobile

		Curtis.chan@sfdph.org

		



		Med/Health Branch

		Tiffany Rivera

		

		310-283-2645 mobile

415-558-5937 office

		Tiffany.rivera@sfdph.org

		



		Outpatient Coordination

		Anna Robert



Amy Ovadia

		30 Van Ness



30 Van Ness

		415-759-3596 office (Anna)

415-244-2089 mobile (Anna)

415-558-5917 office (Amy)

925-900-8545 mobile (Amy)

		Anna.robert@sfdph.org



Amy.ovadia@sfdph.org

		



		SFHN Liaisons

		Jeff Schmidt (ZSFG)

John Grimes (LHH)

		ZSFG

LHH

		

415-759-4545 (John)

		Jeffrey,schmidt@sfdph.org

John.Grimes@sfdph.org

		



		Hospital Coordination

		Kenpou Saelee

		

		510-685-7595 mobile

415-558-5947 office

		kenpou.saelee@sfdph.org 

		



		Pre-Hospital

		Jim Duren



Sheilah Zarate (EMS)



Andrew Holcomb (Weekend Coverage 2/9-10)

		

		206-940-2119 mobile (Jim)

415-487-5025 office (Jim)

925-212-9902 mobile (Sheilah)

(415) 558-5931 office (Sheilah)

312-246-2125 mobile (Andrew)

		James.duren@sfdph.org



sheilah.zarate@sfdph.org



Andrew.holcomb@sfdph.org 

		



		Occupational Health/ Infection Control

		Ed Ochi 

		

		415-554-2797 office (Ed)

415-205-3620 mobile (Ed)

		Ed.ochi@sfdph.org 

		



		OME Liaison

		Tom McDonald

Kris Barbrich

		

		415-641-2224 (Tom)

415-641-2223 (Kris)

		thomas.mcdonald@sfgov.org

Krzysztof.barbrich@sfgov.org 

		



		Epi and Surveillance

		Melissa Sanchez

		25 Van Ness

		415-437-6215 (Melissa)

		Melissa.sanchez@sfdph.org 

		



		Surveillance Group

		Melissa Ongpin

		25 Van Ness

		628-217-7402

		Melissa.ongpin@sfdph.org

		



		Laboratory and Testing

		Godfred Masinde

		

		909-556-5893

		Godfred.masinde@sfdph.org

		



		Planning Section Chief

		Christine Siador (2/11-16)

Gretchen Paule (2/10)

		

		628-206-7621 office (Christine)

510-499-8622 mobile (Christine)

		christine.siador@sfdph.org

		



		Deputy Plans Chief

		Gretchen Paule

		

		408-306-8783 mobile

415-554-2820 office

		Gretchen.paule@sfdph.org

		



		Documentation Unit

		Douglas Walsh

Cimma Sefat

		

		415-558-5938 office (Doug)

773-259-7666 mobile (Doug)

415.558.5933 office (Cimma)

		Douglas.walsh@sfdph.org

Cimma.sefat@sfdph.org

		



		Situation Status Unit

		Kris Leonoudakis-Watts

		

		415-558-5934 office

415-377-8549 mobile

		kristina.m.leonoudakis@sfdph.org

		



		Demobilization Unit

		Buffy Bunting

		25 Van Ness

		628-206-7688

		Buffy.bunting@sfdph.org

		



		Resource Tracking Unit

		Karen Pierce

		25 Van Ness

		628-217-6378

		Karen.pierce@sfdph.org

		



		Logistics Section Chief

		Melissa Ta

		30 Van Ness

		562-458-1360 mobile

415-558-5948 office

		Melissa.ta@sfdph.org

		



		Deputy Logistics Chief

		TBD

		

		

		

		



		Personnel Unit

		Elaine Lee

Marise Rodriguez

Cherry Tactay

		25 Van Ness

		415-581-2859

628-206-7620 (Marise)

415-554-2660 (Cherry)

		Elaine.lee@sfdph.org

Marise.rodriguez@sfdph.org

Cherry.tactay@sfdph.org

		



		IT Unit

		Ken Buckley

		

		925-783-7351 mobile

628-206-1295 office

		Ken.buckley@sfdph.org

		



		Supplies Unit

		Daisy Aguallo

		345 Laguna Honda Blvd

		415-759-4798 office

415-920-3790 mobile

		daisy.m.aguallo@sfdph.org


		



		Facilities Unit

		Elaine Obien

		101 Grove

		415-554-2927

		Elaine.obien@sfdph.org

		



		Finance Section Chief

		Drew Murrell

		

		

		drew.murrell@sfdph.org

		



		Deputy Finance Chief

		Amanda Kwong

		25 Van Ness

		628-206-7618

		Amanda.kwong@sfdph.org 

		



		Time Tracking/Payroll Unit

		David Palma

		101 Grove

		415.554.2546

		David.palma@sfdph.org

		



		Procurement Unit

		Katherine Gee

		1380 Howard

		415-255-3553 office

145-823-7511 mobile

		Katherine.gee@sfdph.org

		



		DPH Leadership



		Director of Health

		Grant Colfax

		

		415-627-7876 mobile

		grant.colfax@sfdph.org 

		



		Deputy Director

		Naveena Bobba

		

		415-518-8772 mobile

		naveena.bobba@sfdph.org 

		



		Outside Agency Contact Information



		EOC

		DEM Duty Officer

		1011 Turk St

		415-260-2591

		demdutyofficer@sfgov.org

		



		*** FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY ***
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From: Chan, Curtis (DPH)
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Nguyen, Rita (DPH)
Cc: Louie, Janice (DPH)
Subject: School Information.
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 2:29:02 PM
Attachments: School_nCoV_CDPHdraft_SFUSD_Ala_SCC_Marin_ContraCosta.pdf

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



DRAFT 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for  
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

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCLHO/CDPH%20Document%20Library/LHD_CD_Contact_Info_ADA.pdf

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
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https://www.marinhhs.org/phupdate/ph-advisory-novel-coronavirus-2019-ncov

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

From: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Features from this Week: Heart Defects, World Cancer Day, Diabetes, and More
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 12:20:59 PM

 

Week in Review

mailto:subscriptions@cdc.gov
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Woman holding hands in the shape of a heart

Living with a Heart Defect

Congenital heart defects are present at birth and can affect the structure of a person’s heart and its
ability to work properly. As medical care and treatment have advanced, people with heart defects are
living longer and healthier lives, many into adulthood. Learn what CDC is doing to improve the lives of
people with heart defects.

Learn about heart defects >

World Cancer Day
You can help create a future free of cancer for yourself, your family, and your community. Most

https://t.emailupdates.cdc.gov/r/?id=h9077449,488cb87,48ab3df
https://t.emailupdates.cdc.gov/r/?id=h9077449,488cb87,48ab3e0


cancers take years to develop. Different factors, called risk factors, can raise the chance of getting

cancer over time. They are links in a chain of events that can lead to cancer.

Take Action to Prevent Cancer >

En Español >

Diabetes and Your Heart
Diabetes and heart disease often go hand in
hand. Learn how to protect your heart with
simple lifestyle changes that can also help you
manage diabetes.

Learn How Diabetes Affects Your Heart >

Prevent Whooping Cough
Whooping cough, or pertussis, can be a serious disease for people of all ages but especially for
babies. Whooping cough vaccines offer the best protection against this very contagious disease.
Make sure you and your loved ones are up to date with your whooping cough vaccines.

CDC's Whooping Cough Vaccine Recommendations >
En Español > 

Winter Weather
Winter storms and cold temperatures can be
dangerous. Stay safe and healthy by planning
ahead. Prepare your home and cars. Prepare
for power outages and outdoor activity. Check
on older adults.

Take These Steps for Your Home >
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En Español >

Woman dressed in winter clothing

Disease of the Week
3D of single poliovirus particle

Polio

Image of the Week
2019 novel coronavirus illustration

2019 Novel Coronavirus

2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV)

Situation Summary
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CDC is closely monitoring an outbreak
caused by a novel (new) coronavirus.

Learn more on this outbreak >

2019 novel coronavirus illustration

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
1600 Clifton Rd   Atlanta, GA 30329   1-800-CDC-INFO (800-232-4636)   TTY: 888-232-6348

Questions or Problems  |  Unsubscribe
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  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: CDC Newsroom: Week In Review - 02/03/20
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 12:04:11 PM

 

WEEK OF FEBRUARY 03, 2020
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Contact Media Relations
Email: media@cdc.gov
(404) 639-3286 (9:00 am - 6:00 pm)
(770) 488-7100 (After Hours)

Media Request Form
Media FAQs

This Week's Releases
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Thursday

Shipping of CDC 2019 Novel Coronavirus Diagnostic Test Kits Begins
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 06, 2020

Wednesday

Transcript for CDC Telebriefing: CDC Update on Novel Coronavirus
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 05, 2020

HHS and CDC Receive Additional Flights Carrying Passengers from China
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 05, 2020

CDC Media Telebriefing: Update on 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV)
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 05, 2020

Monday

Transcript for CDC Telebriefing: CDC Update on Novel Coronavirus
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 03, 2020

CDC Media Telebriefing: Update on 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV)
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 03, 2020

Transcript for CDC Telebriefing: 2018 Mortality Data
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 03, 2020

SEARCH PRESS RELEASES

2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV)

Situation Summary

CDC is closely monitoring an outbreak caused by a novel
(new) coronavirus.

LEARN MORE
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CDC Center Newsrooms

National Center for Environmental Health
National Center for Health Statistics
National Center for HIV/AIDS, Viral Hepatitis, STD, and TB Prevention
National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH)
Center for Global Health
National Center for Emerging and Zoonotic Infectious Diseases
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  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Week of February 3 - PHIL Image of the Day
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 11:01:21 AM

 

Weekly PHIL Images

Featured Image

This illustration, created at the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), reveals
ultrastructural morphology exhibited by
coronaviruses. Note the spikes that adorn the
outer surface of the virus, which impart the look
of a corona surrounding the virion, when
viewed electron microscopically . . . 

Learn More About This Image

Under a magnification of 385X, this
photomicrograph revealed some of the
ultrastructural morphology exhibited by a
Trichophyton quinckeanum cleistothecium . . .

This image was captured Oct 7, 2017, in the
Joint Field Office (JFO), Convention Center,
San Juan, PR, by Luis O. Rivera-González,
PhD, MS, as he arrived in his home country,
after the . . .
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Learn More About This Image >
Learn More About This Image >

This 2016 image showed some of the activities
taking place during a Strategic National
Stockpile (SNS) Operations training course,
located at the Federal Emergency
Management Agency’s . . .

Learn More About This Image >

Huddled in their coop, these chickens
were being raised for their eggs in a
privately-owned pen. Male and female
birds, were all grouped together. Eggs from
these chickens were collected each . . .

Learn More About This Image >

2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV)

Situation Summary

CDC is closely monitoring an outbreak
caused by a novel (new) coronavirus. 

Learn more on this outbreak >
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Image of a ca novel coronavirus.

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
Subject: Important: MMWR Early Release: Persons Evaluated for 2019 Novel Coronavirus — United States, January 2020
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 10:43:32 AM

 

Check Epi-X for an Important Report

MMWR Early Release: Persons Evaluated for 2019 Novel Coronavirus — United States, January 2020

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

Subject: FW: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC MMWR: Persons Evaluated for 2019 Novel Coronavirus — United States,
January 2020

Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 10:42:19 AM

 

 
 

From: California Health Alert Network <noreply@everbridge.net> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 10:18 AM
To: Hanson, Jake@CDPH <Jake.Hanson@cdph.ca.gov>
Subject: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC MMWR: Persons Evaluated for 2019 Novel Coronavirus
— United States, January 2020
 

This article summarizes persons tested for 2019 novel coronavirus in the United
States through January 31, 2020. Of 210 persons tested, 178 were identified in health
care settings. This finding underscores the importance of health care provider
awareness of 2019 novel coronavirus, taking travel histories in persons with possible
infectious disease, and effective communication between health care providers and
public health departments. 

The full e-book can be accessed at the link below:

https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/69/wr/mm6906e1.htm?s_cid=mm6906e1_w
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From: California Health Alert Network
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: CAHAN Disease Notification – CDC MMWR: Persons Evaluated for 2019 Novel Coronavirus — United States,

January 2020
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 10:18:29 AM

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

From: Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report (MMWR) (CDC)
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: MMWR Early Release - Vol. 69, February 7, 2020
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 10:04:38 AM

 

MMWR banner

February 7, 2020 

EARLY RELEASE
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Persons Evaluated for 2019 Novel Coronavirus — United States, January 2020

PDF of this report (link) 

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
Subject: Epi-X Today: Friday, February 7, 2020
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 2:02:47 AM

 

Epi-X reports posted in your areas of interest in the past 72 hours. To view a specific report, click on its
URL.

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
DoD Febrile Respiratory Illness Weekly Surveillance Report -- United States, February 6, 2020
This weekly report provides a snapshot of current febrile respiratory illnesses (FRI) surveillance among
military recruit, DoD beneficiary, and U.S.-Mexico border (CDC-CDPH-BIDS) populations.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=72629

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
Shipping of CDC 2019 Novel Coronavirus Diagnostic Test Kits Begins -- February, 2020
A CDC-developed laboratory test kit to detect 2019 novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) began shipping
yesterday to select qualified U.S. and international laboratories. Distribution of the tests will help improve
the global capacity to detect and respond to the 2019 novel coronavirus. Press release available at
https://tinyurl.com/vexsrnj.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=72609

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
~*~ Global Immunization News Report, February 6, 2020 ~*~
Today's Global Immunization News report includes polio, measles, Ebola, mumps, Yellow fever, cholera,
policy and funding, vaccine demand and safety, nCoV, and other news for Thursday, February 6, 2020.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=72608

~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~
~*~Special Epi-X Media Tracking Report - Novel Coronavirus, February 6, 2020~*~
This report provides special media coverage of the 2019 novel coronavirus outbreak (2019-nCoV). For
the latest CDC updates and guidance, please go to https://tinyurl.com/wz7ojes.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=72631

~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~*~
~*~ Media Tracking Report, February 6, 2020 ~*~
Media stories include influenza, hepatitis A, and mumps in multiple states; Syphilis in Texas; Legionnaires
in Illinois; novel coronavirus in multiple states and countries; measles in California, Australia and South
Sudan; Lassa fever in Nigeria; Ebola in DRC; polio in Pakistan; and other media coverage.
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=72610

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
Subject: CCSF Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#5)
Date: Thursday, February 6, 2020 8:09:32 PM
Importance: High

Please click here to acknowledge receipt of this message

Situation Report - Update - 2019-nCoV (#5)
Department of Emergency Management
Division of Emergency Services

02-06-2020 - 20:00:00

Change Since Last Situation Report: 

Situation Update:

International data:
28,353 confirmed cases; 28,126 cases in mainland China; 565 deaths in China

227 confirmed cases outside of China across 27 countries/regions.

National (U.S.) data:
1 new confirmed U.S. case in Wisconsin; 12 total confirmed cases in the USA.

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

We are in flu season. The San Francisco Department of Public Health (DPH) recommends that persons

with symptoms stay home from work, school, and social gatherings. Practice hand-washing precautions.

SFDPH Activities:

DPH and multiple City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) agencies are developing an advanced

planning strategy to meet the expanding need for resources and support in the nCoV-2019 response.

DPH is working to provide additional education to CCSF staff, hospital visitors, and patients to address

concerns of nCoV-2019 infection in health care settings.

DPH is working closely with SF Urgent Care and outpatient facilities to mitigate potential medical surge to

hospitals.

DPH is not recommending that CCSF staff wear additional Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) outside

mailto:conf-5e3ce2d9bd874e513eb2903c-5e3ce2d706322b420d5b7003@smtpic-ne.prd1.everbridge.net
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
https://neconfirm.everbridge.net/email/5e3ce2d9bd874e513eb2903c?instanceId=NE4&broadcastId=5e3ce2d706322b420d5b7003&language=en-US
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgisanddata.maps.arcgis.com%2Fapps%2Fopsdashboard%2Findex.html%23%2Fbda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7C8a893c96eca845ad0a6b08d7ab6510a9%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637166322865359241&sdata=HGRifJEG%2BkOGLC7vRpK1OYF0gWeuBBpUD8FNpIX%2FC9o%3D&reserved=0


of their normal job requirements. Guidance on proper method to request and receive PPE is being

developed and will be communicated to health care facilities.

CCSF Department of Human Resources (DHR) will send out guidance for CCSF employees who are

returning from travel to mainland China within the last 14 days.

DPH’s recommendation for travelers returning from mainland China 1-14 days before the Federal

Quarantine Orders were announced on 02/03/20: if you feel sick with a fever, cough, or shortness of

breath, seek medical care right away. Before you go to a doctor’s office, clinic, or emergency room, call

ahead and tell them about your recent travel history and your symptoms so that they can prepare for your

visit.

Public Information:

DEM coordinated a Chinese Lunar New Year Public Safety press conference Thursday 2/6 at 2:00 pm

with public safety and city officials to promote safety messaging. Xenophobia and discrimination were

addressed during the press conference. The press conference included Board of Supervisors President

Norman Yee, Sheriff Paul Miyamoto, Police Chief William Scott, Fire Chief Jeanine Nicholson, Dr.Grant

Colfax and the Chinese Chamber of Commerce.

Joint statement between the San Francisco Department of Public Health, San Francisco Department of

Emergency Management and Office of Racial Equity of the City and County of San Francisco was

released to the media: https://www.sf72.org/blog/san-francisco-rejects-xenophobia-and-discrimination.

911 dispatchers and 311 call takers have been provided with updated FAQs. 311 has received 268

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

https://www.sfusd.edu/announcements/2020-01-27-update-cold-flu-and-coronavirus.

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
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https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Findex.html&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7C8a893c96eca845ad0a6b08d7ab6510a9%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637166322865399216&sdata=kh37nWWVtr9UlwDUGZr5KlksVp3px7KKiQ2Xdlk5Dzs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.who.int%2Femergencies%2Fdiseases%2Fnovel-coronavirus-2019&data=02%7C01%7Cdemdutyofficer%40sfgov.org%7C8a893c96eca845ad0a6b08d7ab6510a9%7C22d5c2cfce3e443d9a7fdfcc0231f73f%7C0%7C0%7C637166322865399216&sdata=kQrvnv9MMtXOCeYWtvL1pV6jf%2BzyNQNeuVHN%2BEgwxsE%3D&reserved=0
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

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED
AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED OR CONFIDENTIAL, THE RECIPIENT OF THIS REPORT
SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THIS REPORT MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS NOT VERIFIED.

CCSF Alert is owned and operated by the City and County of San Francisco. To change the way you receive CCSF
Alerts, contact your Department's Disaster Preparedness Coordinator.

mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Hanson, Jake@CDPH
To: CDPH CCLHO DL; CDPH CHEAC DL
Subject: Fwd: CAHAN LHD Conference Call Notes – Local Health Officer Coronavirus Update Conference Call Notes

Yesterday, 2/5/2020 at 6:00 PM PST
Date: Thursday, February 6, 2020 5:07:42 PM
Attachments: 02.05.2020+Local+Health+Officer+Conference+Call+and+Speakers+Notes+Final.docx

DRAFT+Returning+Traveler+Monitoring+PH+supervision+2-5-20.docx
ReturningTravelerMonitoringLinelist_DRAFT.xlsx

 

FYI 
 
From: California Health Alert Network <noreply@everbridge.net> 
Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2020 4:10 PM
To: JEOC Director <jeocdir@cdph.ca.gov>
Subject: CAHAN LHD Conference Call Notes – Local Health Officer Coronavirus Update Conference
Call Notes Yesterday, 2/5/2020 at 6:00 PM PST
 

Please find attached notes from the Local Health Officer 2019-nCoV Conference Call
held yesterday, 2/5/2020, at 6:00 PM PST for review. Additionally, please find a one
page draft guidance document and draft excel form. CDC traveler monitoring cards
that are currently being given to returning travelers at airports are linked below.

Questions or comments regarding returning travelers may be sent to
ReturningTravelerMonitoring@cdph.ca.gov.

You can see the traveler cards here:
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/communication-resources.html
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mailto:noreply@everbridge.net
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mailto:ReturningTravelerMonitoring@cdph.ca.gov
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/communication-resources.html
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Local Health Department 2019-nCoV 

Local Health Officer Conference Call 

February 5, 2020 

6:00 pm – 7:15 pm 



I. Welcome/Introduction: Dr. Seema Jain 



II. Dr. Cora Hoover presents Epidemiology Updates:

1. [bookmark: _Hlk31049882][bookmark: _Hlk31049826]On Saturday, February 1, CDC updated the definition of what constitutes a person under investigation, or PUI, for novel coronavirus 2019. 



2. The new PUI definition is divided into three new categories as follows:

a. One: Fever, either subjective or confirmed, OR signs/symptoms of lower respiratory illness, such as cough or shortness of breath AND having close contact with a laboratory-confirmed 2019 novel coronavirus patient within 14 days of symptom onset

i. Please note that the CDC HAN includes a detailed definition of what constitutes a close contact

b. Two: Fever AND signs/symptoms of lower respiratory illness, such as cough or shortness of breath AND a history of travel to Hubei Province, China within 14 days of symptom onset

c. Three: Fever AND signs/symptoms of lower respiratory illness, such as cough or shortness of breath, requiring hospitalization AND a history of travel to mainland China within 14 days of symptom onset



3. Because the situation with the novel coronavirus outbreak is rapidly evolving, CDPH is currently recommending the following flow of information for reporting and testing decision purposes.

a. Providers concerned about possible novel coronavirus infections should contact their local health departments immediately by phone as per the California Code of Regulations, Title 17, Section 2500.

i. [bookmark: _Hlk31049943]At this time, CDC appears to be following the new PUI definition more closely than the previous PUI definition for testing decision making purposes.  

ii. The following scenarios should prompt consultation with the CDC EOC regarding novel coronavirus testing:

1. Persons meeting the new PUI definition OR

2. Persons for whom you are unsure about whether or not they meet the PUI definition

iii. You may also consult CDPH, or consult CDC directly, regarding scenarios that are not covered in the PUI definition. CDC has indicated that testing decisions might be further informed by the clinical presentation or exposure history (e.g., uncertain travel or exposure), and the presence of an alternative diagnosis that explains their clinical presentation.

b. For any of these scenarios, the Local Health Department should contact the CDC Emergency Operations Center (EOC) at 770-488-7100 24/7 to consult with CDC regarding whether testing for the novel coronavirus is warranted. 

c. If testing is deemed to not be needed, whether by the local health department, the CDC EOC, or CDPH, then relay this information to the patient and instruct them of who to contact should their symptoms worsen to a point where testing should be reconsidered. 

d. CDPH is always available to discuss a scenario that does not clearly fit into these criteria, or the scenario could be discussed directly with CDC.  

e. If CDC approves testing, the local health department should email a summary of the patient’s information to novelvirus@cdph.ca.gov as soon as possible. 

i. The summary should include the following information:

1. The patient’s name and date of birth

2. A brief summary of the patient’s symptoms, travel history (including airline, flight number, and dates, if available), isolation status and location, and any other relevant clinical or exposure information.

3. Testing decision made by CDC

4. CDC assigned ID number, if available and testing will occur

f. If you need urgent assistance or prefer to speak directly with someone at CDPH, please contact the Immunization Branch at 510-620-3737 during business hours, or the DCDC duty officer or the CDPH Duty Officer after hours at 916-328-3605.



4. [bookmark: _Hlk30523466]All jurisdictions should enter any case for which CDC has recommended testing for novel coronavirus into CalREDIE using the “Novel Coronavirus 2019 (nCoV-2019)” condition as soon as possible, and no later than 3:00PM the next business day. 

5. Please enter all available information as you receive it and ensure the record is up-to-date in order to facilitate communication between you and CDPH. Immunization Branch staff may also update records in CalREDIE as needed. 

6. Only persons who are being tested for novel coronavirus must be entered into CalREDIE; however, local health departments are welcome to also enter persons who are not being tested for novel coronavirus into CalREDIE, if desired. If you choose to enter persons for whom novel coronavirus testing is NOT being pursued, please ensure that you have entered ‘No’ in the “This person was or will be tested for 2019-nCoV” field, which is a required field on the PUI tab.



7. The CDC PUI form will need to be completed for all persons being tested for novel coronavirus. In addition to entering information into CalREDIE, please also upload this document to the electronic filing cabinet in CalREDIE and/or email it to novelvirus@cdph.ca.gov. Please ensure the CalREDIE ID and CDC PUI ID, if known, are included on the PUI form. If a CalREDIE ID is not yet created, then please ensure the person’s name and date of birth is included in the email sent to novelvirus@cdph.ca.gov since identifying information is not included on the CDC PUI form.



8. Results of novel coronavirus testing conducted at CDC will be reported back to the public health laboratory that submitted the specimens to CDC, and a copy will be sent to the CDPH Viral and Rickettsial Diseases Laboratory (VRDL). The CDPH VRDL will forward a copy to the local public health laboratory, or department, if a jurisdiction without a public health laboratory) to ensure receipt in the event CDC only notifies VRDL. In addition, VRDL will notify the Immunization Branch/Response Epidemiology Team who in turn will do the following:

a. Positive results will be relayed by phone as soon as possible.

b. Negative results will be emailed to local health department contacts. If results are received on the weekend and emails are not opened by noon the day after they are sent, attempts will also be made to reach someone at the local health department by phone to relay results.

c. All results will also be entered into CalREDIE and the lab report uploaded to the Electronic Filing Cabinet in CalREDIE.

d. To help facilitate these notifications, a request has been sent out to LHDs to please send to novelvirus@cdph.ca.gov a list of all persons and their email addresses who should receive email notifications and a phone number to call for after-hours notification and clearly label the request as novel coronavirus laboratory results notification contacts AND with your local health jurisdiction name. 

e. Many results received by CDPH to date have been received after 5:00PM Pacific, so you should plan for potential after-hours notification.

9. In addition to the above, please ensure that your local public health laboratory is aware that you are expecting novel coronavirus testing results and tell them who to notify once they are received. 



10. As a reminder, all communications with CDC and CDPH should copy the novelvirus@cdph.ca.gov email address.



III. Dr. Amanda Kamali presents Monitoring Guidance:

 As you are all aware, flights with passengers who have traveled within China are now being funneled to 11 airports within the US, including San Francisco International Airport and Los Angeles International Airport. The US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention are preparing and beginning to send notifications to states regarding these returning travelers for screening. We wanted to have a call tonight to discuss draft guidance that we have put together in light of the need to monitor returning travelers.

As you know, when passengers who have traveled within China within the past 14 days enter the US, U.S. Customs and Border Patrol will perform an initial screen to determine if persons have traveled from Hubei province or other parts of mainland China. They will also assess travelers for symptoms (ie., fever or cough). 

Any person traveling from Hubei or mainland China with symptoms will be referred for medical evaluation, assessed for PUI status and be immediately isolated. Asymptomatic persons who have traveled from Hubei province are considered High Risk and will be placed under federal quarantine for 14 days. Asymptomatic people who traveled to mainland China will be considered Medium Risk and allowed to travel to their final destination but are encouraged to postpone any further long distance travel; and practice self-quarantine. Under self-quarantine travelers should remain at home as much as possible, avoid congregate settings, limit public activities and practice social distancing. Currently the CDC recommends that persons with travel history to mainland China and no other exposures are to be considered medium risk. These persons should self-monitor with public health supervision.

We would like to go over the process for this notification and then elicit feedback on our draft notification and monitoring guidance.

Notification

1. CDC will notify CDPH via Epi-X alert. This alert will contain names and contact information of persons traveling from mainland China with final destinations within California.

1. CDPH will then email the list of passengers with their contact  information to the local health departments.

1. Local health departments are responsible for contacting returning travelers and performing a risk assessment if possible.

Risk assessment:

1. [bookmark: _GoBack]Again, all persons who are asymptomatic and have had traveled within mainland China for the past 14 days and are allowed to travel to their final destination are considered Medium Risk and will do self-monitoring with public health supervision.



1. If local health departments have the capacity to conduct a risk assessment, it is possible that some of these travelers may be high risk in which case they would require active monitoring by the local health department.

Self-monitoring with public health supervision:

Exact mechanism of self-monitoring with public health supervision will be at the discretion of the Local Health Jurisdiction (LHJ) (e.g., check in via email, phone, frequency) depending on needs of the LHJ. At this time, the CDC has requested only minimal collection and reporting of data on the monitoring of these travelers. This may change as the outbreak evolves. CDPH will create a Novel Coronavirus Traveler condition in CalREDIE within the next few days. In the meantime, CDPH will provide LHJs with an excel file with basic information that the LHJ should return to CDPH each week. However, we recognize that this may be a very big lift and so would like to discuss the feasibility of this and to get a sense from you what is realistic. 

At this time, we would like to open up the lines and get your feedback/thoughts on our guidance documents.

IV.  Questions and Answers:

Q: When passengers arrive at LAX or SFO, if they come to another of the 11 airports can they be arriving from connecting flights? When screening is performed, how is the passenger made aware of how they will be monitored or contacted?

A: Yes, they may be arriving from connecting flights. If they are coming from Hubei Province, China, they will be immediately quarantined.  Anyone from the rest of mainland China who is asymptomatic will be given a card with limited information (card information will be shared), including symptoms to be aware of and who to notify, either the LHD or a healthcare provider.

Q: When passengers arrive from incoming flights, are we relying on their personal report regarding what location they have come from?

A: Customs and Border Patrol are asking these initial questions about whether the passenger has been in Wuhan, Hubei Province. Q: Do we have any idea what volume of U.S. citizens may be expected to arrive from Hubei? 

A: This number should be decreasing over time.  Today 4 Epi-X were received, including 7 people who required monitoring.  

Q: Are these people asked to call their LHD? Do they have a phone number to call? 

A: A health official will contact them with additional instructions but they will not get a phone number to reach out to the LHD.  Epi-X is critical in order to get this information ASAP.

Q: What are the expectations for self-monitoring and self-quarantine. How strict are the guidelines to be enforced?

A: CDC Guidance – to the extent possible, remain at home, social distancing specific language to limit congregate settings.  CDC is allowing this discretion to the LHD and guidance is not prescriptive.  There is a lot of room and flexibility on how to approach self-monitoring.

Q: Please be clear about the recommendation for passengers who arrived prior to February 2nd, especially for the guidance for schools and healthcare workers. 

A: CDPH Charity Dean states they hope to share this guidance tomorrow, February 6th.  The document does not answer the question about prior to February 2nd, but those who have arrived recently have a higher risk of exposure due to the rapid increase of the spread of 2019-nCoV.  The schools document will state that this is effective February 3rd.  Healthcare workers, healthcare guidance from CDC will hopefully be released soon. Recommending furlough from work until 14 days period is up. More conservative approach for healthcare workers, regardless of their arrival dates from China. This decision is between PH and Healthcare providers pending guidance from CDC.

Q: Guidance for those who develop symptoms at home while self-monitoring but they do not qualify as PUIs and cannot be tested.  The current PUI criteria is not sufficient in ensuring these individuals are being properly monitored.

A: This inconsistency is recognized.  Make sure to document these patients in case the testing does get approved.  Provide recommendation to individual to be in contact if their symptoms worsen.  This is an area of active discussion and there is no definitive answer now. CDPH is available to consult on these cases.

Q: The draft guidance states to ensure each traveler has a phone and a thermometer.  Are LHDs asked to provide this if passenger does not have?

A: Every county is in a different situation and has varying capabilities.  Recognize that this is an issue and the draft can be changed to be more plausible for LHDs. 

Q: Any changes in the guidance for N-95 respirators vs. surgical masks?

A: No change in the guidance.  Recommendation is N-95 respirators or higher for healthcare workers and EMS providers. Patients should wear surgical masks.

Q: How is the number of people traveling through airport today via Epi-X so low?

A: The numbers mentioned earlier are just for today through Epi-X. This process has not ramped up yet, but tomorrow will be a better measure according to the CDC.

Q: Are the passengers being quarantined from repatriation flights being quarantined from one-another or just from general public?

A: Families are in their own units and these individuals are separated for living and sleeping areas. There are some shared areas with other members of the quarantine. 

Q: Testing from CDC is taking seven days. Is there a plan for faster turnaround time for results?

A: Yes, this is true due to the shipping time to the CDC lab.  Hopefully when testing is available in a California lab, this turnaround time will be lessened.

Q: Is there support for jurisdictions that are unable to contact moderate-large groups of people?

A: Communicate to CDPH so assistance can be provided, as there is a team focused for travel monitoring who may have the ability to help.
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Monitoring of Travelers Returning from China with Public Health Supervision Guidance

The U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has created several risk categories for persons potentially exposed to the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-nCoV). Persons who have traveled within Hubei province are considered high risk and are quarantined upon entry to the United States for 14 days from the time were last in Hubei province.

Persons who have traveled within mainland China excluding Hubei province, are considered medium risk if they have no other exposures that would classify them as high risk. For these medium risk travelers, the CDC recommends that asymptomatic persons conduct self-monitoring with public health surveillance.

Self-monitoring with public health surveillance means public health authorities assume the responsibility for oversight of self-monitoring for certain groups of people. CDC recommends that health departments establish initial communication with these people, provide a plan for self-monitoring and clear instructions for notifying the health department before the person seeks health care if they develop fever, cough, or difficulty breathing, and as resources allow, check in intermittently with these people over the course of the self-monitoring period.

The exact mechanism of self-monitoring with public health supervision will be at the discretion of the Local Health Jurisdiction (LHJ) (e.g., check in via email, phone, level of frequency) depending on needs and resources of the LHJ. At this time, the CDC has requested only minimal collection and reporting of data on the monitoring of these travelers. This may change as the outbreak evolves. CDPH will create a Novel Coronavirus Traveler condition in CalREDIE within the next few days. In the meantime, CDPH will provide LHJs with an excel file with basic information that the LHJ should return to CDPH each week. This is the basic notification process:

· CDPH will receive a list of travelers through Epi-X

· CDPH will send by email the list of travelers and required forms/spreadsheets to LHJs

· LHJs should confirm receipt of the email and list by email

· Confirm that contact has been made with the travelers by email.  Further details on reporting requirements are forthcoming. 

LHJ should provide each traveler with:

· Directions on how to contact the LHJ should the traveler become symptomatic or need to access health care

· [bookmark: _GoBack]Directions on how to self-monitor (e.g., twice daily temperature checks, cough, shortness of breath)

· If LHJ is requesting check-ins, a method for how to check-in with the LHJ

· Time period for which monitoring will occur

Please use ReturningTravelerMonitoring@cdph.ca.gov for these communications.  Please do not hesitate to email this address with any questions.  CDPH is happy to work through issues in your jurisdiction case by case. 
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
Subject: Important: ~*~Special Epi-X Media Tracking Report - Novel Coronavirus, February 6, 2020~*~
Date: Thursday, February 6, 2020 5:06:52 PM

 

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
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